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I, Salim Lalani, of Calgary, Alberta, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY THAT:

Referee Scope/Terms of Reference/ Referee’s First Report

1. On November 19, 2021, Justice K.M. Horner granted an Order, made effective at
12:00 pm on November 26, 2021, appointing Alvarez and Marsal Canada Inc. as
referee (the “Referee”) to run a claim's process to determine the value of all
creditors claims against the Corporation

2. Initial Finding Report, based on the Claims forwarded by Nine Parties, was provided
to Claimants on March 16, 2022




3. | along with Noorani, Karim Kaba had invested in only “20 Acres Land Project” and
at the time of soliciting the investing, it was assured that a separate entity will be
created (Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3). The subsequent events (After death of Paul Lail in
2013) surprised us that “20 Acre Project” has been parked in a separate company
1178929 Alberta Limited (“117”}, where there were other projects owned by
Tejpar's and Lail’s.This action by the Director was completely Fraudulent and
Deceptive. About 400,000 dollars contributed by us (Noorani, Karim Kaba and Salim
Lalani) went into “117” which was invested with the understanding in a separate
entity. Repeated request for separating the “20 Acre Project” from “117” was made.
Directors agreed for separating the “20 Acre Project” from "117” but never
separated. “20 Acre Project” accounts were also Co-Mingled with other projects (
Exhibit 19)

4. Referee has allocated the distribution from the Assets of “117” as per Table 2 (
Exhibit 66) as the contribution was going into the “117” and not to a Separate Legal
Entity. Referee acknowledges based on the claim amount that each and every
dollar was contributed for “20 Acres” but the funds went into “117” which is merged
with other projects and there was no separate legal entity for “20 Acres™. But from
my perspective, Fraud was committed by the Directors of “117” as investment was
sought for a separate legal entity where | was assured being a shareholder. 100’s of
email and the Company’s GL (Exhibit 23, Exhibit 45, Exhibit 46, Exhibit 47) back up

my claim.

5. | also fully understand that Terms of Reference of Referee does not entail Referee
to go deeper in the issues highlighted by any single Claimant. The time and cost
constraint too does not permit Referee to investigate matters other than Claims on
the Property, but as | am the Victim of Fraud my Claim on the property should have
Priority Over the Claim of the Directors who committed various Fraudulent
Activities. There are various precedents in the court that Fraud Victims get
Seniority over the Claims of the Fraud Perpetrators. Moreover, the Directors ( Murad
Tejpar, Mahmood Tejpar, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal , Jaspreet Lail) intentionally Co-
Mingled all the project and company accounts ( Exhibit 60 Page 10 Paragraph 30) .
As Co-Mingling of company accounts and Co-Mingling of personal accounts ( Exhibit
71) is a fraud, my Claims over the property should have seniority. Directors
withdrawal and loans to the family members have not been verified (Disclaimer in
Exhibit 66). Directors advanced loan of about 160 k without Interest to Amy Lail
/Mumtaj Ali Tejpar ( Exhibit 33 Draft Arbitration Vogel Verjee) who invested in the
land which has increased in value. Because of non-verification of accounts, multiple
advances to family members, personal expenses in corporate accounts and proof of
various frauds from the Directors own Affidavit, Net Equity Basis (Directors
contribution less withdrawals) concept should be applied as applied in the various
Fraud cases



Perjury / Fraudulent Acts/Affidavit of Convenience

6. | have received the First Report from the Referee. The Referee has agreed with
my claim on 1178929 Ltd (“117”), which | had paid exclusively for the Purchase of
20-Acres Project {“20 Acres”) and operational/mortgage expense of 20 Acres.
The investment was exclusively for the purchase of 20-Acres in a Separate Entity
as a Shareholder. The Directors Fraudulently parked 20 Acres in “117” where
they had another project “ Morgan Rise” . “117” also advanced about “160 K" to
family members of Lail and Tejpar in 2007 without any interest. Amy Lail (Lail
Family) and Mumtaz Ali Tejpar (Tejpar Family) used that 160K to buy 50% Equity in
“Saskatoon Land” in a numbered company, a completely separate legal entity. “117”
could have invested in 101 Saskatchewan Land to benefit from the appreciation of
land (the Land has since appreciated in value), but money was lent to family
members without any interest (Exhibit 33 page 4 paragraph 4 f). This action from
Directors has serious fax implications

7. From project inception (2007) to his death in 2013 Paul Lail (father of Gurpreet Lail
and Jaspreet) was Fraudulently Representing himself as a director and was
attending the 20 Acres project meeting along with Murad Tejpar and Mahmood
Tejpar. Jaspreet Lail also attended few 20 Acres Project meetings along with Paul
Lail and Tejpar's before Paul's death in 2013. Paul and Tejpars lied that 20 Acres is
in a separate entity and Paul is the Director (Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3). We were told that
we are the shareholders of that separate entity for “20 Acres Land” with the following
%age based on the Equity Contribution Proportionately Noorani's 25%, Tejpar's
25%, Lail's 25%, Karim Kaba 12.5% and Salim Lalani 12.5%. Tejpar’s despite
knowing the exact Equity Contribution by Lail's lied numerous times to the
shareholders about Lail’'s contribution and used fraudulent technique of Co-Mingling
the various project accounts. Mahmood Tejpar was told numerous times to separate
the company and separate the bank account, but this Co-Mingling fraud continued

8. After Paul Lail’s death in 2013, we requested Murad Tejpar to set-up a meeting with
Accountant so that we verify our contribution in “20 Acres Project”. That meeting in
2014 with accountant we discovered that “20 Acres Project” is mixed with other
projects owned by the Directors. The Co-Mingling of accounts was discovered in that
meeting. | told the Directors that this is a Fraud that Directors have parked other
investments and Co-Mingled the bank accounts of “20 Acres” and “Morgan Rise” .. |
insisted that “20 Acre Land” should be separated from “117” and a separate “Newco”
needs to be formed to park only the “20 Acre Project” (Exhibit 15, Exhibit 16, Exhibit
19). During that we also discovered that accounting is in a mess as Project Cost as
well as Shareholder's Equity is not properly reflected shareholder wise. | also
highlighted that “Co-Mingling” is a fraud and it is unfair that “20 Acre Project” tax
loses are used by other projects



9. To have better transparency repeated request was made for changing the
accountant {Exhibit 20, Exhibit 21). As the investment was made on Good Faith, we
demanded all the last 8 years that accountant should be changed to rule out any
unholy alliance. This practise is prevalent in many capital markets around the world
where the accountant must be changed after 3 to 4 years to prevent any collusion
between the Directors and the Auditors/Account. The accountant professional fees
were also higher than the average charged

10.Till 2018, Tejpar's and Lail's were working together in deceiving the "20 Acre
Project” investors and were providing misleading “Material Information” to 20 Acre
investors but in 2018, a dispute emerged between them. Because of their dispute,
following key information was revealed by Murad Tejpar and Mahmood Tejpar:

a) Lail family has not contributed the proportionate share

b) Their cash contribution is very small

c) As 35% down payment was paid for the purchase of land and two year
advance interest was made, there was no need of Personal Guarantee for
securing the mortgage. All the shareholders could have been on the “Title”

d) Lail's should be asked for the accountability of “Holdup of 100k™

e) It needs to be confirmed that how much has been paid to the seller of 20
Acres”

f) BHI was created for the construction of projects

g) Equity contribution details should be asked from Lail’s

11. All these years, the Lail's and Tejpar’s, told the”20 Acre Investors” that they carried
the property by providing personal guarantees. Response to mail March 29, 2020
from Gurpreet highlights about personal guarantee from Tejpar’s and Lail’s. This
statement changed when dealing with “Servus Credit Union” regarding intentional
foreclosure

“Statement of Defence “dated September 22, 2020 from Tejpar’s against “Servus
Credit Union” on page 2, section 3 (Exhibit 51) says that

“In further answer to the whole of Statement of Claims, the defendants deny they
provided a Guarantee( as defined in statement of claims) for 117...... *

12. This above Affidavit on September 22, 2020 clearly identifies that Lail’'s and Tejpar’s
were completely dishonest in dealing with the 20 Acre investors. Wherever they
found convenient they lied under the oath or lied to the investors and banks. Servus
Union, which had initiated the foreclosure proceedings, further highlights the

financial character of the Directors. Foreclosure was kicked intentionally by the
Directors



13.1t was told to the Tejpar’s and Lail's in 2018/2019, that mortgage is the separate
thing and putting shareholders on the title is a different thing. They always lied that
since personal guarantee has been provided, we will not allow the 20 Acre
Shareholders name on the title

14. Many “Material Misleading Information” surfaced because of the fight between
Tejpar’s and Lail's. | kept on demanding for “Equity Contribution Statement “(Exhibit
26, Exhibit 27, Exhibit 28, Exhibit 38, Exhibit 39) from the Directors under Affidavit as
the whole process was suspicious. Rather than providing “Equity Contribution
Details” to the shareholders of “20 Acres” , the Directors started harassing the “20
Acre Project” shareholders that there is no proof that Noor/Karim Kaba/Salim Lalani
have confributed their share (Exhibit 36)

15.Directors went into the Court to settle their dispute in 2020. Various Affidavits were
filed by Gurpreet Lail which were false and misleading regarding investment by “20
Acre Investors”

November 27, 2020 Affidavit of Gurpreet-Lail Dhaliwal under Notice to Third Parties
(Exhibit 57) Paragraph 28 Page 6 says

“| do not believe that the Third Parties advanced either loans or paid a purchase
price to for the purchase of interests in the 20 Acre Land”

Scores of Exhibits attached as part of this Affidavit (Exhibit 1 to Exhibit 71) clearly
shows that above statement in the Affidavit is completely misleading and false. From
2008 to 2013, Paul Lail was attending the various shareholder’s project meetings
and after 2013, Jessie and Gurpreet were attending the “20 Acres Shareholders
Meeting”.

In the same Affidavit Gurpreet Lail- Dhaliwa! (Exhibit 57) in Paragraph 25 page 6

“The respondents did not advise Jaspreet and | about or obtain our consent to the
alleged third-party investments. To our knowledge, the third party loan amounts that
the Respondents say they obtained from Karim Kaba, Salim Lalani, Noor Noorani,
and BHI{collectively, the” Third Parties * ) were private , personal arrangements
between the Respondents and the Third Parties that the Respondents improperly
booked as loans owed by the Corporation”

16.Because of past illegal acts by the Directors and litigation between the Directors, it
was feared that property will be sold without our knowledge, and we will not get back
our investments. A Caveat was put by Noorani’s and me to safeguard our
investment. In March, 2021 the Directors of “1178929" filed an Application to remove
the Caveat from the property which was filed by Noorani's and myself to protect our
investment in “20 Acres”. Three Affidavits were filed by Gurpreet Lail Dhaliwal on
behalf of the Directors of “117” ( Murad Tejpar, Mahmood Tejpar, Jaspreet Lail,



Gurpreet ). Affidavit dated February 17, 2021, Affidavit dated March 3, 2021 and
Affidavit March 23, 2021. The first two Affidavits were basically related to “ No loans
or investments from Noorani’s and myself” and the last Affidavit dated March 23,
2021 was related with “ the property is in foreclosure and needs to be sold urgently
to avoid foreciosure proceeding”

In her affidavit filed by Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal on behalf of “117" Directors, Action
No:2101-01984 dated March 3, 2021 Page 2 Section 6 { Exhibit 58 )which says

“Lalani did not advance loan or pay a purchase price to the corporation for the
purchase of interest in the lands”

(Surprisingly March 23, 2021, Affidavit by Gurpreet Lail on behalf of “117” Exhibit
59, related with Foreclosure and need for urgent property sale, was never filed with
the amended Application though the Master Farrington Order (Exhibit 62) has clearly
mentioned above March 23, 2021 Affidavit and majority of March 26, 2021
proceeding Action : 2101-01984 was based on removal of caveat because of
“Foreclosure”)

17.That various Exhibits regarding Minutes of the Meeting, Request for Contributing
Funds, Attending the Repair of the Rental Property , Various Communications with
the Tenant, Purchasing Material for the Repair of the Property, meeting with the
Planning Department shows that we are the equity investor and to remove our
caveat , false testimony was submitted by “117” Directors. Just glancing through the
Exhibits shows various communications intemnally as well as externally about our
involvement in the project as the “Equity Investor”

18. Email from Gurpreet-Lail March 29, 2020 ( Exhibit 36)

This email completely reflects the various lies toid to the shareholders of “20 Acres”
a) Client ledger from Fric and Lowenstein is not available from the Lawyer’s
Office
b) Only contribution for “20 Acres” from Noorani's can be verified
¢) Salim Lalani contribution cannot be verified from the accounts
d) Lail's and Tejpar's have provided Personal Guarantee

19. Murad’s “Affidavit of Convenience “

As mentioned in the earlier sections, the directors of 117 purposedly and
intentionally misrepresented in the Affidavit submitted by Gurpreet Lail on behalf of
the Corporation to their own advantage (Exhibit 58)

Murad Tejpar in his Affidavit sworn on July 24, 2020 in paragraph 26 page 5
(Exhibit52) mentions that:



In addition to the foregoing shareholder loan amounts, | do verily believe that the
general ledgers and financial records of the Corporation set out the following loan
amounts as owing to other members of the Laii-Dhaliwal Group, several third-party
investors and BHL:

$7,042.58 to the Estate of Paul Lajl Sr.;
$11,027.72 to Amaijit Kaur Lail;

$ 100,536.58 to Karim Kaba;

$ 100,536.69 to Salim Lalani ;

$ 201,091.65 to Noor Noorani; and

$ 241,428.57 to BHI

-0 o0 oD

In paragraph 27 Page 5 Murad Tejpar in his July 24, 2020 further adds

“ Despite having had an opportunity to review, and having approved the financial
statements between 2005 and 2018, the Respondents began to dispute the
shareholder loan amount attributable to the Parties in the Corporation’s financial
statements in or around October 2018”

But in Action: 2101-01984, brought by Directors of “117” , Murad Tejpar who had in
the past Affidavit, acknowledging the investment from Noorani’s, Karim Kaba and
Salim Lalani , completely lied under the oath through Affidavit that “no interest in the
land and they do not know that Noorni's and Salim Lalani advanced any money for
the purchase of land”

Even in the court proceeding on March 26, 2021 the Directors of 117 intentionally
lied in the court that Salim Lalani and Noorani investments have no interest in the
land and they do not know that Nooranis and Salim Lalani advanced any money for
the purchase of land. Exhibit 2,Exhibit 3, Exhibit 4, Exhibit 5, Exhibit 6 clearly
highlights that Paul Lail (deceased)/Tejpars completely understood our interest in
the land as the Shareholder/Joint Venture partner. Each and every project details of
“20-Acres” was updated by Paul Lail (deceased) to his son and daughter, who were
the actual Directors ( though we came to know about this fact after death of Paul Lail
July, 2013) Jessie Lail and Gurpreet were signing the yearly Financial Statements of
“117" as well as signing the renewal documents of “Mortgage from Servus” and
being properly educated, they knew about all the state of affairs of 20 acre project
and our relation. Despite knowing everything about the nature of “20-acre Investor".
117 Directors, Gurpreet/Jessie/Murad/Mahmood lied under the oath in the court that
Salim Lalani and Noorani Investments have no “Interest in the Land”

20.The ledger from Fric and Lowenstein Exhibit 5 clearly shows that Noorani's /Karim
Kaba paid total of 178,000 dollars (89,000 + 89,000) to purchase the 20-Acres
land. Karim was paying on my behalf and we owned 25% (12.5% each) of the 20-



Acres. Murad has been in almost every 20-acres project meeting since 2007 but still
lied in the court about our equity interest in “20 Acres”

Foreclosure of “20 Acres”/Servus Union Foreclosure Proceedings

21.1n his Affidavit dated July 28, 2020 Murad Tejpar ( Exhibit 52) on Page 6 Paragraph
30 mentions about intentional default by Gurpreet Lail and Jaspreet Lail that

“Furthermore, Jaspreet Lail failed to contribute his agreed upon share of the 20
Acres and Morgan Rise mortgage payments for the months of January and March
2018 as well as February, March and May through September of 2019, resulting in
their default”

Murad Tejpar further adds on Paragraph 31 page 6

“The Lail-Dhaliwal Group’s failure to pay their share of the Corporation’s mortgage
obligations on time, as well as their refusal to communicate has made it impossible
for the Corporation to meet its obligation to Servus Credit Union. Mahmood and |
have lost confidence in the Respondent’s abilities as Directors and no longer trust
that they are acting in the best interests of the Corporation”

On Paragraph 39 Page 7 Murad Tejpar adds

“Based on the foregoing, | do verily believe that it is not possible for the Parties to
resolve their dispute. The dispute has damaged and will continue to damage the
Corporation and its shareholders and is preventing the Corporation from rectifying its
mortgage defaults with Servus Credit Union”

Regarding default by the Gurpreet Lail Dhaliwal and Jaspreet Lail , Murad Tejpar
adds in “Statement of Defence” (Exhibit 51) on Paragraph 10 Page 3 that Gurpreet
{ ail -Dhaliwal breached the fiduciary duties owed to t0 117 as directors and refusing
to contribute their shares of 117’s expense”

22. Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal in her Affidavit make Tejpars responsible for “Mortgage
Default” and failure of Tejpars to rectify the default with Servus Credit Union ( Exhibit
50, Exhibit 51). As mentioned by Referee and as explained in Exhibit 33, document
prepared by counsel’s, there was a receivable of about 160 K from Amy Lail/Mumtaz
Ali Tejpar. Despite having receivable of about 160 K from the family members,
Directors intentionally defaulted on the mortgage

Favors to Tenant/ROFR/Buyer of Foreclosed Property

23.There were many favors given to the “Renter”, who ultimately bought the foreclosed
property and who was the tenant at the “20 Acres” for the last 15 years. Right of
First Refusal was never removed from the property despite agreement in writing
from him to remove the “ROFR” (Exhibit 18). Directors first staged foreclosure and



then sold the “20 Acres” without informing other shareholders. This clearly highlights
the Serious Breach of Fiduciary Duty

24.1n “Allegation of Impropriety” Exhibit 60 page 6 point 23, Gurpreet herself admits
about “ Wrong Doings “ about the directors. So again this proves the point that there
are so many wrong doings, frauds, fiduciary duty breach that it is better for “Both of
the Directors” to avoid those offences and take this referee path rather than forensic
audit so that criminal and other fraud /fiduciary duty breach could be avoided

BHI

25. Serious questions exist about the validity of claim of BHI. The separate legal entity
was owned by Lail's and Tejpar's. The statement from various Affidavits raises the
serious doubts about BHI claim (as per Referee’s Disclaimer no verification has
been done of any accounts Exhibit 66)

Action No:2001-09142 Affidavit of Murad Tejpar Sworn on July 24, 2020 Page 3
Paragraph 15 states that ( Exhibit 52)

“In an around 2011, myself, Mahmood Tejpar, Pawan Dhaliwal and Aruna Lalani
met with Paul Lail Sr. at his request. During the meeting, Paul Lail Sr. recommended
that the shareholder loan in BHI be transferred to the Corporation now that neither
company was operating. It was my understanding that this was done to conce ntrate
the shareholders loans of the Tejpar Group and the Lail-Dhaliwal Group within a
single Corporation for tax purposes. The transfers were documented in
Corporation's 2011 general ledger hereto and marked as Exhibit “D” is a copy of the
Corporation’s general ledger for 2011”

In the same Affidavit by Murad Tejpar Sworn on July 24, 2020 in paragraph 4 page 2
(Exhibit 52) he states that:

“Discussions related to the operation of the Corporation and BHI were made jointly
by the Parties and their relations. The Applicants and their father, Mumtazali Tejpar,
made up the “Tejpar Group” and the Respondents and their relations, Paul Lail Sr.,
Pawan Dhaliwal, and Amarjeet Kaur Lai, made up the “Lail-Dhaliwal Group”.

Quoting Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal Sworn/Affirm on July 28, 2021 ( Exhibit
60) Page 10 Paragraph 30 ( Available Financial Information and the Tejpar's Claims)

“Further complicating attempts to sort out who is owed what, BHIl and 117 shared a
bank account and their funds appear to have been commingled. Based on my
review of the records, | believe that this commingling has not been properly
accounted for”

Tax Fraud/Evasion



26.Tax fraud was perpetrated by the Directors by intentionally Co-Mingling the accounts
and using the “20-Acre Loses” against the one suspicious transaction of 100,000
commission by Mahmood Tejpar and Paul Lail. | raised the question that this in all
reason reflects the Purchase Fraud as where this commission is coming. They never
answered the satisfactory answer and never provided the documents

27.The investment by the 117 , in Saskatchewan by advancing loan to the family
members, requires thorough investigation from the tax perspective. Was this
properly advanced as per the Company Law or this again is the tactic to evade the
taxes as the family members, are seniors and in alf probability would be having low
income

Forensic Audit Request

28.20-Acre investors are the victims of fraud and this would be grave injustice to not
bring to the light the whole truth through “Relevant Forensic Audit” and a “Proper
Trial” to unearth the various frauds. The list of “Wrong Doings”, committed by the
Directors include, but not limited to:
a) Perjury
b) Real Investment Fraud
c) Fraudulent Representation
d) Financial Statement Fraud
e) Tax Fraud
f) Purchase Fraud
g} Foreclosure Fraud
h) Serious Breach of Fiduciary Duties , which includes:
i) Misleading Material Information
i) Misleading the investors
iy Gross Negligence
iv) Failure to Perform Due Diligence

Most of the above frauds are being admitted by Directors by themselves in various
Affidavits submitted by them during the last two years.

Once “Forensic Audit” is under taken, within one hour, just looking at the personal bank
statements, receivables and credit cards, one could clearly highlight the issue of *
Willingness to Pay” rather than “ Ability to Pay”. A detailed Forensic Audit focusing on
the “Purchase Fraud” and “Foreclosure Fraud” and a detailed trial can highlight the
complete truth.

| request the honourable court to order the “Forensic Audit” at the Directors expense to
highlight the Perjury, Real Estate Fraud, Foreclosure Fraud, Serious Breach of
Fiduciary Duties so that justice is served

Holding the Disbursement / Access of Records



29.Murad in his Affidavit has indicated very clearly that “Two Families Were Involved”.
In my Affidavit dated November 12, 2021, and in the hearing dated November 19,
2021 1 have clearly mentioned that grave injustice was done to me by perpetrating
the various frauds and breach of fiduciary duties. | was assured by Honourable
Justice K. M. Horner that | could pursue my cases against the Directors and Referee
Report will not bar me from taking various actions against the Directors. | request
that the disbursement of Tejpar’s and Lail's as well as mine should be stopped till
the completion of “Forensic Audit" and other actions. Your Honour you know that if
one is honest and speak truth, getting the Judgement is easy but implementing the
Judgement is difficult. Having disbursement on hold, it will be easier for the honest
parties to swiftly get the compensation

30.1 also request Your Honour to bar the shareholders from destroying the records and
ensure the availability of all records for the various future actions. In the past
Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal ( Exhibit 36) tried to close the bank accounts when | was
asking for the “Directors Equity Contribution Details” from various bank statements.
As per Tejpar’s she took various records of the company and was not returning the
records

Cost Allocation

31.1 had already mentioned in my Affidavit dated November 12, 2021 that finding the
balance for “20 Acre Investors” is a small job and “20 Acre Investors” had always
verified their payments through Trial Balance approved by the Directors. Directors
initialed financial statements and payments verified in person from the accountants
and through various emails. The issue was “Tejpars” and “Lails” who used “117" and
other associate companies to evade the taxes, Mingled the accounts, used 117 for
100’s of different personal transactions

32.Ensuring the accounts are prepared correctly and honestly was not my job as | was
a shareholder in only “20 Acres Project”. | was verifying my account balances from
the accountant by looking at Trial Balance since 2014. | was paying my
proportionate expenses for accounting fees also for the last several years. It was
director’s job to maintain the proper books and refrain from “Wrong Doings”. The
Directors should pay for the cost incurred in:
(a) Responding to the Action: 2101-01984 where Perjury was committed
and Caveat was removed through false testimony
(b) Responding to hearing for November 19, 2021 regarding
“Appointment of a Referee”
(¢) Responding to various Queries from the Referee to support my claim
(d) Responding to hearing for May 20, 22 Application -Referee's
Discharge and Final Disbursement



Significant cost was involved on preparing the various court documents/Affidavits.
Being a Self Respondent, 100’s of hours of research was prepare for my case and
complete the court documents. My cost on the above activities is about 29 K. This cost
only considers the time and various expenses incurred on preparing for the above
cases and does not consider losses because of various frauds and fiduciary duty
breach by Directors. | will initiate separate actions against the Directors for the recovery
of loses and the mental agony

Relief Requested

33. | seek an order of this Honourable Court:
a) Awarding cost for the above-mentioned activities
b} Directing that the Directors bear responsibility for payment of the
Referee's fees

SWORN /AFFIRMED BEFORE ME AT (CITY)
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Court File Number :2001-09142

Respondent : Salim Lalani

EXHIBITLIST LA~ V& aget/s

Exhibit 1

20 Acres Minutes of Meeting: Misleading Info/Deception July 12 2008

m Equity Participation Statement : Separate Company: September 17, 2011

m 20 Acre Documentation: Separate Company: September 9,2011

m Meeting Minutes Spring Bank 20 Acres July 20,2011

m
m Blank Cheques for 20 Acres/12.5% Shareholders Contribution : July 18, 2008
mmm
“Exhibit 9| Minutes of the Meeting: Kimball Lacey (The Renter ) November 1, 2011

m Suggested Email to Kimball: Requesting for Signed Contract
L - — _i

Exhibit 11 | Spring Bank Minutes Meeting : Shareholders March 29, 2012 |

Exhibit 12 | 20 Acres Minutes of Meeting March 3, 2013

m
m 20 Acres Meeting: Paul Lail Comlssmn. Murad Tejpar March 26, 2013
unication- Apnl 16,2013
m
m

20 Acres Shareholders on the Mortgage/Title July 6, 2014

Kimball Lacey (The Renter -Eventual Buyer) Comm

Request for Change of Accountant (Aruna) :August 3, 201




Court File Number :2001-09142

Respondent : Salim Lalani

EXHIBITLIST X3 page 2
| Exhibit 23 | Trial Balance from Accountant Aruna 20 Acres: Year 2018

“exhibit 24 | Separate Company for 20 Ace ( Spring Bank Project) November 20,2018
“Exhibit 25 | Separat. the Accounts/Separating the Mortgage/Guarantees :Jessie July 22, 2019 |
“Exhibit 26 | Equity Contribution Reguest from Shareholders (Proportionately): April 2, 2017 |
Exhibit 28 | Request for Equity Contribution Statement from the Directors: Nov 22, 2019 |
Exhibit 29 | 20 Acres (spring Bank) Monthly Paym. Default/Non Clarity in Account. De, 2019 |
Exhibit 30 | 20 Acres Bank Stat. Request/Purchase Related Docu. August 27,2019 |
Exhibit 32 | Purchase Offer 20 Acres:1.10 M. : 25% Equity of Gurpreet /Jes. Feb 2, 2021 |
Exhibit 33 | Draft Arbitration Agreement: Vogel Verjee |
Exhibit 35 | Vogel Verjee: April9,200 |
Exhibit 36 | Gurpreet Respon. :Mortgage Default/ No Lawyers Ledger/ No Contr. March, 2020 |
Exhibit 38 | 20 Acres: Reminder to Directors for Eq. Contr. Stat.from Salim Lalani Feb. 7, 2019 |
Exhibit 42 | Email from Salim Lalani: Lail/Tejpar Investments M2y 22,2020 |
m
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EXHIBITLIST _A"Vcl g poge: 3/
Exhibit 45 | Trial Balance from the Accountant Aruna : 20 Acres

“Exhibit 46 | Trial Balance from Accountant Aruna Year 2014 : 20 Acres
| e ey ———
Exhbit 50 | Servus Credit Urion — Statement of Claim : Acton 2003-13227 August 12,2020
“Exhibit 52 | Afidavit of Murad Sworn on July 24, 2020 Court File No: 2001-09142 |
“Exhibit 53 | Notice of Appointment for Questioning — Murad Tejpar November 11,2020
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: 1 fim Lalani <salimiala mall.com>
M Gmall Sallm Lala @9

SPRING BANK ‘DRAFT OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING JULY 12, 2008

Salim Lalani <saimlala@gmail.com> _ Wed, Jun 11,2014 at 10:34 AM
To: Nooruddin Noorani <gulnocr@hotmail.com>, Murad Tejpar <tajpar@shsw.ca>

As for these minutes, there was R0 feedback from your side, these minutes were naver circulated.
| am sending to you for our fecord purpose

Dear Murad,

! am sending you the (Draft) Minutes of the Meeting for Elbow Valley Project. Kindly 99 through it and identify the
errors and omlssions. Pleass check the names etc.... also. 1 might have missed some polnts please identify
those polnts, We should read the minutes of the meeting tomorrow and finalize it. | wlil send you separately
minutes of the meeting for our Canela plant. The reason 1 am not attaching document Is that | have sysiem
probiem and 1 cannot use the word and excel files. ALSO FOR FUTURE WE HAVE TO MAKE A POINT TO HAVE
MINUTES OF THE MEETING SO THAT PROJECT COULD BE MONITORED PROFESS!ONALLY

Regards

(DRAFT) MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT CALGARY, DATED JULY 41TH, 2008
{ 20 ACRE ELBOW VALEY PROJ ECT)
The meeting was held on July 11, 2008 at Paul's office.
The meeting was aftended by the following:
Mumiaz All Tejpar (MAT)
. Paultail (PL}
[r. Ali Rafiq (AR)
Murad Tejpar (MT)
Salim Latani  {SL)

Following points were discussed:

« PL gave details about the faasibllity of the project. About the cost and timelines, he gave the following estimaies
o In fourth quarter of this year, hopefully in the month of September, 2 acre division process will be completed
» About approval of 2 acre fots, PL said that there is 100% surety that there will be no problem as In the

vicinity permissions have already been given.

CHforts will be made to get permission for 1 acre lot which will improve the returns. PLIS hopeful that though

ft is bit difficult, we will put our best offorts to seek the approvals for 4 acre lot .

As per the pian, by the end of 1st guarter of 2009, servicing will be completed for the project. Servicing

includes roads, elactiicial works, DOWer lines, or other related things

In April, 2008 selling of plots wil be started
o Paulis hopeful that we will be able to sell 2 acre parcel at around 350-400k({am | corract??) as plots In
morgan heights are being sold at around 600-650K

-]

-3

L3

« Apout the expected cash need, Paul mentioned that in total 100k would be needed by Septemberlccloher for
demolitionfapprovals

« SL inquired about the possibliity of inducting other invesior in the project. e discussed on the various structures
that could be made where quast equity /debt based financing could be arranged. He mentioned couple of
examples related to financing of the project

1t was agreed that initialy SL should discuss terms and conditions with the potential investars and then should
come with the varicus term sheets so that it could be discussed In detai. MAT IPL& MT meniioned whatever the term
sheet will be given, it will be discussad with the current shareholders and decision will be taken afterwards. it was agreed

o> NS
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i lim Lalani <salimlala mail.com>
M Gma“ Salim @g

EQUITY PARTICIPATION DOCUMENT

salim lalani <salimiala@gmail.com> ‘ Sat, Sep 17, 2011 at 8:47 PM
To: "Paul Lail ( Calgary )" <6511 095@gmail.com>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>.
sulnoor@hotmail.com

Dear ALL,

Attached please find draft equity contribution document. This will be discussed and finalized lomorrow.

Regards

@ Equity Contribution.docx
15K View as HTML Download




E‘K\’r%%ﬂ 2

EQUITY CONTRIBUTION DETAILS IN 1178929 ALBERTA LIMITED

in January,2007, the property, 20 acres in Spring Bank {the details are given below} was acquired by
1178529 Alberta Limited (owned 50% by Murad Tejpar and 50% by Paul Lail) with equity contribution of
other joint venture partners whose details are given in Table A

This document has been prepared and signed to document the equity contribution by other joint
venture partners as the property is currently under 1178929 Alberta Limited name and due to some
bank borrowing issues the name of other joint venture partners Karim Kaba, Noaor/Sulaiman and Salim
Lalani could not he made part of Albertal178929

The property details are as follows:

Municipally

34165 Township Road 240 A in the Municipal District of Rocky View No. 44
Legally

Meridian 5, Range 3, Township 24, Section 5, ,The west half of tegal subdivision & containing 8.09
hectares (20 acres} , more or less, excepting thereout:

Plan Number Hectares

Roadway 6372JK 8.09

Table A, given below , is providing details of the equity contribution by other shareholders (or their
designated company) as of September 17, 2011. This document will also serve as a proof of equity
participation for the legal heirs of all the joint venture partners and will also serve as valid document for
the arbitrators in case of dispute.




Serial
No

Shareholder Name

Murad Telpar

25.0%

%age Shareholding

Shareholding
Entity
1178929
Alberta Limited

Caontributed

E_ KA v =

2. Paul Lail

25.0%

1178929
Alberta Limited

3 Noor & Sulaiman (jointly) 25.0%

Noorani
Investment
incarporated
47, Coral Reef
Close North
East

Calgary- AB73J
Yo

'(4. Karim Kaba

12.5%

914756
alberta Limited
41 Sharp Hill
Drive

Balzac

TOM QEOQ

5. salim Lalani/Anita Lalani 12.5%

Individual

Signature of Shareholders

Paul Lail

Murad Tejpar

Noor/Sulaiman

Karim Kaba

[V RN NPT RS R

Salim Lalani

Witness Signatures

XXXX

XAXKX

KXXX

XXX
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HUXXX
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M Gma” Salim Lalani <gzlimlala@gmail.com>

20 ACRES DOCUMENTATIONISPRINGBANK

salim lalani <safimiala@gmail.com> _ Fri, Sep 9, 2041 at 12:39 AM
To: Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>. *paul Lail { Calgary )" <6511 oa5@gmail.com>, Karifm Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>,
sulnoor@hnotmail.com

Dear ALL,

41 pages of various documents available with Noor was collected and has been scanned by Murad and distributed to all
of us. Now atleast wehave some detalls available on our laptop.

The property is described municipally as follows:
34165 Township Road 240 A in the municipa! district of Rockyview No 44
and legally as

Meridian 5, range 3, Township 24, Section 5, the West half of Legal Subdivision & containng 8.09 Hectares (20 acres)
more or less, excepting therout

PLAN NUMBER ACRES
ROADWAY  6372JK 0.6277777?
Regards

Salim Lalani

'
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M Gma“ Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

MEETING MINUTES:SPRINGBANK 20 ACRES

sallm lalani <salimiala@gmait.com> _ Wed, JuIIZO. 2011 at 1:28 PM
To: Kailm Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, "paul Lall ( Calgary }" <6511085@gmail.com>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>
MINUTES OF THE MEETING (SPRING BANK 20 ACRES PROJECT)

Meeting of shareholders was heid on Satuday July 16, 2011 at Tim Hortons (Sunridge) at 8:30.
Meeting was attended by the following:

Paul Lail PL.
Karim Kaba KK
Murad Tejpar MT
Noor NN
Sulaiman SN
Salim Lalani SL

Following issues were discussed:

1. Agreement with Kimbat! 126 K Expenses Related fo Renovation

2. Meeting of SL and Kimbail Assessing Present Market Exchange of Infil
3. Documentation of Parinership

4. Shareholder Agreement” Arbitration & Mediation Agreement

5 Demand of of Principal Repayment from Bank

5. Management Fee

7. Quarterly Meeting of Shareholders

1. Agreement with Kimball 126 K Expenses Related to Renovation

Final signed agreement with Kimball was not available with anyone. It was decided that PL will try to filnd out the final
signed agreement. It was also decided that 126K renovation expense bill given by the renter will be discussed with renter
and will be solved amicably.

2. Meeting of SL and Kimbail Assessing Present Market Value Exchange of Infill

it was decided that to assess renters intent and to have good review of rencvation done, a meeting should be held with
Kimball. SL should act as prospective invesior. Also possibility of buying Infill (in exchange for acreage) from renter
should be explored, The meeting wili aiso be helpful in understanding any maijor development related to the subdivision

3. Documentation of Partnership

it was decided that to reflect ownership of all shareholders proper documentation will be done. Following tasks will be
done:

a. Preparation of shareholder list and each shareholder contribution in the project . ' )
b. As the present ownership is in the company owned by MT and PL, a separate agreement will be made with companies
owned by the following shareholgers:

a. Noor & Sulaiman {25%)
b. Karim Kaba (12.5%)
. Salim Lalani (12.5%}

Company details were provided by Noor and Karim Kaba as follows:

(\y
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Noor

Noorani Investrment Incorporated
47, Coral Reef Close North East
Calgary- AB T3J 3Y8

Karim Kaba

014756 Alberta Limited
41 Sharp Hill Drive
Balzac

TOM QOEQC

MT & SL will work with the lawyers to complete the docurmentation process

4. Shareholder Agreement’ Arbitration & Mediatlon Agreement

it was decided that to formalize the relationship, Draft Sharehclder Agreement and Arbitration & Mediation Agreement wil
be circulated by SL for discussion and finalization

5. Demand of of Principal Repayment from Bank

MT updated sharehoiders that Bank has demanded for repayment of principal. This means paying about 3k-4k monthly in
addition to the interest payment. KK suggested that we should try to find the current market value of the property to take
the right decision. Acreage specialist broker should be contacted to get the current market value

&. Management Fee

KK suggested that as MT and PL are devoting their time, there should be compensation for their efforts, It was declded
that 10% of net profit after applylng opportunity cost of 9% (on equity portion of the investment) wili be pay_a_bl_e as
management fee to MT and PL. MT suggested this management fee will only be payabie f there is sub-division. It was
unanimously decided by all shareholders that Management Fee will be payable if subdivision will take place.

7. Quarterly Meeting of Shareholders

It was decided that sharsholders should meet at-least quarteriy to discuss the status of the project. This meeting wouid be

held on first Saturday of each gquarter. Next quarterly meeting will be held on First Saturday of October |.e October 1.
2011, PL suggested that maeting should be held in downtown office so that Skype facility is available.

2 :
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M Gmall Salim Lalanl <salimlata@gmall.com>
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5 POST DATE CHEQUES/TRANSFER OF 12.5% IN MY COMPANY'S NAME

salim lalani <salimisla@gmall.com> Fri, Jul 18, 2008 at 5:36 AM
To; Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>

Dear Muradimahmood,

YAM

| have reached Karachi after a brief stay in Deha, Qatar.
This emall is just for my record and your record,

| have given you five post dated cheques of CIBC Numbesed from 161 and 165 on July 12, 2008 at Sunridge Mall Parking
Lot. -As these cheques are blank chegues(hence vary risky) kindly fill In the account name in which thesa cheques will be
supsequently deposited. The amount could be filled later.

Also | have given you my company detalls. Kindly transfer 12.5% of our Spring Bank project in my Numbered Company
which Is:

13599 38 ALBERTA LIMITED

Please communicate In future lo me directly regarding the above project and not through Karim Kaba as there has been
lot of confusion in the past regarding the dates and other matiers.

Also, If | could get the dates of payment and paymant amount from Mahmood received from Karim aba, that will be very
helpful and i will be able to straighten my accounts and racards.

Rest is fine. | wil emait reagrding the Canola project separately by today or {0ImQrrow moming

Regards

Salim Lalani
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M Gmaﬂ Sallm Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com>
MEETING RESCHEDULING
satim lalani <salimiala@gmail.com> Fri, Sep 23,2011 at 1:48 PM

To: "Paul Lall { Calgary )* <6511096@gmail.com>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Nooran!
<sulnoor@hotmail. com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, salimlala@gmail.com

Dear ALL,

Visit to Rocky View County could not take place due to unavailabliity of Paul, Karim and myself.

Should we reschedule the meeting on sunday October 2, 2011 instead of September 25, 20117 Noor and myself are
proposing meeting on October 2 so that there are some tangible stuff io discuss. Kindly approve rescheduling.
Regards
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M Gma“ Salim Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com>

MEETING WITH PLANNER ROCKY VIEW MARCH 29 2012

salim lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Thu, Mar 29, 2012 at 9:32 AM
To: "Paul Lall { Calgary ) <6511095@gmail.com>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>,
Nooruddin Nooran! <sulnoor@hotmall.com>

Minutes of the Meeting held on March 29 With Rocky View Pro ject

Attended by
Murad

Noor

Salim

1. Meeting with Amy Zaluski, the planner was held at Rocky view
2. She suggested the following:
a. We apply for re-designation first and subdivision later
b. We should look at the agenda and council minutes
¢, It appears that there are some technical issues, storm water problem on this property
d. For re-designation we would be needing the following:
i, Ground water level report
ii. The proposal cover letter
iii. Sketch of the proposal for subdivision
The initial cost would be around 4,000
Giving mare details about specific use of property will be helpful
We are meeting with Gary , Alpine On aprox. April 19 8.a.m
h. Putting the advertisement on Kijiji for consultant
3. The next meeting for shareholder wilt be heid on Thursday April 5, 2012

@~
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M Gma“ Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

salim lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Tue, Nov 1, 2011 at 1.01 PM

To: gnys@shaw.ca . . "
Cc: Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Noaruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmail.com>, "Paul Lail { Calgary )
<6511085@gmail.com>

Hi Kimball,

Below is the minutes of the meeting.

F participants
1 Paul Lail PL
2 Kimball Lacey KL
3 Murad Tejpar MT
‘ 4 Naor N
[? l Salim Lalani SL
The meeting was held on November 1, 2011 at PL's Bottie Depot at 9 0 clock.
Meeting Agenda
1 Discuss with KL about the changes in the
contract suggested by the owners
2 To get KL input on the possibility of arranging
financing if owners want to sell the property
F KL's cooperation in terms of putting the ’_\
property in the market

1. Changes in the Contract

Regarding changes in the contract related to section 11.1.3 , KL completely disagreed with point a,bande.
He said that there is grave misunderstanding and is completely unacceptable.

He is agreeing to the pointcand d, which suggest that:
c. If the lease is terminated by the tenant the renovation has no value left
d. The well will be depreciated over 10 year period

2. Possibility of Arranging Financing

According to KL, if appraiser is from Scotia or ATB pank, he will be able to arrange financing for the purchase
of the property

3. Qp_gpg@immﬂms_ﬂféﬂﬁﬂgs_e_ﬂ_.h roperty.

KL said that he will cooperate in every manner if property is put up for sale. Regarding viewing, signageetc
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4., Qthers
a. I KLgets 80K from the tandiord, he will make the current agreement null and void and will sign
tenancy agreement.
b. It was agreed that KL will provide the signed copy of the agreement
c. On Friday /Saturday property could be viewed November 4 and November 5
d. KLemail is gnys@shaw.ca his cell is 403 863 9853
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M Gma“ Salim Lalani <sa a@g

SUUGESTED E MAIL TO KIMBALLY

salim lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> ‘ Thu, NcJ“v 3, 2011 at 11:15 AM
To: Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca, Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hnotmail com=, wpaul Lail { Calgary )
«8511095@gmall.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>

Dear All,

We are thinking about circulating this e mail to Kimaball Lacey.

Please give your feedback as agree oF disagree. We will take decision on the basis of majority.
Please give ur feedback by 5 a clock . if no reply it will be treated as accepted.

These are the points:
Dear Kimball Lacey

1. Based onour relationship, we just want 1o delete point d. Though we appreciate your
cooperation, point d , where depreciation on well was recommended by us, 18 dropped.

2. Toavoid any misunderstanding, we want to clarify that 80K is payable to you. Just to have clear
communication, our shareholders are interested in selling the property by recovering all the
investment made on this property

3. Regarding selling of this property, again We want to reiterate that our all intention is that you
buy this property as you have worked on this praperty with your own hands. But as we mentioned
to you that we want to sell this property. Before we go for appraisal, we request you to getsome
initial feedback from the bank and once you give the go ahead we appoint the appraiser. You had
already mentioned that appraiser should be approved by ATB and Scotia.

4. Justto keep things professional, our sharehclders want that we document the renovation s0
that there is no dispute later. Kindly allow us to take pictures of the renovation.

5. Please provide us the signed contract for our records

Regards

Salim

G
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M Gma“ Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

SPRINGBANK MINUTES MARCH 15

satim lalani <salimiala@gmail.com> Thu, Mar 29, 2012 at 9113 AM
To: "Paul Lail { Calgary )" <6511095@gmail.com=, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Murad Tejpar <te|par@shaw.ca>,
Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmail.com>

Hello All,

Given below is the minutes.

S —ry b ¥4

Minutes of the Meeting held on March 15 Spring Bank Project
Attended by

Paul Lail

Murad

Noor

Sulaiman

Salim

1. As the market is expected to be better and also keeping in view the tenant issue, it is prudent to
keep silent at the moment and let the things remain as it is

2. It was suggested that Mortgage should be applied on the basis of the company and all the
shareholders should be part of the company. The primary applicant will be all the shareholders. This
will also document the transaction and will give better rates

3.  All the shareholders were reminded about paying their dues

4. Paul will contact TD about the mortgage possibility. The meeting with TD will be held on
Saturday



\-;:'X\ﬂt‘?;ﬂ —1 —

[ HIS EXHIBIT " ™ * REFERRED T0
l
4 e AFFIDAVITOF N THE

------------------

OF. .m ....................... A.D.20.. Z-L
e cnwms uu
U TH?‘E;B?NC F AI.BER#: DA{E__Z

Christopher Kozoriz
A Commissicner for Oaths
in and for Alberta ')

EXH I B |T 1 2 My Commission Expires June 21, 2022

20 Acres Minutes of the Shareholders Meeting
March 3, 2013




E\(\M%ﬂ %

M Gma“ galim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

SPRING BANK 20 ACRES MINUTES OF THE MEETING

Salim Lalani <salimkala@gmail com> i . Sun, Maf{;i“i;:niﬂﬁ PM
To: Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca?, Nogruddin Noorani <suinoor@ho .

Following were present
SL
MT
NN
SN

The following poinis were discssed/agreed

1. Amount outstanding by each sharghoider needs to be paid urgently ( glL=1302 KK=1302 NN/SHN = 2604}

2. 80 K wili be paid back to kimberly by March end. Every shareholder has to pay their proportionate share

3. New rental contract will be preparad. Duratlon one yearl canceliable with 3 month notlca from either side. Rental pef
month = 4,000 with one month Damage Deposit 4,000

4. Remava! of lien with payment

5. At the time of payment of 80,000 , work done will be inspected and documented. All pictures will be taken, Before
Rental start, pre inspection raport will be prepared

SN '\ N

> T
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M Gma“ $alim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

RE: AGENDA FOR THE MEETING ON SATURDAY AT 9 O CLOCK

Salim Lalani <salimiaia@gmail.com> o Thy, Sep 12, 2013 at 11:06 PM
To: Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmail.com>, Jasprit Leil <;la||@bellag1ocapltal.ca>‘
Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca*

Meeting on Saturday at 9 o clock Tim Horton Sunridge Mall
Agenda ltem

1. Regularizing the documentation of the property. Inserting the name of other sharehclders on the property as per their
shargholding percentage

2, Tenani agreement. No agreement is in place with the tenant
3. |ssues relatad to financing in Dec

4. Listing of the property

5. Payable to Murad regarding the finance charges

Regards
Salim Lalani
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M Gmall Salim Lalani <salimlata@gmail.com>

SPRING BANK MEETING ON FRIDAY AT 9

Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> . Tue, Mar 26, 2013 at 4:30 PM
To: Murad Telpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <sulnosr@hotmail.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>

Dear All,
Meeting will be held on Friday March 28, 2013 at 9 at Tim H Sunridge

The main agenda is :

1, Our strategy regarding rentalffirst right refusal agreernent with Lacey. In the last meeting (minutes will be drculated in
couple of days) it was decided very clearly that whatever we will do , now on we will cail the shots and not K Lacay. His
blackmatling should end now.

2. Appralsal report and its impfication

3. Budget regarding commission for the sellers agent (for us). If we are putiing the property (n market, how much we are
budgeting for the agent (seller's side commission). In the last meeting , it was confirmed by Murad thal during purchase,
Paul got the commisslon of around 23,000 (3 112 % first 100X and on balance amount 1 1/2%})

Regards
Salim

o,




Eﬂwe 77~ 15
THIS EXHIBIT “F* REFERRED TO IN THE

s AFFIDAVIT OF oy

A s, Lt

SWBRN BEFORE ME THIS..Z.5.......DAY
AD.20.22

- GMMISSIUHE ---------------- i‘ nA- ----- Fr .u..a. .....
s, ru:pnu@:

preses e

Chns’wpher Kozenz
i Commissioner for Qathn

EXH | B lT 1 5 My Commiilzr!:dEg t;b?}aa A0 Q'y

Purchase Price Newco 20 Acres /New Separate
Company Creation

April 13, 2014




—

™

=

| X3 37 =
M Gma“ salim Lalanl <salim\aia@gma“.com>

ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION ///

$atlm Lalanl <szlimlala@gmail.com® sun, Apr 13, 2014 at 8:21 PM
To: Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <suinpor@hotmail.com>
¢c’ Murad Teipar <tejpar@shaw.ca>

Dear KK/SULNOOR

Please provide the payment details date wise so that a recanciled statement is sent o Myrad's accountant and purchase
price for the new gompany is agreed.
Thanks
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M Gma“ Sallm Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

RE: SPRINGBANK 20 ACRES FINANCING ( MURAD/JESSIE INOOR/KARIM/SALIM)
Sat, Jul 26, 2014 at 5:39 PM

Salim Laiani <salimlala@gmail.com>
To: pam.little@servus.ca

Hello Pam,

It was a pleasure meeting you last week along with Murad and Noor regarding financing of Spring bank 20 Acras. You
had requested that all the five sharehoiders should provide their personal financial infarmation.

Attached are my details.(SALIM LALANI)

Please note that | had paper flled my retums for 2011 and 2012 and hence NOA has not been recelved yet.

The Personal Financial Information fact sheet and returns are attached.
Regards

Salim Lalanj

403 830 0534

4 attachments

Personal Financial Statement -Salim Lalani.docx
" 120K

bt LALANI, SALIM 2011.pdf
154K

n LALANI, SALIM 2012.pdf
253K

@ LALANI, SALIM 2013.pdf
208K
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M Gma“ Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>
34615 twp 240a
Good Neighbour <office@gnys.ca> Tue, Apr 16, 2013 at 9:31 PM

To: salimiala@gmail.com, heidi.lacey@gmail.corm, Kimbalil Lacey <thekfi@hotmail.com= . )
Cc: "Paul Lall ( Calgary )" <6511095@gmail.com>, Murad Tajpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani
<sulnoor@hotmafl.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>

Hello Salim and alk,
| mentioned | would talk over the detalls we discussed on Friday with my wife and get back to you.

We feel strongly that 4500 is way too high for rental of 20 acres of land this far west of Calgary. This is based on the
principle that without my efforts and money on the house and all out buildings they would be of no vaiue to you in terms of
rental income. As | have maintained alt alang, even if 4500 was a tair rental of 20 acres, a house and outbulldings, that
we shouldn't be charged that until our interes! In the property is salisfied.

| appreciate that in our discuss you seemed {0 acknowiedge this discrepancy when | suggested to make things _simple
and easiast to understand, we should elirinate my Interest (S0k, 80k for the renovations and 10k for the well, cistern and
water treatment investment as per agreement).

Therefore my offer is this, yes we will consider a rental payment of 4500 dollars a month as you have suggested ¥ you
agree and thus gompensate us far our 90k thereby reducing us to simple tenant.

We would continue to be excellent renters who
A} Invest further time and money by way of upkeep and improvements without any expectation of compensation
B) Continue to provide all minor repairs that normally fall under duties of landlord

C) Wil help facilitate you as tandlords and owners in your interests whether it be marketing and selling property {as long
as we all continue to agrae in the event of a sale 90k is payable to us), or subdivision of property

As | mentioned in your meeting, it isn't easy living out here in such a run-down place with mud and f!ood‘sng every spring,
incessant mosquitoes throughout summer and high heating bills in winter due to poor windows and insulation in house.
That said, we are happy and content to stay here as long as you will have us.

We appreciate your willingness to work with us to date and trust we will all continue to see each other's perspective and
that we will continue 1o find an agreemant to our mutual benefit and satisfaction.

Respectfully,

AR
{; u
m

A
—r

>

%

|
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M Gmail Salim Lalanl <salimlala@gmail.com>

Agreement June 2014

Good Neighbour <office@gnys.ca> Wed, Jun 11, 2014 at 8:07 PM
Ta: salimlala@gmall.com
Cc: Kimbal! Lacey <thekfi@hotmail.com>, heidi.lacey@gmail.com

Helio Salim,

In talking with my wife we are fine agreeing to the terms discussed with one minor clarification. We would Iil$e the same
option to terminate the tenancy without penalty that you guys have (in event of a sale) as long as proper notice is given (|
think minimum 3 months is reasonabie). Not that we would use it, but we would like that option.

Other terms we agreed upon as | remember them are as follows

. Caveat will be release and converted into S0k doltar mortgage with an interest rate of .01% (or nothing if possible)
o Mortgage will be second on
o No ROFR

o Mortgage will stipulate that upon termination of tenancy with proper notice the full 30k will be payable
within 45 days.

o If payment in full is not recelved within 45 days interest will b incurred at prime plus 10% per annum
payable monthly

o Mortgage will become due (with or without interest) at sale and dispersed through sale
- Rentas of Qctober 1, 2014 will be raised to 4,400 dollars.

- A price protection period of 5 years will be agreed upon where Landlords agree 1o only increase rent if chosen once
per year to a maximum of inflation rate as indicated by Stats Can.

o During these 5 vears Landlord agrees to only terminate tenancy in the event of a sale of progerty in
which minimum of 3 months is provided to tenant to terminate tenancy if new owner does not wish ta
continue tenancy agreement.

o During these 5 years Tenant agrees to provide minimum of 3 months’ notice if he wishes to terminate
the tenancy
- Landlord agrees to provide at completely his cost before October 1, 2014 screens for every window of house (that
opens). Ifitisn't provided by October 1, 2014 Landlord agrees that Tenant can have screen made and deduct that
amount from rent with provided receipt

- Landlord also agrees to allow Tenant to deduct from rent with copy of receipt cost of materials only for sid.ing the
garages in the amount of a maximum of 7000 dollars plus GST (Cost to provide paper, flashing, battons and snding for all
3 garages). All labour to be provided by tenant. Deductions from Rent to bs spread out into minimum 3 rental periods.

- Landlord to acknowledge that following items are property of tenant
o All unattached items on property
o All appllances in house (washer, dryer, dish washer, stove, fridge)
(L) \%
LR



o Calcana heater in barn.

o Furnace in Garages

. Al other items and issues not specifically covered in agreement to o]

This is what | can remember. if | remember something ! forget | will let you know. Same

f've forgotten let me know.

Thanks

Kimball

e R

e subject the Residential Tenancy Act

with you if there is something
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M Gmall Sallm Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

MEETING WITH ARUNA July 15, 2014: TRANSFER PRICE FOR NEWCO

Sallm Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Sat, Apr 8, 2017 at 11:46 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@gmail.com>, tNooruddin Nooran <suinoor@hotmail.com>

During the meeting{ July 13, 2014) it was pointed out ¢learly that shareholders loan ( at that time 86,025 per 112.5%)
should be $ 86,025 and not the 79,062.5 which was basically contributed in year 2007.
The shareholders loan on the balance sheet was never updated for all the coniributions made after December 11, 2007.

The details below and attached excel sheet provided by Kamadia Saheb Noor provide details for their portion ( 25%...
172,050.74 12.5%..... 86,025 Dated July 15,2014)

Why your accountant is not reflecting the Shareholders Loan correctly and who will be responsible for the tax because of
this incorrect accounting?

Why she is writing off Spring Bank loses against the 100,000 profit by project C where Noor, Karim and | have nothing to
do with?

you agreed on a phone conversation that this Is completely wrong that Spring Bank loses are set of_f against Project C (
you claim that Project C 100,000 profit belongs to Morgan Rise) as we have nothing {o do with Project C

% Fc Lot
Q@Cb‘h ¢y liadd en -

TOTAL PAYMENT FOR HY 8 ?‘Y\) "R - a\‘ﬁ
( As of July 15, 2014 —Transfer Price Exercise) (S:“ q“is ;Q'
DATE DES. AMT. &
5
MAY28 2007  FIRST DEPOSIT 12,500.00 /'Q/FF{s .
JUNZ9 2007 2ND DEPOSIT 25,000.00 N QQ/\
%30?9 FINAL PAYMENT 89,000.00
NOV7 2007  VARIOUS 4,125.00
DEC11 2007  INTEREST 27.500.00  158,125.0
12.5%
79,062.5
MAY21 2008  PRO.TAX.INSURANCE,MORGATGE REN., 2,862.34
AUG4 2009  PROPERTY TAX 809.98
OCT2 2011 SHORT ON INTERESTINS. UTILITY 3,041.54
MARZ6 2012  INSURANCE,PROPERTY TAX 1,125.48
MARO4 2013 TAX.JNS.,RENEWAL FEES,SHORT ON iNT. 2.602.73
ol INT. INS. APPRA. FINACIAL 3,483.67
TOTAL 172,050.74 56,025.4

Meeting July 15, 2014 with Aruna regarding Transfer Price (Later meeting with Pam)

o .
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M Gmall Satim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

Revised expenses for 20 acres

Salim Lalanl <salimiaia@gmail.com> Wed, Aug 3, 2016 at 9:04 PM
To: murad tejpar <tgjparm@gmail.com=

Cc: Noor Noorani <suinogr@hotmaii.coms, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Jessie Lail <jessie@indevelopments.com>.
Gurpreet Lail <gurprestiaii@gmail.com>

Hello Murad,

| noticed that under accounting charges, 1827 is mentioned. There are three projects in that company, your renlz_a!
property, another project where there was a profit of 100,000 ( accountant is writing off loses of Spring Bank Pfcﬁect
against that } and the Springbank project. 1/3rd of accounting charges should be applicable to springbank project.

During the last meeting where Gurpreet was taking minutes of the meeting ( minuies not received) it was requested that
you should provide us the details of the accounting and taxation and also coupie of occasions before it was requested
that the detailed notes recelved from the accountant should be circulated.

On the other note, the accounting charges of 1800 is on the higher side as in the NORTH EAST CALGARY we can gaslly
get done this work at around 1300 /1400 maximum. The work will iake only take maximum of 8/9 hours and the hourly

bitting is maximum 150 in North East. Also this is a generai practice when more than partners are involved to change the
Accountant to have more transparency.

Thera are other expenses &iso mentioned in the statement, kindly email us the scanned copies of the bills/details for
other expenses.

Regards
Salim Lalani

(i)n Wed, Aug 3, 2016 at 2:45 FPM, murad tejpar <teiparm{@gmail.com> wrote!

Murad
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M Gmail Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

SPRING BANK SHAREHOLDER DETAILS

Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Thu, Nov 8, 2018 at 1:02 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>

Cc: Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <sulncor@hotmail.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>,
Mahmood 403 273 5132 Marlin Travel -Open 7 Days <mahmood@thinktravel.ca>, Mahmood Tejpar
<mahmood.tejpar@gmall.com=

Hi <Murad,
My question is the shareholding in the "Spring Bank Project”. When we are going to get the past seven ygars tax
statement and other accounting details and project wise breakup.

When we are calling a meeting between us as questions regarding the accounting, change of accountant, observation in
the information sent and our congerns about the project
{Quoctad text hidden]

58 .
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M Gmail Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

1178929 Alberta Ltd

Salim Lalanl <salimlala@gmail.com> Thu, Jun 13, 2019 at 10:17 PM

To: Aruna Lalani <arunalalani@gmall.com> ) .

Cc: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Noor Noorani <sy|noor@ho’(mall.com>.
Gurpreet Lail <gurprestlail@gmail.com>, Jessie Lall <jessie@indevelopments.com>, Paul Dhaliwal

<pauldhaliwal 1@gmail.com>

For tomorrows meeting, regarding contribution from the shareholders, the attached trial balance from the accountant
would be very helpful. This trial balance highlights equity contribution from the shareholders. Further details we could
discuss during the meeting.

The shareholding % age is :

Murad and Mehmood 12.5% each

Noor and Sulaiman  12,5% each

Karim 12.5% each

Salim 12.5% each

Gurpreet and Jessie 12.5% each

We need to have complete clarlty on the VOTING RIGHT AND%AGE SHAREHOLDING also as the Invesiment in the
above project was made on certain understanding.

Salim

[Ouated taxt hidden]
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AFFIDAVITOF -

d? /o /a./z/
SWORN BEFORE ME THIS. 4. DAY
or AN Lhorrersren — A.D 202..2-

cnmaiii" £R FO 'Ki"?’iiiiiiii'i'dh e
HEP VINOE OF ALBERTA "serer

T s s

B T e

Christopher Kozonz
A Commussioner for Oaths
in and for Alberta

My Cemmiseion Expires Juné 21,20

Trial Balance from Accountant Aruna
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i Salim Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com>
M Gmail atim @

14178929 Alberta Ltd

Aruna Lalani <arunalalani@@gmail.com> Tue, May 2, 2017 at 10:57 AM

To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com> . ]

Ce: Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Salim lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>, Noor Nooran <sulngor@hotmail.com=,
Gurprest Lail <gurpreetiail@gmail.com>, Jessie Lail <jessie@indevelopments.com=, Paul Dhaliwal
<pauldhaliwal1@gmail.com>

Dear Muradbhai,

As per your request, kindly find attached herewith Trial Balance for past years. Let me know should you
have any questions.

Have a wonderful day!
Best regards

Aruna Lalani, CPA, CGA
Tel,: (403) 580 0015 x 201
Fax: (403) 580 0012

On Wed, Apr 18, 2017 at 11:49 PM, murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com> wrote:
{Quoted text hiddan]

3 attachments

= ;?(7;\32013..:&

E 117AB2014.pdf
7K

= 1;:{7;\3201 5.pdf
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01121119
Accrual Basis

Type Date

Num  Adj

2500 - Loan Payable
2520 - Loan-Karim Kaba-12.5% 20 Acres
Deposil 1172342017
Depaosit 1272072017

Total 2520 - Loan-Karim Kaba-12.5% 20 Acres

2530 r Loan-Salim Lalanl~12.5%-20 Acre
Deposlt 19123/2017
Deposlt 12/07/2017

Total 2530 - Loan-Salim Lalani-12.5%-20 Acre

2840 - Loan-Noorant Invest-25% 20 Acre
Depasit 11/2372077
Deposit 12/08/2017

Total 2540 - Loan-Nooranl Invest-25% 20 Acre
Tatal 2500 - Loan Payable
TOTAL

1178929 Alberta Ltd
Transactions by Account
As of April 30, 2018

Name Memo Cly Split
Daposit 1060 - Bank ..,
Deposit 1050 - Bank ..
Daposit 1050 - Bank ...
Deposit 1050 + Bank ...
Depesit 1050 - Bank ...
Deposit 1080 - Bank ...

S;X’)%%h— 2=

Deblt Credit Balance
376,832.94
94,203.86
198,30 04,402.16
w25 s
0.00 329.55 84,533.41
94,203.16
198,30 94,401.46
_ was | sasent
0,00 329.55 94,532.71
188,425.92
396.50 188,822.51
262.50 189,085.01
Q.00 659.09 189.08?&1
0.00 131819 3785193
0.00 1,318.19 378,151.13
Page 1
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Agcryusl Basls

Type

Oste Num

1620 - Acc Dep » O¥ice Equipment
Towm! 1620 ' Age Oap - Orflce Equipment

1250 - Loan recalvable

1300 Loan roc.-101 103064 Senkalshaws
Tolgl 1300 - Loan rec,-101 163006 Seskaicnows
2821 - Lown - Paul Dhaliwal

Total 2621 - Loan - Payl Dhabwal

2622  Loan » Pau Lol

Total 2622  Loan - Payl Lad
2823 - Loan » Peyt Lall

Dspioan 51202011
Depasit Ll
Ceposil e
Qeposit 62011
Doposit arrfzen
Deposht 101412011
Transier 12/Gre01
Teanstes 183012
Transfes annmg
Tiaraiet nien2
Trangter 2/8/2012
Tranater 4282012

Total 2623 - Lhans - Paul Lei

2651 - Laen - Gujras investments
Total 2861 Loan - Guyras Invesimenis
2652 - Lon Mumtazall

Yotal 2832 - Loan Mumazall

1280 - Loan recelvabie - Other

Tolal 1260 - Loen reseivable - Other

Tota! 1286 - Loan recelvabls

2000 - AP
203 + hilgreal payeble-8/H Loins

“Tolg 2030 + interest payable-8/H Loans
2040 - Accounts Payobis - Accrusle
Toreh §040 « Acoounts Payabie - AcCIuals

2200 - GST/HIT Payable
Deposit 11772011

Toiah 2200 - GETMHET Paysble
2000 + A/P - Other
Total 2000 - AP - Dinar

Total 2000 AP

2100 - Payroll LlnbfiRtias

Totat 2100 « Payroll Liablithes

2130 - Credil Card -

‘Total 2430 - Gradit Card

2180 Weges & Bonuaes Payabie

Tots! 2160 Wages & Bonusea Payabie
2270 - Dopoait-20 Acres10408607 AB-Gaod
Tetal 2270 - Deposil-20 Acreal04B607 AB-Good
2300+ ¥soma Tax Peyable » Feceral

Totat 2300 - Income Tax Payable - Fadaral
2310 - incorne Tax Paysits - Albarin

Total 2310 - ingome Tex Paysble - Albeda

2500« Laan Fayable
2610 + Loan paysbis-Noorani

Yorai 2510 + Loan payabla-Noorani

2320 < LoRn-Kasi KBbg-12.5% 20 Acres

Tota! 2520 - Laan-Keilm Kabe-12.5% 20 Acres
2530 - Loan-Salim Laland-12,.5%-20 Acre

Yotal 2530 « Loan.Saim Lalank-12.45'%-20 Acre
2540 - Loan-Nooran! Inves1-28% 20 Acre

Total 2540 « Loan-Noaean| 1avest-25% 20 Acra
2550 - Lean payabie-10a4607 AB-Good Ne
Total 2580 - Losn payabie- $049607 AB-Good Ne

1178929 ALBERTALTD
General Ledger

Ad) Name

As of April 30, 2012

Memd

Spilt

Freseiver Ganeral

Depostt - Cash
Deposit - Har..
Daposil
Daposit
Dapost
apdst

Hapal Lait
Hampal Lail
Funds Transiet
Funds Transler
Funds Trensfer

1640 - Bank - 8.
1045 - Bank - 5 ..
1040 - Bank . 5.
1040+ Bark « S.
1040 - Bank  S..
1940 Bank - 5.
1050 - Bank - F
1050 - Bank . F.
1050 - Band - F.
1050 - Bank « F .,
1060 - Bani - F.-

Horpal Lak 1050 - Bank - F .

Em)en 2.2

Geadit

o0

P )

0.00

G5T Retund 1050+ Bank - F...

26.130.66

PR

26,730.00

565.39

0.00

$66.39

Balanes

000
coo

200,810.21
163,522 78
163522.79
0.00
0,06
008
(R
37,287 42
34787 42
33.251.42
28,957 42
26,657 42
20,357 42
16,087 42
16,357 42
14,637 .42
12,732 47
12,99% 42
12,307 42
10,857 42
10,557 42
0.00
ooo
Q00
oce
ogo
0.0

R

1714080 N

49,394 61
-48,088.80

-49,9€0.00
gca
g.00

565,32
8,00
0.60
0.00

a.0¢

6.00

66539

-45,980.00
0.0¢

000

oR0

0.00

o0o

oo

-1 90000
-1,000.060
Q.00
<00
0.00

0.0

-314,25¢.00
000

a0
<79.062.50
-70,062.50
-15,082,50
-78,062 50
-150.426.00
-156,125.00
0.00

0.0¢

Page 8
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3:13 PU 1178928 ALBERTA LTD
rorcaz General Ledger
Actrusl Gnais Ag of April 30, 2012
Typs Date Num Ad) Name Mrmo qplit Debit Credll Balance
2880 - Loan paysbls - Haldl Lacey g.oa
Totas 25860 - Loan payatle - Held! Lacey 58
2663 - Loan - Noorard Sulsmen & Noor ooe
Total 2853 + Loan - Nogranl Sulernan & Noo: 000
2500 « Losn Payable « Gther 000
Tola) 2500 - Loan Peyatie - Other e PR H___...“.._M.WEE_O
Totel 2360 Loan Payabls -316.250.00
2559 B/H -110,084.53
2600 - Sharahoidary Loan-Mahmoad ~310.813 88
Transler SiafEe1 Funds Trangl.. $050 - Banx - F.. 100.00 -310.313.60
Cepgosit B/2/2011 Deposh- Man . 1040 Beni- 5. 1,808 00 31241368
Transter 2042011 Fonda Trenglor 1050 Bank - F. 1,000,600 AN341308
Transter RO Funds Tranater 100 Bank - F.. 2,000.00 31541366
Transter 128/2011 Funds Trongles 1050 Bank - F 4,300.00 318,713,686
Tranater B/3172011 Funds Transter 1080« Bank - F.. 4.309,00 -124,013.66
Deposit 10/8/2011 Cha daposk 50 - Bank = F o 2.600.00 -328,013.68
Transter 12N Funds Transler Y050 Bank - F.. 1.000.08 -321,013.66
Transfer 12/6/201% Fungs Transfer 10506 Bank - F... 200.00 327,213 86
Transler 12/30/2011 Funds Transter 1050 Bank - F... 322500 -330,538.66
Transia 1/3002042 Funas Trensder 1080 Bank - F... 232500 +332,863,66
Tranafer 2i26r22 Funds Trangfer 1050 Bank - F... 1,700.00 +334,683.56
Teanster /a2 Funds Yeansl..  §050- Bank - F.. 1,700.00 106,263 88
Transfat 3anfa012 funds Tranef.. 1050 Bank-F.. 1,700.00 -1ar .963.3(;
Yransfer 4250012 funds Transfer 1050 Bank - F . 1.760.00 -339-55‘3-BT
General Joumns] 402012 114 Racord intore.,, 1220 204 Mor 29,8557 968,319 8
Yoiai 2600 Bhareholdars Loan-Mahmaod 0.00 67.505.11 -468.316.57
2510 - Sharehslder Loans-Mursd Tejpar -J11,083 45
Deposd TN 42011 Deposit 1040 - Bank - 8. 1,306.00 -312363. 46
Total B610 - Sharsholger Loans-Murad Tejpar 0.00 130000 312,964.45
2620 - Sharahalgar Loans-Gurprest Lall -68,177 42
Doposit 19/14/2011 Dapasit 1040 - Bank - B... 2,00004 90117 42
Transier 1/818012 Pawan Dhaliv .. 1050 - Bank - F.. 160000 -gL.977.42
Trangler A5[0012 Lah 1040 - Bank - S 1,746.00 -3 627 42
Total 2620 - Sharannlder Loans-Gurprest Lall 000 5,350 00 -93, 58T 42
2630 - Sharghalder Loens-Jasgril Lail oao
Torl 2630 - Shareholder Loans-Jasprt Lait 068
2599 * §M . Other 000
Tote 2496 + 8/H « Tther 0.00
[
Tola) 2599 - S/ 0.00 84.155.71 774,210.24
2800 - Bank Loans +2000,080.00
2010 Morigege - 170 - Margen Rlae -1,080,000.00
Ganere Journal 3172011 33 Recard intera... 5410 Intorast . . 25.00 -1,000,025.00
General Jourmal 5/a1/e61 34 fecord nteta..  §410 - Interast - 25.00 -£,090,050.00
Gensral Jowrnal 10h/2011 109 2410 « Inlgtest .. 25.00 -1,060075.00
Ganarsl Jownal 10/5/2011 110 Late charge ... 5410 - Interest . 75.00 +1,090,000.00
Gengeal Joyrnal 18/31/2011 o4 facord inters,,, 5410 - ntarest . 3000 -1 090.,030.00
Qenarsl Journal ajenz 12 5410 - Intarost . 30.00 +4,080 000.00
Total 261G - Mongage - 170 - Morgan Rise 105.00 105.00 -1,090,000.00
2620 - Morlgags - BSO - 20 Acros -315,050.00
Ganeral Journal 82541011 7 Lgte chaige 8., 5410 Inprest 25.00 -210,075 00
Genarai Journal 10/5/201 1 101 Latachergaw.., 5410 inlpres .. 75.00 -910.000.00
Ceneral Journal 14283011 1093 Latocharge 8.  S41¢- Interast .. 3000 -£10,030.00
Generst Journsd 171672012 100 Revergal late .. 5410 latarast ... 30.00 ___soc000
Total 2320 - Morigage « 850 - 20 Acres - 105 60 54.00 810,000 00
2800 ' Bank Loans « Dther ooe
Yotal 2600 - Bank Lasna - Othar voa
Total 2800 Bank Lo#ns 210.60 160.00 -2,606,000.00
24900 « Relsted parties -270,647.46
2700 Lo pay-Bedaglo Homes-relatad 270,647 45
Chaque TR St Trangte: wanstetto 828 1050 -Bank - F 2.000.00 -268,847 43
Cheque 12011 Bimt Transte: translar to 828 1050 - Bank « F.. 2.000.00 -286.047 45
Trangher 2R Funds Transfer 305G - Bark - F.. 353.87 +267.001.32
Cheque 728011 Strny Transter transfes o B28 1050 - Bank - F .. 37e.go0 -266,631.32
Transtar 912011 Funds Transfer 1050+ Bank - F... 18.07 -266,646 39
Cheque 9//2011 006 Revanua Canada 1050 - Bank - F.. 2,000.00 -£64,649.30
Chique 10/872011 06 Ravenus Canads 1050 - Bank - F.. 2,000.00 262,649,389
Cheque 11/8/2011 8y Hevenue Canpda 1030 Bank - F 2,000.00 -200.549.39
Cheque 12/31/201 208 Recohver General 1080 - Bank - F... 2,000.00 4258,540.39
Cheque 12042 a7 Aryna N. Laleni Frot....  Batiagin 1050 * Bank - F.. 1,185.00 -257,484. 38
Cheque 1/8/8012 %08 Reosiver General 1050+ Bank - F... 2,000.00 -255,484 39
Chedque aarm2 210 Recaiver General 1050 - Bank - F... 2,000,00 +253,494.39
Cheque afalzoie o914 Revenug Cansda 1040 -8ank-F... 2.000.60 -251,494,30
Chegue 1172612 812 Revenue Canata 1040 - Bank - F... 2,000 00 -249 454,38
Ganersl Journal 41302012 1311 Reconghe Iate., 5410 Interesi .. 11.92 .246,506.31
Toleh 2700 Loon pay-Bellagio Homes-related 21.526.00 383,86 -248,536.01
Page b
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1178929 Alberta Ltd.
Year End: Aprll 30, 2010 Prepared by |Reviswed by GL-4
Ganers! Ledger
Date; 5/M/2008 To 4302010 as RS
19731/2010 1043472010
Name Date Number Reference Source Annotatien Debit Cradit Balance
Close (810,000.00)
238 Loan - First Galgary Morgans Opening {1,080,000.00}
To record inferest and other 473012010 g Al 23,249.67 (1,086,750.33)
paymants for the year.
Toracord Interast and oihar 4302015 10 Al 73,24887  (1,080,000.00)
payranis [or the year.
To corract petty cash. 443042010 12 A 50.00 {1.088,950.00)
Change 23,289,687 23,248,687 50.00
Clase 11.088,850.00)
739 Loan - First Calgary Aspen Opening {1,1480,758.00)
To record sale of 133 Aspen Ridge. 7/3172008 1 Al 1,143,406.5¢ 2.666.54
To record Inlares! on morlgags. F131/2009 2 Ad 2,656.54 aaa
Chonge 1,143,406.54 2,656,54 1,149,750.00
Close .00
240 Loan - Noaranl Suleman & Nooruddin Opening [11,600.00)
241 Loan - Nooran] 20 acres Qpening {158,125.00)
2432 Loan - Karim Ksva 20 acreé Opening (158,125.00)
243 Loan - Karim Kaba Opening 0.60
To record bank deposis up 1o July 71312000 3 Ad 1,651.98 [+,851.99)
2009,
Change 0.00 1,851.98 [1,851.99)
Close (1,851.80)
244 Loan - Sallm Latan| Opening 0.00
To record bank deposits up 1o July 7312008 3 AJ 1,851.99 (1,851.09}
2008,
Chenge 0.00 1,861.99 [1,851.82)
Close 11,851.98)
245 Loan - Nooran) investmants Opening 0.00
To record bank deposits up to Juty 7131/2009 3 Al #.882.34 {2,662.24 )
2008,
To record bank tepasils from 412072010 7 Ad 809.88 (3.672.32)
Ausgusl 2008 to Aphl 2610,
Change 000 3.672.32 {3,672z}
Close (3,872.32)
248 Loan - 1049807 Albera Lid. Opening 0.00
Ta record benk dopaslis from 4/30/2010 T Al 3,000,00 £3,000.00)
August 2008 tc April 2010,
Chnage 0.00 3,000.00 {3.060.00})
Cloae {3,000.040)
241 Loan - Heldi Lacay Opealng 0.00
Ta recard bank dapgsits from 4130/2010 7 A 1,060.00 {1,000 C0)
Augus! 2008 to Apdl 2010,
Chanpe .00 1,000.00 {1,080.00)
Close {1,0600,00})
248 Loan - Quinncorp Opentug 0.00
To record bank deposiis from 4/30/2010 7 AJ 7.524.55 (7,524.55)
August 2008 lo Aprll 2010.
To ragord Quinncorp expenses paid 4/AN2010 24 Ad 7,524.55 0.00
by 1178928 Albsnia Lid.
Chauge 7,524.56 7,524.55 0,00
Close 0.90
255 Loan - Mahmood Opening 9.00
To record bank payouts from August 473072010 8 A 20,000.00 20,000.00
2608 16 Apri 2010,
Ta record bank payouts and 43012010 1 Ad 3386285 {13,862.84)
srierzeld
5:08 PM paga S
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1178929 Alberta Ltd.

Yaar End: Apell 30, 2010 Prepared by |Reviewed by GL-5
General Ledger —
Date: §1/2000 To 4/30/2010 RS RS

wrais2ne bo1031z010

Name Date Number Reference Source Annotatien Deablt Credlt Balance

intergst for the yesr.

To selimale interast paid an 413042010 13 AJ 17.803.30 (30,058.16)
cemmarelal savings loan.
T adjust bank balanca for missing 4302010 14 AJ 17,681,235 (13,374.80)
siaiements.
To recerd interast paid on Morgans 4/30/2010 15 AJ 18,672.26 (33,047.05)
loan.
Tu record rental Income for 20 4/30/2010 28 Ad 15,000.00 (18,047.03)
Acras.
Change 5£2,591.315 70,634.40 (18,64T7.05)
Clase (18.047.05}
260 Bank Loan (Non Currant) Opentng 8.0t
262 Daterred Income taxos Dpening 980
287 Common shares Opening (100.00)
148 Incoms texon payable-federal Openlrg 93,805.99
To record hank payouls up to July 713112008 4 Al 1,604.01 95,411.00
31, 2008,
Tarecoid GST ramittance adjusled 41302010 6 Al 56,428.71 38,982 29
from corporate tax refund,
To record corparata tax refund 44302010 20 AJ 38,011.14 {28.85)
depasiced in Ballagia's ascount,
Tao reeord intarest on taxes. 4130/2010 23 A 26.85 o000
Change 1,832,865 95,439.85 (#3.808.99}
Close .00
289 Preforred shares Openiag 0.a0
280 Incomn taxas payable-provinglat Cpenlag 36,488.00
Toretord bank depasiis irom 4130/2010 T A 36,487.36 d.64
Augusl 20089 1o Aprll 2010,
Torecord !nlerast on Prov Taxas. 413042010 19 AJ 064 aod
Charge 0.06 36,468.00 {36,468.00)
Close 0.60
284 Retalned Earnings - beginning Cpaning {151,087.87}
297 Dlvidends Opening .00
201 Selag Opening 1 0.00
To racord sals of 133 Aspan Ridga. 71312009 1 A 1,818.047.82 (1,818,047 82)
Change 6.00 1,619,047.62  (1,619.,047.62)
Ciese (1.519,047.82}
302 Sales disgounts Opening 0.00
300 Other earlngs Op;ing 0.0¢
Ts recard bank payouls and 4/30£2016 11 Al a7e (378}
interes for the year,
To record bank payouts and 4/30/21Q 11 Ad .70 (7.a8}
interes! for the yaar,
To ratord rental income far 20 4/30/2010 8 Al 15,000.00 (15.907.48)
Anres
Change 0.0 15,007.49 {15,007.48)
Close {1%,007.48 )
304 tterast incorrie Opealny o0
401 Opening Inventory Opening 0.00
402 Purchases Opening a.00
To regord cosi of aales, 413072010 22 AJ 1,547.566.53 1,547 .566.60
Te racord eniry ralating ta 443072010 5 Al 29,532.58 1,519,933 88
a¢oounts payabie reversal for Soiroccos.
BME2011
£:08 PM Page &
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T80

FH

54

reo

3762

s

3360

3390

3580

4010

4018

4016

4930

4040

4140

4110

4120

4126

4130

414

#148

Flrst Cuigury 16 Acepn

First Calg « Margans Riss Lean
08/C1£2008  prw for toan 502 megn fse
00/01/2008  payment lor loan 50 mrgn Hie
09/0472008 dep from migensrisa draw
10/44/2008  ierast pmi for lsan #501-morgen nse
0B/30/2008 Ruy & corr eniry for 501
06ID1/2008 Rev & corr endry for S04
10/04/2008 Rev & cor enlty far 501
\Di04/Z008  Cotiaction fei for 50t mignese
10/C4/2008 Revicor enly for cofactian fee
10F04/2008  colleclion fes
14/4B/2008 Loan adv lor 3501 madganriae
03i31/2000 Lean Advance Morpan Rise
IO/D4MIO0R  REV ENTRY H3TFOR §/C
10/0412008 CORR OF CHRGS

First Caigazy 131 Aspen
DB/0472008 Draw for 133 Aspan
Q7/20/2008  paynent for loen 502 133 aspan
OROTA2008 Loan adv for aspan 41h drow
06/3072008 prd for loan 502 aspen
£9/30/2008 pmt lar loaun 507 aspen
10/31/2008  Interest pr for loan 502 Aspen
O7/A0/2008 cav B cerr aniry for joan5T2
0B/30/008 Rev & com entry for 502
QUAIOOB Rev & corr anwry far 502
3043472008 Rav 8 sorr entry lor 302

Nowmnl Suleman & Naoruddin

Noorani- 20 Agres

farim Kabs 10 Acres

Cammon Shares

Preferred Shares

Retalnes Eamings - Provious Year

Okotoks Projech

10 Aspen Projact

16 Aspan Meadows

Contriet B

Contract &

Construciicn Management

Residentlal - New Projects

Resldential - Renovations

Rasldentia] - Repairs

Gommerclal - New Projects

Commerclal - Renovationa

Camemescial - Repsire

bank st
bank st
bank stml
Bank sim
JE 85
JE 104
JE 121
Bank st
Bank stmi
Dank etml
Bank simt
Bank Stelamanl
BANK STMT
BANK ETMT

Bank shmi
fank st
Pank stmt
bank sinft
bank stmi
Hank sl
JE B3
JE 68
JE 113
JE 128

[:——XH)P;H

JBs

Jioo
401
H
132
J133
J13a
138
e

APPROVED
By SP al 1,43 pin, Jan 13, 2010
Q.00
561,533.00
3.07847 0.00 578 454,63
307647 1] 575,376,068
opo 24860200  BI4E7BEE
4,130 00 ocod B0 Béd U6
002 3,076.47 423,926.53
0.60 3.0718.97 827 005.00
0.00 413000 831,135.00
25.00 [1+0] 231,110.00
el 26.00 B31,135.00
0.ea 2500 831,160.00

Jiw
4145

4207
Jiue

JB§
Jad
80
g8
4112
J128
J128
28
J139
Jim

Q.00 13371500  B84,BI6.00

ooo  H15T7118 106084518

25.00 QL0 108082118

2% 37 000 1,080.585 81
WaB1d 50842512

571,970.00

00 20638000  BEG,360.00
4387.08 Q00 asi gtz
ooo 28438000 1,126.382.91
5890.28 0o0 113071202
6038.81 oo 112887381
5,403.37 oo 1,119,180.44
0ao 4,387 08 4,123.567.5
0.00 5p50.20 112921782
.00 600681 113525663
0.00 5,483.07 1.140,780.00

e e
21,568.58  %90,349.56

11,800 80

158 125.00

168,12500

100.90

0.0

561,861.07

0.00

000

000

b.00

0.00

n.oo

0.00

.00

0.00

0.0

b oo

.00

23

rc

RN
e

. 300.7

Cr

Gr

Cr

cr
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cr
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1178929 Alberta Ltd.
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GL-4

Year End: Aprll 30, 2010 Praparad by Reviewed by
General Ledger
Date: 5112069 To 41302010 RE RS
10/31/2020 1aryif010
Name Date Numbsr Referance Source Annotation Dablt Credit Balance
Clate (910,000.00)
238 Loen - First Calgary Morgans Qpening (1,099,000.00)
Tg record Intarast and other 413062019 10 Ad 23.249.67 (1,086,750 a3
paymenis for the year,
To recerd Invarast and oihar 413012010 10 Al 23.24887 1) 090,000.00}
paymenis for ihe yaar.
To gorrec! petty cash, 473012010 12 Ad 50.00 (1,089,860.00)
Change 23,299.67 23,249.67 ) 50.00
Close {1,089.952.00)
239 Loan - First Celgary Aspen Opening 1,140,759,00)
Ta recerd gale of 133 Aspan Ridge. 713112009 1 A 1,143,408,54 2,856,564
To recard inferest on Mangage. 743112008 2 Al 2,658.54 0.00
Change 1,143,406.54 2,656.54 1,440,750.00
Chase 0.00
240 Loan - Neorani Suleman & Nooruddin Opening (11,600.00)
241 Loan + Noorani 20 acres Opening (158,125.00)
242 Loan « Karim Kaba 20 acres Opening {158,425.00}
243 Loan - Karim Kaba Opening 0.00
Yo tecard bank deposits up lo July 7i31/2000 3 Ad 1,851.99 {1,851.99)
2000,
Chanrge 0.00 1,851.98 (1,851 5e}
Close {1,851.99)
244 Loan - Seiim Lalari Openlug 0.00
To rectrd bank depasits up lo Juty 71312009 ] Al 1,861.98 {1,851.89)
2009.
Change 0.00 1,851.98 15.851.90}
Ciote 11.851.98)
248 Loan - Nooran! lnvestments Opening 2.00
To racord bank deposits up la July i51/z008 3 Al 2488234 {2,862 34 )
2008,
Te record bank deposits from 41302010 T Al 808,88 (3.872.32)
August 2008 10 April 2010,
Change 0.00 4,672,32 (h872.32]
Close (3,872.32}
24§ Laan - 1040607 Alborta Ltd. Opening b
Ta recurd bank deposils from AI30/2010 7 Al 3,000.00 (3,000.00)
Auguat 2008 to Aprit 201 0.
Caange 0.00 3,000.00 {3.000.00)
Close {3.000.00)
247 Loan - Haldl Lacey Opening 0.00
Ta regard bank depasits fom 41302010 7 Al 1,000.00 {1,0600.00}
Auygust 2008 to Aprit 2010,
Change 0.00 1,000.‘!0 {1,000.00)
Close {1,000.00)
248 |.oah - Quinneerp Openlng 0.60
To racord bank deposils fiom 443072010 T AJd 7.524.55 (7.524.65)
August 2008 10 Aprll 2010,
To recard Quinnearp expanses paid A130420H0 24 A 7.524.55 0.00
by 1178529 Albera Ltd.
Change T1,524.55 7,624.55 .60
Claie 0.00
258 Loan - Mahmood Opering 0.00
To racord bank payouts from Auguat 443012014 -3 AJ 20,000.00 20,000,690
2008 to Agril 2010,
To racord bank payowts end Ar3012010 1 Ad 33,962.05 (13,862.85)

8162011
5:06 PM

Poage s
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Separate Company for 20 Acre (Spring Bank Project)
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Wﬁ Gmail Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

MINUTES OF THE MEETING/DISCUSSION AT PLANNING DEPT ROCKY VIEW

Salim Lalanl <salimtala@grail.com> _ _ Tue, Nov 20, 2018 at9:53 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparmg@gmail.com>, mahmood@tajpar.com, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Mahmood Tejpar
<mahmoud.tejpar@gmail.oom:». Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmall.com>

Meeting at Rocky View  Novermnber 20, 2018

MT, NN and SL

1. Murad will provide all the accounting information requested so far by two months. NN and SL said take 10 days extra
and provide by January 31, 2019 and no more delays and excuses

2. Proper shareholding signed sheet is required for Spring bank so that if thers is a need of voting the issue of voting
percentage does not come up

3. As soon as Morgan Rise is sold in March /April 2019 Spring Bank Praject needs to be put In a separate company

4, Separating the Spring Bank pro'!ect I the key priority

—-——— - ——— = s
et Eoom=ogea o Eg=pad

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION WITH ROCKY VIEW PLANNING

A. No Area Structure Plan Is avaliable for our property so rezoning/ subdivision should not be expected in near fulure
B. Preapplication meeting with engineer can be held, They may charge 260%/hour. if questions through email, probahly
ho charges

C. Last application was made in 2007 /Rezoning thet was refused
D. A form was handed over for redesignation { attached)
E. About storm water issye an email can be sent
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Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

Fwd: 20 Acres

Jessie Lail <jessle@indevelopments.com>

Mon. Jul 22, 2019 at 9:25 AM

To: Noor Noorani <sulncor@hotmail.com>, Paul Dhaliwal <pauldhaliwali @gmail.com>, Karm Kaba
<karimkaba@gmail.com?®, "mahmood.tejpar@gmail.com” <mahmood.tejpar@gmal.com=, Salim latant
<salimlala@gmail.com>, murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Gurproet Lall <gurpreeﬂail@gmai|.c0m>

Good Moming,

| think its & great idea to separate the accounts, but thers is no mention of separating the mortgages and guaraniees for
the mortgage. If we can get ali of you on tifle for the 20 acres that would be great, and get all of you on the mortgage as
well. Please let me know if all of you wauld like for me to spear head this, if not please let me know who all of you would

like to get this done.

Thank you

Jessie {Jasprit) Lail
Chief Financial Officer
505 2157 Avenve SW Calgary AB T25 09
C,403,714.7571 % 403.209.3030

WWW.INDEVELOPMENTS.COM

This e-mail message (including attachments, if any) is confid

n ‘f

INDEVELOPMENTS

GROUP OF COMPANIES

g

in Sratems

ential and privileged. Any unauthorized

distribution or disclosure is prohibifed. Disclosure lo anyone other than the intended recipient does
nat constitute waiver of privilege.If you have recelved this e-mail in errof, please notify us and delete
it and any attachments from your computer system and records.

[Quoted taxt hiddan]
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EXHIBIT 26

ibution Request from shareholders
(Proportionately)

April 2, 2017

Equity Contr




20 Acres W1/2 L5D6,1/2
Tax, Insurance, imrovement & principle Interest

Dec 2016 to Nov 2017

insurance Oct 2016-0ct2017
preperation of Financial Apr 2016
Renewal Fees

property TAX 2016 short fall
property TAX 2017

Jensen Electric

Cmac Mechanical

ABC Septic

Total

Lail
Tejpar
Noorani
Lalani
Kaba

‘;;;;)\ \~§r§;;~{ :2_£5

P! Rent Difference Dweing
44,960 44,000 so60  $11,520
$1,856.25

5910

42,000

¢1,626.77

$3,410.04

$1,240

4295

$325

$23,183

$5,796
45,796
45,796
$2,897.88
$2,897.88
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Request for Equity Contribution Statement from
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M Gmall salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

SPRING BANK : TOO MUCH NON SENSE

Salim Lalani <galimiala@gmail.com= Mon, Aug 12, 2019 at 2:04 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com, Mahmood Te]par <mahmood@tejpar.com= '
Ce: Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmail.com>, Nooruddin Noorani <ash_noor@hotma11.com>

Murad/Mehmood,

if you refer to previous email from Gurpreet, it is very unclear that equity contribution from Karim/Myself
issue is settled or not. This is quiet surprising that you wrote in your email that everything is clear, but still if
she has any question, please write Karim and me amail about any additional information you need.

In our last meeting on june 14, 2019 at Ricky’s, Noor and myself had clearly said that we have lot of doubt
about equity contribution from you and Paul family. We need all the Bank Statement to verify that
proportionate equity contribution has been done. Paul is always saying that why 1am mentioning
commissions , because non-disclosure of commissions indicate that there was 2 vested interest of investing
in this project unprofessionally without due diligence. Murad you had real estate license how come you
ignore all the unprofessional things like not knowing about the storm water, not putting condition about
the possibility of sub division and still spending 14, 666 ( 11,766+2,900) . All the sane people spend this
money upfront for sure but always make this purchase conditional in the purchase agree ment. But since
you guys had other motives, you went ahead with this investment. Also hiding that report from us for @
year.

Negligence in contract for 40K and ending up paying 80K to Kimbeil also indicates the motive of investment.

As requested dozens of time, we need all the purchase documents, defay in non provision of those is
increasing more doubts.

We need to sign the equity contribution which | had emailed you many times.

Another thing which is mind boggling is the risk me and Noor are taking because of the short contribution
and delay in the mortgage payment by you guys. While meeting with Aruna when | saw the numbers, they
was no proportionate contribution frem you people and you made investments in saskatchewan project
from contribution this company. We need full documents and details. if the liguidation happens, only Spring
Bank shareholders are going 10 suffer in a higher proportion than you guys.

Gurpreet/lessie wants compensation for the mortgage the question is how much they have contributed???

To conclude, we are losing our patience and we have to take you to the arbitration board and set up
meeting between our families to solve this iil informed investment.

Please call meeting urgently and discuss all the above issues in person with all the statements

& 3]
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M Gma“ salim Lalani dsaiimlala@gmail.com>

SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

Salim Lalani <galimiala@gmail.com> Fri, Nov 22, 2019 at 4:39 AM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmood.tejpar@gmail.com>‘ Gurpreet Lail - Dhaliwal
<gurpreetiai@gmail.com, Jessie Lall <]Essie@indevelopments.com>. Paul Dhaliwal <pauldhaliwatl @gmail.com>

Cc: Nooruddin Noorani <suinoor@hotmail.com>, Karim Kaba <kar1mkaba@gmaii.com>

As suggested lets have a meeting on December 1, 2019 ( Sunday ) at 11:0 clock . Butwe { NIN/SN/KK/SL)

don't want to meet just for the sake of meeting without resolving issues highlighted in our Jast meeting at
Ricky's in fune 2018.

Before we meet, we need to do the following by November 26, 2019 so that we have one week available to
review the information supplied by you:

+ Equity Contribution by KK/SL

Murad has acknowledged in writing that Equity Contribution as reflected in the Balance Sheet
supplied by Aruna is correct and there is no short equity contribution by Karim/Salim. |f there is any
doubt in the mind of any shareholder, please put this thing in writing 50 that every thing is
documented and this issue is resolved for good

o Equity Contribution by Murad/Mahmood / Gurpreet/Jaisee

in the previous meeting it was made clear very explicitly that we nhave lot of doubt about the
proportionate equity contripution and the purchase price. We need the Equity Contribution Details {
in the form given by NN/SN) so that this details becomes part of the shareholders agreement and
each contributor signs the statement . We need all the Bank Statements so that we can verify that
contribution details reflected in the statement Is correct. There are lot of credibility issues as just
recently we received different contribution statement from mMurad and Gurpreet

« Increase in Mortgage from 4,800 to 7,200 because of default

The mortgage went up from 4,800 to 7,800 because of non-timely payment. Why should we suffer
because of default of others? During the meeting we want to agree the provisions which should be
part of the shareholders agreement so that defaulting sharehoiders be penalized and not others

we need to sign the Equity Contribution Details sheet and to discuss the Shareholders Agreement
and the future of the project, it will be extended meeting. We hope that each shareholder plans
accordingly

To conclude, send us the required information by Movember 26, 2019 s0 that we could review that
information before meeting on December 1, 2019 else .lthere is ho paint in meeting.

Salim /Noor/Karim /Sulaiman
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EXH | B IT 29 My Commigsion Expires June 21, 2028.7,

20 Acres Monthly Payment Default/Non Clarity in
Account

December, 2019
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M G ma il Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

SPRING BANK PAYMENT DEFAULTS

Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmall.com> Fri, Dec 13, 2019 at 1:30 FM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@grmail.com>, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmood@tejpar.com>

Ce: Karim Kaba <karimkaba@gmail.com>, Nooruddin Noorani <gulnoor@hotmail.com>, Jessie Lail
<jessie@indevelopments.com>, Gurpreet Lail - Dhaliwal <gurpreetiail@gmail.com>

Murad/Mahmood

Since the beginning of the project, it is marred with unethical practices{ commissions, possibly purchase
fraud, non-clarity in accounting, no transparency in contribution from Paul family/Tejpars}) and now we are
witnessing monthly payment defaults. Statements from you and from Gurpreet are not reconciled and you
guys are not making payments timely resulted in shooting of mortgage.

Please send us the updated payment positions as of to date as we want to make sure that spring bank
contributions are paid on time and we are not the only shareholders which are paying on time.

We are requesting again to provide all the documents as agreed in June 15, 2018 meeting at Ricky’s. Unless
the promised documents are not recieved, no need to meet in person.

SL/KK/NN/SL
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M Gmail Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

SPRING BANK: 20 ACRES

Salim Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com> . Tue, Aug 27, 2019 at 10:59 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Mahmaod Tejpar <mahmood@tejpar.com>, Jessie Lail
<jessie@indevelopments,.com>, Gurpreet Lail - Dhaliwal <gurpreetiail@gmail.com>

Cc: Nooruddin Noorani <suinoor@hotmail.com>, Nooruddin Noorani <ash_ncor@hotmail.com>, Karim Kaba
<karimkaba@gmail.com>

Dear Murad/Mahmood/Gurpreet/lessie ,

We met on August 27, 2019 to review the spring bank project and deciding what steps needs to be taken to
get all the required information which has been asked for seven years but no vail. We the 50% shareholders
{ Noor, Sulaiman, Karim, Salim) are reaily annoyed for not getting the required information despite scores
of reminders. In the last meeting, which was a single agenda meeting to discuss the equity contribution
from each partners and all the related proof. We the 50% shareholders have provided all the information on
the condition that we will get without any excuse access to all the relevant documents so that we are
satisfied that there is no hanky panky , the deal is transparent and the purchase price is what which has
been declared to us. The last meeting was held on June 14, 2019 at Rickys { Mcknight) almost about two
and half months still we have not received information from you guys and also no response to our email.
This is further creating doubts in each and every shareholders that the transactions has not been done
transparently and directors are hiding some thing.

We fail to understand that why we are not getting all the bank statements requested and ali the purchase
related documents so we at our end do the due diligence and clear our mind about the transparency and
the purchase price.

Another thing we want every shareholder to keep in mind very clearly that the equity contribution is as
follows in the spring bank and so is the voting rights:

1. Murad ..12.5%

2. Mahmood ..12.5%
3. Noor.... 12.5 %
4. Sulaiman ... 12.5%
5. Karim ...12.5%

6. Salim...12.5%

7. Jessie ... 12.5%

8.

Gurpreet... 12.5%

Each and every decision will be taken based on the above voting rights(majority)

In the next meeting each and every shareholder will give their official emaii address for this project
so that only the relevant people are circulated the project email. Meeting should only be attended
by the shareholder or proxy.

While going through the last minutes of the meeting circulated by the Gurpreet, it was not reflecting the
discussion which was held in that meeting. We have the complete audio of the meeting and it clearly
records what was discussed. The minutes s based on audio will be presented in the meeting and it will be

D

el

2 gg
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approved by the shareholders so that it is part of our recerd. In future also, each and every meeting will be
recorded | audio/video) so there is complete transparenty and minutes are not recorded with vested
interest.

In the past we the 50 percent shareholder paid each and every penny related to the spring bank on time as
requested, The way the accounts were camingled, and way the business related to the project was handled
unprofessionally , there is huge trust deficiency and we have decided to contribute our share only once you
guys have paid your proportional contribution and we have bank statement as a proof that proportionate
contribution has bee made in the bank. We will pay our contribution instantly.

WE met ( Noor/Sulaiman/Salim) with Murad’s dad and complained about the non-transparency and
unavailability of the accounts despite scores of reminders. He agreed that if there is noting to hide the
books should be opened to all shareholders. He also agreed that if accounts are comingled, the transactions
of the company should be available to the shareholders so that there is no doubt that there was a fraud or
unethical practice and everything is transparent.

As a matter of transparency, we want accountant to be changed and this will be decided by the
shareholders. Nor the guality nor the accounting fees are acceptabtle to every shareholder

in the next meeting, we need the signed declaration from ( Murad/Mahmood/Gurpreet/Jessie
) about the equity contribution in Spring Bank and once receiving that signed statement, we need to make &
one combined EQUITY CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT so that every shareholder has clarity.

In the previous email we clearly stated that the property should be listed so that we know the market price
and take the decision. In the coming meeting, we will take a decision on this one by consensus { Voting
Majority).

Regarding Commercial Rate , lets discuss how much has been contributed by four of you,
marking the assets to market, the financing structure of Morgan and Spring Bank and then
deciding the exposure of the shareholders. Nonetheless, listing has been suggested for long time.

To conclude, we should call meeting once we get all the above documents by the end of this week
{ by August 31, as in the last meeting Paul mentioned he has all the documents) . Once we get all
the documents and review the documents to our satisfaction we can set up meeting.

Salim/Noor/Sulaiman/karim
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M Gmail Salim Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com>

Salim Lalani: File Number 9047.1

salim Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com> Wed, Mar 17, 2021 at 6:03 PM

To: Justin Lambert <L ambert @bennettjones.com> ) )
Ce: Gurpreet Lail - Dhaliwal <gurpreetiall@gmail.com>, Paul Dhaliwal <pauldhaliwall @gmail .com>, Jessie Lail
<1essie@indeve]opments.com>

Regarding pending sale, what is the offer 777 We can match the offer { MyselffNooranis) .

Say if the offer is 1.21 M. we can pay Gurpreet /Jessie 25% share after taking out Servus Outstanding Morigage / Kimbal
Lacey Payments/ Notional Fees to Realtors etc etc.

This investment from Noorani/Kaba/Myself was based on Good Faith,

Lails and Tejpar could continue to seftle their problems in the court { though ideally everything is seftled now) we will
prefer that we settle the things amicably. | am sure as Gurpreet /Jessie ara professtonals , we ¢an come to a fair and
justifiable solution.

[Quoted text hidden]
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Purchase Offer for 20 Acres: 1.10 M
25% Equity of Gurpreet /Jessie

February 2, 2021
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salim Lalani Gaiimlala@gmail.com:v

¢ Gmail

Conference call

Saltm Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com> Tue, Feb 2, 2021 at 2:27 AM

To: zveriea@vogeiver}ee.com. Nicholas Mcilhargey <nmcllhargey@vogeiverjee.corn>

Cc: Noor Noorani <sulnoor@hotmail.com=, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@gmai!‘com>. murad tejpar <te]parm@gma'll.com>

Amongst us, we discussed the possibility of buying out the Lails to end the matter. The offer is at 1.1 Miliion doliars.
The details are as follows:

Objective of the Offer . The offer by Murad Tejpar ( MT) to take over the 20 Acres at approx..
500K was rejected by Lalls and they guggested 0 list the property. As per

Lails, the market pricé of 20 Acres is 1.2 Miliion dollars (Gross value)

. Though we still feel that the forced sales value will be between 900-
950K ( Net of Reattors Commission/Other Expenses) . 1o salvage the
project and 1o end the matter cordially and avoiding foreclosure
proceedings , We the 75% 20Acre project ownersfinvestors { Tejpars.,
MNooranis, Xarim Kaba, Salim Latan) are willing 1€ puy the Lails 25% equity
stake at the offer price of 1.1 Million

« We wili pay Lails 40 for their share of 25% in 20 Acres project

The basis for 40K t0 Lails is shown below)

20 Acres investors Portion The Offer Price for 20 Acres = 1,100,000
Based on Offer Price of 1.1
Million Less. Morigage {approx..) = (800,000)

Less: Kimbal Lacey Payables =(90,000)

.... E——1

210,000

Less. Realtors Cornmission = { 37,000)

Less: Lawyer Charges/Bank Gharges/

penalties/ Other Misc. =(13,000)

s e A

Batance Available to Investors

:::::::::

The batance avallable to investors is 160,000. As the Lails have 25%
interest, the Lails equity vaiue is calculated at 40,000 {160,000/4)

We feel that the above is a very genarous offer 1o end the matter.



e 2>
In the above offer, we tock the expenses on the lower side and are not
taking into account the opportunity cost of keeping the property on the
market for a minimum of 213 months, As there are Caveats on the property
also by different parties, this will scare the prospective outside buyers and
will result in lower offer. By buying out Lails, all these hassles could be
avoided

We need your opinion on the above offer

[Quoted text hiddan)

@ Offer of 1.1 Million for 20 Acres.docx
31K

G >
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IN THE MATTER OF AN ARBITRATION PURSUANT TO THE ARBITRA TION ACT
(ALBERTA), RSA 2000, c. A-43

AND IN THE MATTER OF A DISPUTE RELATING TO 1178929 ALBERTA LTD. ("117M)
BETWEEN:

MURAD TEJPAR AND MAHMOOD TEJPAR
(the "Tejpars")
-AND-
GURPREET LAIL AND JASPREET LAIL
(the "Lails")
(individually each, a "Party”, and collectively, the "Parties")

ARBITRATION AGREEMENT

AL N e =

L. Applicable Law and Application of the Arbitration Act (Alberta)

(8)  The arbitration shall be subject to and conducted in accordance with the Arbitration
Act, RSA 2000, c A-43 (the "Act”),

(b)  To the extent there is any conflict between the provisions of this Arbitration
Agreement (the “Agreement") and the Act, this Agreement shall prevail,

(c)  The arbitration shall be governed by the substantive law of Alberta and the federal
laws of Canada applicable herein.

2. Appointment of the Arbitrator

Sabri Shawa is hereby appointed arbitrator under this Agreement (the " Arbitrator") and
each Party accepts his appointment,

3 Place of Arbitration
The arbitration shall be conducted in Calgary, Alberta,
4. Submission of Dispute

(a) The Parties agree that submission to arbitration under this Agreement is sufficient
to give the Arbitrator jurisdiction in respect of the issues between the Parties, and
the particular relief sought by the Parties, as set out in the Parties' pleadings. For
clarity, the Parties do not submit to the jurisdiction of the Arbitrator in relation to
any other award or remedy, other than as particularized by the Parties' pleadings or
under this Agreement.
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) [n advance of the arbitration:
Q)] 117 shall assign the following lands to the Lails or their nominee:

(A)  Plan 0514055
Block 1
Lot 27
Excepting Thercout All Mines and Minerals
Area: 0.85 Hectares (2.1 Acres) More or Less
("Morgan's Rise"); and

Giy 117 shall assign the following lands to the Tejpars or their nominee:

(A)  Meridian 5 Range 3 Township 24
Section 5
The West Half of Legal Subdivision 6
Containing 8.09 Hectares (20 Acres) More or Less
Excepting Thereout the Roadway on Plan 6372JK, Containing
0.52 of an Acre More or Less
Excepting Thereout All Mines and Minerals
(the "20 Acre Land").

(c)  The parties wish to equalize the value received by the Lails and Tejpars from the
assignment of Morgan's Rise and the 20 Acre Land as set out above and, to that
end, the parties agree that:

(i) the fair market value of Morgan's Rise is $1,400,000.00 (the "Morgan's
Rise Market Value");

(1) the fair market value of the 20 Acre Land is $1,400,000.00 (the "20 Acre
Land Market Value™);

(iii)  the Lails shall be responsible for paying out the existing mortgage on
Morgan's Rise (the "Morgan's Rise Mortgage").

(iv)  the Tejpars shall be responsible for paying out the existing mortgage and
encumbrance on 20 Acre Land (the "20 Acre Land Mortgage™).

(v)  the difference between the Morgan's Rise Market Value and the Morgen's
Rise Mortgage is the value received by the Lails (the "LVR");

(vi) the difference between the 20 Acre Land Market Value and the 20 Acre
Land Mortgage is value received by the Tejpars (the "TVR"); and

(vii) the sum of the LVR and TVR form the notional value of 117 (the "117
Notional Value").

WSLEGALOSMT 0000 1\2534713Tv4
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(d)  The parties also wish to be paid all shareholder loans they are entitled to be repaid
and, to that end, the parties submit the following issues to arbitration:

)

(if)

The Tejpars are Claimants in respect of the following issucs and bear the
purden of proof with respect to them:

(A) What shareholder loans are owed by 117 t0 the Tejpars, if any, and
on what terms (the “Tejpars SH Loan Amount™)?

(B) What loans are owed by 1 17 to any of Karim Kaba, Salim Lalani, or
Noor Noorani, if any, and on what terms (the "Third Party
Loans")?

The Lails are Claimants in respect of the following issues and bear the
burden of proof with respect 10 them:

(A) What shareholder loans are owed by 11710 the Lails, if any, and on
what terms (the "Lails SH Loan Amount")?

{e) In light of the answers to each of these questions, the Arbitrator shall:

1

(i)

(it}

(iv)

™

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix}

direct a flow of funds from the Lails and the Tejpars, on ai equal basis, t0
Karim Kaba, Salim Lalani, or Noor Noorani in respect of any Third Party
Loans found owing to them by 117, if any, up to maximum of the 117
Notional Value;

subtract the value of any Third Party Loans paid by the Lails and the Tejpars
from the 117 Notional Value (the "117 Value"),

add the Lails SH Loan Amount and Tejpars SH Loan Amount (the "Tatal
SH Loan Amount");

divide the 117 Value by the Total SH Loan Amount (the "Factor™), which
Factor shall be capped at 8 maximum value of one:

multiply the Factor with the Lails SH Loan Amount {the "Lails SH Loan
Payable™);

multiply the Factor with the Tejpars SH Loan Amount (the “Tejpars SH
Loan Payable");

setoff the Lails SH Loan Payable and the Tejpars SH Loap Payable (the
"SH Loan Setoff Amount");

setoff the LVR and the TVR (the "WR Setoff Amount™); and
based on the SH Loan Setoff Amount and the VR Setoff Amount direct a

flow of funds from the Lails to the Tejpars of vice versa so that there are no

N
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further amounts owing between the Lails and the Tejpars in respect of the
shareholder loans and the value received from the assignments of Morgan's
Rise and the 20 Acre Land.

43 The Arbitrator shall reduce the net flow of funds to a judgment. If that judgment
has not been paid within 30 days, then Amarjit Kaur Lail and Mumetaz Ali each

post their 25% of the issued and outstanding common shares of 101103086
Saskatchewan Lid. ("101") as collateral for said judgment at an agreed value of
§*%* per share. Amarjit Kaur Lail posts her shares as collateral for any judgment |
granted in favour of the Tejpars. Mumetaz Ali posts his shares as collateral for any }
judgment granted in favour of the Lails. Any judgment unpaid after 30 days shall
result in the automatic assignment of that portion of all of the shares of 101 | |
necessary to satisfy the judgment. If the shares of 101 held by any party are
insufficient to satisfy any judgment owed by that person, then the judgment
creditor(s) may enforce the remaining unpaid portion of the judgment as a judgment
of the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta. The parties hereto represent and warrant |

\ that they currently are the beneficial and legal owners of their shares of 101, that ;
they own their shares of 101 free and clear of any encumbrances, and they have not ’
pledged their shares of 101 as security or collateral for any other debt or obligation.

5. The Role of the Arbitrator

(a) It is agreed and understood that the jurisdiction, role and function of the Arbitrator
shall be to hear and determine the issues and all matters of law, fact and procedure
incidental to the issues, and not fo act as advocate on behalf of any one Party. The
arbitrator shall not conduct, commission, receive, review or rely upon any analysis,
research, brief, memorandum or other materials which have not been prepared by
the Parties and submitted pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, without the prior
agreement of the Parties.

(b)  The Parties agree that the Arbitrator shall have the jurisdiction to decide all
preliminary, pre-Hearing, and post-Hearing matters.

6. Preliminary Meeting and Procedural Step Schedule

(a)  An initial pre-Hearing conference among the Parties and the Arbitrator shall be
scheduled for August 27, 2020 at a time agreed to by the Parties or set by the
Arbitrator for the purpose of discussing the procedures to be followed prior to and
at the Hearing, the periods of time apply to such procedures, the Hearing dates,
place and other physical arrangements, and all other matters necessary (o ensure the
efficient progress and completion of the arbitration.

(b)  The Parties shall endeavor to adhere to the deadlines for completing various
procedural steps in this arbitration as identified in clause 7 below.

(c) If necessary, the Parties may periodically update the deadlines in clause 7 by way

of Procedural Order with the consent of both Parties and the Arbitrator. If the
Parties cannot agree on said deadlines, the Arbitrator may impose such deadlines.

s }
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7. Procedural Steps of the Arbitration

The Parties have agreed that, subject to clause 8, the following steps have been or shall be
taken prior to the commencement of and following the completion of the Hearing in
accordance with the dates set out below, or as otherwise agreed by the Parties or directed
by the Arbitrator:

(a) Pleadings

(1) On or before September 4, 2020, the Parties shail deliver a Statement of
Claim in respect of those issues for which they are Claimants.

(ii) On or before September 11, 2020, the Parties shall deliver a Statement of
Defence in respect of any issues for which they are Respondents.

(b) Document Production

(1) Each Party shall submit to the Arbitrator and to the other Party all records
available to it on which it intends to rely during the course of the arbitration,
including any public records and those in the public domain, by no later

than September 25, 2020.

@i Following the exchange of records in clause 7(&)(), the Parties will have 15

days or on or before October 10, 2020 to request additional substantially

relevant and material documents or categories of documents from the other

Party. The other Party will have 10 days or on OF before October 20, 2020

to respond to the request. Any disputes about & Jdocument request will be
submitted to the Arbitrator.

()  The Hearing and the Right to Cross-Examine Witnesses

@) The Hearing will take place on November 26, 27 and 30, 2020. The case for
the Tejpars will be presented first 10 be followed by the case for the
Respondent.

(i1} Each Party may request the right to cross-examine at the Hearing any of the

witnesses whose writien sworn statement it has received pursuant to clause

7(c). Such a request must be made no later than 14 days in advance of the
Hearing.

(d) Questions to Discover Relevant and Material Information

(1 No oral discovery of witnesses shall take place, unless otherwise permitted
in accordance with clause Y1)

(i)  Ifrequired, a Party may apply to the Arbitrator for the right to conduct oral

discovery of a witness in advance of the delivery of Written Evidence as set
out below.
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(i)  Use of the transcripts of oral discovery, if any, will be governed by the
Alberta Rules of Court, Alta Reg 124/2010.

(e) Written Evidence

(i) The direct evidence to be given by each witness for a Party shall be
delivered by way of 2 written sworn statement, which will stand in the place
of any direct oral evidence to be given by that witness.

(i The Parties will deliver the written statements of their witnesses respecting
any matters for which they are Claimants by no later than November 6,
2020.

(ifi)  The Parties will deliver the written statements of their witnesses respecting
any matters for which they are Respondents by no later than November 6,
2020.

(iv)  The Parties will deliver any rebuttal statements in response of their
witnesses in response to any novel issues raised in the Respondent witness
statements by no later than November 13, 2020.

(f) Expert Reports

(i) The direct evidence to be given by each expert witness for a Party, if any,
shall be delivered by way of a written sworn statement, which will stand in
the place of any direct oral evidence t0 be given by that witness.

(ii)  The Parties will deliver the wriiten statements of their expert witnesses, if
any, for any maiters for which they are Claimants by no later than October
16, 2020.

(ifi)  The Parties will deliver the written statements of their expert witnesses, if
any, for any matters for which they are Respondents by no later than
QOctober 16, 2020.

{iv) The Parties will deliver any rebuttal statements of their expert witnesses, if
any, in response to any novel issues raised in the Respondent witness
statements by no later than October 30, 2020.

(g) Post-Hearing Written Argument

() The Parties will deliver written closing argument on all issues for which
they are Claimants by no later than December 11, 2020,

(ii)  The Parties will deliver written closing argument on all issues for which
they are Respondents by no later than December 11, 2020.

WSLEGAL\DS0471\00001\25347137v4 7
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(iiiy  The Parties will deliver reply wriiten closing argument by no later than
December 18, 2020

(iv)  Claimant writien argument and Respondent written argument will be no
more than 20 pages in length. Reply written argument will be no more than
5 pages in length.

(v)  The Written Arguments submitted by the Parties will have a maximum page
limit of 25 pages. The Tejpars’ Reply to the Lail's Written Argument, if any,
will have a maximum page limit of 10 pages.

(vi)  The Arbitrator may, at his discretion, request oral argument from the Parties
following the submisston of all written argument.

Timing

(a) The timing of the various steps to be taken prior to, during, and after the Hearing
will be as agreed to by the Parties in clause 7 of the Agreement. The Arbitrator has
discretion to alter the deadlines if necessary to allow any of all of the Parties a full

opportunity to present their case Or 10 respond to the case of the other Party.

(b)  The Parties agree to use their best efforts to ensure that the arbitration proceeds in
accardance with the dates identified in clause 7 of the Agreement. If 2 Party fails
to mect the time limits sct by clause 7, the Arbitrator shall determine what, if any,

consequences shall arise as a result.

Use of Documents at the Hearing

No records will be used in direct evidence OT cross-examination without leave from the
Arbitrator, unless such records are produced in accordance with clause 7(b) above or ar¢
produced to the other Party sufficiently in advance of the Hearing and the consent of the
other Party is obtained. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

The Award

(a) The award shall be delivered in writing to the Parties within 45 days after the
completion of all written and oral argurments, subject to any reasonable delay, and
will provide written reasons for the decision, which will address including the costs

of arbitration and all related matters.

(b The award will be final and binding on the Parties, subject to the right of appeal in
section 44(2) of the Act.

(¢)  Judgment upon the award may be entered by either Party in a court having
jurisdiction or an application may be made to any court for judicial recognition of
the award or an order of enforcement, as the case may be, subject to section 49 of

the Act.
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Costs

(a) Unless otherwise decided by the Arbitrator, the fees and other costs associated with
the Arbitrator will be shared equally by the Parties.

(b) Unless otherwise decided by the Arbitrator, each Party will bear its own costs,

12. Confidentiality Agreement
The Parties and the Arbitrator agree that the proceedings are confidential and all
information provided and received during the process shall be kept confidential by the
Parties and the Arbitrator.

13.  Documents Executed in Counterpart and Delivered by E-mail or Fax
The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement and alf or any of the documents to
be executed and delivered between them from time to time during the course of the
arbitration may be signed in counterpart and e-mailed or faxed and that copies of such
documents shall be treated as original documents and all electronic or faxed signatures
shall be treated as original signatures.

14, Effective date
This agreement shall be effective as of the  day of , 2020.

DATED at the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, this day of , 2020.

VERJEE & ASSOCIATES BENNETT JONES LLP

Per: Per:
ZUL VERJEE, QC JUSTIN LAMBERT
Counsel for Murad Tejpar and Counsel for Gurpreet Lail and
Mahmood Tejpar Jaspreet Lail
Witness: AMARJIT KAUR LAIL
Witness: MUMETAZ ALI
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Nicholas Mclihargey
Direct Line: 403.384.0308
e-mali: nmclIhargev@vogelverjee.com

Legal Assistant: Chery! Abbey
Direct Line: 403.384.0319
e-rmall: cabbev@voge!verjee.com

October 21, 2020 VIA EMAIL: salimlala@gmail.com
REPLY TO: DOWNTOWN OFFICE

Salim Lalani
1144 Falconridge Drive NE
Calgary, AB T3] 1A2

Dear Salim:

Subject: 1178929 Alberta Ltd.-
Qur File: 533653-2682

We represent Murad Tejpar and Mahmood Tejpar (the wrejpars”) in 2 shareholder
dispute relating to 1178929 Alberta Ltd. (the “Corporation"). The dispute has
interfered with the Corporation’s abllity to effectively function and foreclosure
proceedings have been filed by the Servus Credit Union (“Servus") agatnst the
Corporation’s mortgaged property-

The Tejpars and Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal and Jaspreet Lall {the v ails”) have agreed
to proceed with an arbitration to divorce their business interests and obtain
refinancing to retain controi of the mortgaged property including the 20 Acre lands.
The arbitration agreement currently envisions 2 division of the mortgaged property
owned by the Corporation to deal with foreclosure matter; however, as someone with
a financial interest In the land, your participation in the arbitration is required

to proceed.

we propose that you retain our office to represent your interests at the arbitration
so that this matter may move forward. The Tejpars are prepared to pay our fees and
want to ensure that your investments are recognized once the arbitration has
concluded. Both Karim Kadri and Noor Noorani are in agreement with this proposal.

Alternatively, in the event you do not want to retain our services, but are still
prepared to attend the arbitration you may retain your own counsel at your own cost
and participate separately.

Please note, if you are not prepared 10 participate in the arbitration our only recourse

SOUTH OFFICE | Suite 1050, 10201 Southport Road SW Calgars Alberta T2W 4X9 | Telephone: 403,255.2636 | Fax: 403,253.8036
DOWNTOWN OFFICE | Suite 200, 128 - 2 Avenue SE Calgary, Alberta T2G 5J5 | Telephone: 403.532.8881 | Faxi 403.532.8870
vogelverjee.com
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W/ VOGEL VERJEE ™

Nicholas McIlhargey
Direct Line: 403,384.0308
e-mail: nmcllhargey@vogelverjeeioom

Legal Assistant: Cheryl Abbey
Pirect Line: 403.384.0319
a-mall: cabbey@vogelverjee.com

WITHOUT PREJUDICE
April 9, 2021 VIA EMAIL
REPLY TO: DOWNTOWN OFFICE
Salim Lalani Karim Kaba ;
1144 Falconridge Drive NE 36 Sherwood Rise NW -
Calgary, AB T3] 1A2 Calgary, AB T3R 1P

Glenn & Card Law LLP
#100, 2886 Sunridge Way NE
Calgary, AB T1Y 7H9

Attention: Thomas Glenn
Dear Sirs:

Subject: 1178929 Alberta Ltd.
Our Eile: 533653-2682

We would like to arrange a meeting to discuss framework for distributing.the remaining
equity in 1178929 Alberta Ltd, (the “Corporation”) once the sale of the 20 Acre property
has closed. Coming to an agreed-upon resolution is preferable to proceeding with litigation,
which will Increase costs for ali of the parties-involved.

Please let us know [f you are interested in expioring a resolution outside Court. The dlscusston
s somewhat time sensitive as we were recently contacted by Mr. Lambert in regards '
to settling this matter. We would like to be In a position to provide a proposal to his clients
before the end of the'month. Accordingly, we ask that you-get back te us on your willingness
to participate by Tuesday so that we can arrange & maeting with thé three of you for late next

week,
Yours truly, -

VOGEL VERJEE

Nicholas McIlhargey
NM/am: N

)

$OUTH OFFICE | Suite 1050, }02‘01 Southpgrt Read SW Calga{y..Albe‘rt;a T2W 4%8 | Telephone! 403.ﬁ55.2636 | Pax: 403.253.8038
DOWNTOWN OFFICE | Suite 200, 128 - 2 Avenue SE Calgary, Alberta 726G 5J5 | Telaphonae: 403.532.8861 | Fax: 403.532.8870

vogelvaerjee.com
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! i Salim Lalanl <salimlala@gmall.com?
i Gmail

SPRING BANK : MINUTES OF THE MEETING DECEMBER 18 2018 MCDONALDS

Salim Lalani <salimlaia@gmail.com> Tue, Jan 15, 2019 9113-55 f_*M
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com=>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmcod.te]par_@gma| -com=,
Mahmood 403 273 5132 Marlin Travel -Open 7 Days <mahmoad@thinkiravel.ca>, mahmood@tejpar.com, Karim Kaba
<karimkaba@shaw,ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmall.com>

Dear ALL,

Attached please find the minutes of the meeting held at McDonalds on Degember 18, 2018 )
Please acknowledge receiving the minutes of the meeting and give your feadback if any else it will be considered final
Thanks

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON DECEMIBER 18, 2018 AT MCDONALD (
AVIATION BOULEVARD) AT 9:45 PM

The meeting was attended by the following :

1. Murad Tejpar (MT)
Mahmood Tejpar ( MeT}
Karim Kaba (KK)

Noor Noorani { NN}
Salim Lalani { SL)

0ok W

The following paints were discussed:

1. 100,000 PROFIT SHOWN BY PROJECT 2 IN THE COMPANY AND THE LOSSES OF PROJECT 3:
SPRING BANK LOSSES ADJUSTED AGAINST THE PROFIT OF PROJECT 2: MeT/ Paul

SL raised the point that where this profit of 100,000 is coming from? It seems that this 100, 000 profit has
been siphoned from the spring bank project{ LIKE THE COMMISSION WAS SIPHONED) and the purchase
price Is not what has been communicated to us. The way project nas been managed, the way the land has
been acquired without any proper due diligence and not even batherlng to visit the Racky View County, SL
said that | am 100 percent sure that Murad and Paui have played some unethical tricks in the purchase of
the land and this whole transaction is not transparent at all . Murad and Mehmood explained that this
100,000 profit in project 2 is because of the sale of the constructed homes. The Beilagio homes was doing
construction. As per Murad and Mehmood 100K profit is coming from the profit coming from the selling of
the house and it has nothing to do with the Spring bank. Karim Kaba { KK) asked that how many houses
were constructed and asked for more details about this profit from Murad and Mehmoaod. Murad said that
total of 4 houses were constructed and three of them have been sold and on Morgan House property is the
anly property which has not been sold. Karim asked about how many houses built were sold for profit
Murad and Mehmood explained that out of three constructed houses sold, one was sold for profit of

- 100,000. Salim expressed his doubt that how round figure of 100,000 profit is possible? Murad and
Mehmood confirmed that 100,000 profit is coming from the sale of the constrticted house.
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Noor Noorani { NN} mentioned that CAD 100,000 were retained at the time of purchase of the land what
happened to that 100,000 dollars? Is this 100,000 related with 100,000 profit shown in the alleged sale of
the constructed house and shown under Mehmoad and Paul. Mehmood and Murad said that no that
100,000 related with Spring Bank has nothing to do with the 100,000 profit shown from the sale of one
constructed house

2, MISLEADING INFORMATION REGARDING EQUITY CONSTRIBUTION FROM PALL FAMILY/
SIPHONING OF MONEY IN THE FORM OF COMMISSION/ NO EXPEREINCE IN THE DEVELOPMENT
OF LAND/ NON PROVISION OF MATERIAL INFORMATION

Salim Lalani told Murad that all the years you had given us impression that Paul/{Paul Family} has
contributed 25% Equity in the Spring bank project and their skin was in the game but now just few days
back you have divulged that Paul Family contribution is immaterial . Moreover, you misstated and mislead
the investors that no commissions were involved and later accepted that commissions were involved and
no other investors knew this siphaning of commission fram the project. Salim Lalani asked the Karim Kaba
and Noor Noorani that would you have invested in the spring bank project had you known that no
proportionate equity contribution from the Paul and there are commissions involved and Paul has no prior
experience of development of land , Karim Kaba and Noor Noorani confirmed very expficitly that we would
not have invested in this project if they were not mislead regarding the equity contribution, commissions
and Inexperience. Salim Lalani said that the above material information were with held from the investors
and the way accounts have been maintainad right from the beginning the intention was purchase fraud.
Murad and Mehmood’s mislieading information and non provision of accounts and based on the current
market value of the property, almost negative equity of the Paul family is an Investment Fraud. This
investment Fraud is only coming to the surface now since as per the Murad and Mehmood the Paul Family
is not even honest with them and our not behaving ethically regarding the money lent to ther for
investment in the project. Karim Kaba also mentioned that why material information like report from the
consultant that Jessie received regarding the refusal of subdivision of land from the county on which almost
CAD 17,000 were spent not distributed to the other investors and other investors { KK, NN and SL) know
about this refusal anly after one year. Salim mentioned that this fack of transparency clearly suggest that
there are commissions involved and there were some other intentions fnvalved.

3. NON PROVISION OF ACCOUNTS/ PROVIDING NON MATERIAL INFORMATION/ SPRING BANK
LOSSES AGAINST THE 100,000 PROFIT {MEHMOOD/PAUL) /CHANGE OF ACCOUNTANT

Karim Kabz asked Murad that why proper accounts is not being provided despite request from Salim Lalani
for the tast 5 years and reminded more than scores of time. Also how can you justify that Spring Bank losses
are adjusted agalnst the other non related project that has nothing to do with the other investors. Karim
also mentioned to Murad that In the last meeting held at Tim Hortons/ McDoanlds it was explicitly agreed
that within two weeks all the requested account details will be provided . Salim Lalani said that when the
meeting was held at North Hill Mall( attended by Murad/Noor and Salim) that time also Murad had agreed
that accounts will be provided and accountant will be changed but nothing has happened, Salim Lalani aiso
mentioned that non provision of accounts despite scores of reminders in writing Is clearly indicating that
that funds have been siphoned and the purchase price is not what has been communicated to other
investors. Murad said that they have no problem in providing each and every information but the
Accountant is telling them not to do so unless they have written permission from other shareholders { paul
Family) else Murad/Mehmood will be sued by the Paul Family. Karim Kaba mentioned that in the last
meeting at Tim Hortons/ McDonald you had said that within two weeks after discussing with the Paul
Family each and every details will be provided and now again the same story. Salim Lalani told Murad that
you have incompetent accountant and why the other investors in the project cannot ask for the project
related information and how you could be sued for providing Spring Bank related details?2? 5L further
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mentioned that enough Is enough and non provision of the account is the clear indication that there is g/ _
something fishy in the project as no due diligence, commissions involved, hefty fee of 17K for application, b
no suitability of land, no accounts, na shareholders agreement despite repeated reminders and misleading
information. Karim Kaba mentioned to Murad that if any investor pursue legal charges against you, you have

no chance as everything Is going against you. Sallm Lalani mentioned that Murad has used Noor/KK and SL

funds to raise money for Morgan Rise also as the down payment on Morgan Rise is much lower than the

down payment on the Spring Bank project though the valuation is the same. Karim Kaba mentioned that

initially the impression given was that financing of Spring Bank was a favor but now it is evident that you

used higher down payment from the Spring Bank to support Morgan rise.

4. SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT BETWEEN TEIPAR AND PAUL FAMILY

Salim Lalani asked Murad and Mehmood that do you have Shareholders Agreement with Paul Family based
on the fact that:

a. Ifmarking to market the property under the campany, Paul Family has negative equity. Paul
family is the only Shareholder In the Spring bank project which has negative equity where as ail the
others have positive equity

b.  Paul Family has no proportionate equity contribution in the project if we take into account the
commission of about 23,000 dollars and the 100, 000 dollars atlegedly siphoned from the purchase
price of the project

c.  As mentioned by Murad at North Hil} Contre meeting { attended by Murad Tajpar, Noor and
salim} that Paw) Family is dishonest and they are always delaying the payment and when Murad told
Paul family that once Morgan Rise propetty is sold, the Tejpars will keep all the proceeds from
Morgan Rise sale as the Paul Famity owes principal and interest to Tejpar, Paul family did not agree
to that simple ethical thing and was mentioning about the sweat equity and other things , for which
there was no understanding. Noor Noorani also mentioned that for their Saskatchewan Project they
never give payment on time and still payment related to property or some other head is outstanding

Murad said that yes the Shareholders Agreement is in place between the Tejpar and the Paul family.
Salim told to Murad that this is again misleading information as if Shareholders Agreement was in
place then why Gurpreet told Murad that she does not know that what should be the content of the
shareholders which is agreeable to Salim. Salim told Murad that in North Hill meeting when he
mentioned that Pau! Family is not honest, | asked you about the proper shareholders agreement
because absence of shareholders agreement Is putting other shareholders NN, KK and SL at a
significant risk and you said that Sharehoiders Agreementis in place. Butin meeting at Rocky View
County you were mentioning Gurpreet has no exact idea about Shareholders Agreement.

On further discussion Murad told the house that he thought that Company Formation documents
where Tejpar and Paul family have the 50 percent is what is the Shareholders Agreement. Salim told
Murad that he is very irresponsible and putting other shareholders at high risk and mental stress as
there is no shareholders agreement and just revealed at the North Hill meeting that Paul Family has
nat contributed the proportionate share in the Spring Bank profect and Gurpreet is not even
agreeing to the fact that the sale proceeds of the Morgan Rise should be kept by the Tejpars as they
had lent the money to the Pau! Family.

Salim told the house that in addition to the scores of time reminders about providing the detailed
accounts, Murad was reminded about the Shareholders Agreement or similar agreement for the safety of
the Spring bank shareholders and to have transparency, provision of financial statements, taking the
minutes of the meeting, declaration of conflict of interest, procedure for the sale of the property etc but
always he promised that it would be done but was nev elivered.




Exw\@n !@'

Mehmood mentioned that the Tejpar family is the most vulnerable as they have put the money on behalf of L’/.
the Paul Family and now the Paul Family is not acting fairly. Mehmood also mentioned that even in the *)
security/collateral has been provided by the Tejpar Family and there is no exposure of Paul Family. Karim

Kaba told Murad that they should take some legal help as the situation is very risky for the Tejpars.

5. SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY CONTRIBUTION SHEET

Saiim Lalani told the house that when Accounts are being asked from the Murad, he agrees and then
he comes with the excuse that Accountant is advising that pau! Family consent should be available,
when Shareholders Agreement is being requested , he always promises but never prepares the
documents, he has mis-leaded the house in terms of the payment of commission to the Paul, he
misieaded the house in terms of the Paul Family contribution in the spring Bank project, he
misleaded about the experience of the Paul, he failed in the due diligence of the project despite the
fact that he was holding Real Estate license and know all the due diligence steps he should have
taken, he failed in keeping Shareholders Agreement between Tejpar and Paul Family and hence
exposing spring pank shareholders to significant risks and mental torture, now when the paul Family
1s not fair to Tejpars , he is telling the true story and shared recently the combined accounts of the
company. Salim told the house that the credibility of the Tejpars based on the above fact is 2ero and
audit from the inception of the project is required. Salim also mentioned that how come there is no
separate bank account for the Spring Bank Project and all accounts are being combined and joined
to make every thing confusing?

Salim requested to the house that the accounts provided by the accountant is not trustworthy as
there are many discrepancies in the account and the accountant is misleading Murad. Murad had
agreed in the past that accountant will be changed but then he deviates from his promises.

Sallm requested to the house that keeping in view of the above and keeping in view the recently
divulged information that the Paul Family contribution is not proportionate, we should at -least get
the information that when the equity was contributed and where that contribution was deposited (
which bank and which account}. The house agreed on the following format for each of the
shareholders so that at-least it could be verified that cantribution shown by the shareholder has
been actually deposited in the pank and could be verified.

_sjjAR_E.ﬂ_O_l,.Q_E,&EQL!I[! QOETBIEU!ION SHEET : Mr, XX

Frial Date of Amount of Bank Account purpose of
Number Payment payment Details the Payment

L

Mehmood mentioned that preparation of the above statement is not a problem except the bank
details as unfortunately the bank accountis were not kept separate and the above statement is not
possible within couple of weeks. The house agreed that by February 18, 2019 { two months) the
details related to the bank where the equity contribution is deposited could be delayed but the date
wise shareholders contribution should be prepared in approximatety couple of week. The above
equity contribution sheet — shareholder wi 'B‘t@\taken to the lawyer and wiil be signed by

\ e
N
L




-
ey ey

each of the shareholder so that there is some authenticity in the equity contribution details and g"
based on the above sheet, voting % age could be determined and any voting regarding the spring '
bank project, could be determined based on the above project. :

Salim Lalani volunteered that as the equity contribution in the spring bank project by Noor Noorani
- 25%, Karim Kaba 12.5% and Salim Lalani 12.5% Is easlly traceable and the shareholders can give
each and every detail, the information will be collected and wili be provided to Mehmood.
Mehmood was assigned the responsibility of preparing the above sheet within two weeks
approximately January 5, 2019 ( excluding the bank and account details which will be completed by
February 18, 2019)

Salim Lalani mentioned to the house that as Noor Noorani has the updated information avaitable in
a very professional way, that should be the basis of equity contribution for Karim Kaba and Salim

Laiani. Noor Noorani told the house that he has the updated information available now and could
circulate so that at-least Information from NN. KK and 5L is provided to Mehmood.
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M Gmail Sallm Lalani <satimlala@gmail.com>

REMINDER FOR SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY CONTRIBUTION /FEB 19 MEETING

Thus, Febi 7, 2010 2t 10:51 PM

Baltm Lalanl <salrnial mad.cor
To murad tejper dto}p:&&gmau.wmb. Murad Yejpar <tejpar@shaw.ce>, Nooddin Nooran] csulnoor@hotmall.com>,
Mahmood Tajpar <mahmood.tejpar@gmall.com, Karim Kabs <karimkaba@shaw.ca>

Mured/Mahmood
When are we getting shareholder squity contribulion detalls (datawlsa/bank dslalls). it is already two moniths.

(an we meet on February 19 , 2019 to move forward on ths
SAHREHOLDERS AGREEMNT"

Bssphie scores of remindars, Shareholders Agresment is riot In place and this is “BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY"

Sharsholders Equity Contribution ks the first sisp In completing Sharehoiders Agraement to make sury that the voting for
tha project ls based on the equity contribution

if Shareholdars Equlty Contribution Is not prepered befors February 18 end =l other requested information 1s not
provided, thera ia na oplion put to involve third party
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r ﬂ Gma!I Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmait.com>
-

MINUTES OF THE MEETING : FEB 19, 2019 TUESDAY 1 O CLOCK

Saiim Lalani <salimiala@gmall.com> Sun, Feb 24, 20}}9 al 2'15 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Murad Te|par <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hotmalf.com>,
Mahmood 403 273 5132 Marlin Travel -Open 7 Days <mahmood@thinktravel.ca>, Mahmood Tejpar
<mahmood@tejpar.com®>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@gmail.com>

The meeting was held at Murad’s house at 1 o clock to review the documents available

The meeting was attended by Murad, Mahmoaod, Naor and Salim

1. salim told Noor that his and Suleman concern that we do not have our equity contribution
acknowledgement in format way should not be a concern as we have all the documentary proof.
There is no way that this should be a problem as we are not living in a Banana Republic

2. Salim asked Murad/Mahmood that why the EQUITY CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT requested on
December 18, 2018 is still not available. Murad/Mahmood said that they do not have the bank .
statement available. Noor/Salim told them that the bank statement should not be an excuse as it
could be obtained by paying the amount

3. Mahmood toid the house that almost 80DK has been invested and we are the main loser. Saiim
told that Financial Statement shows 800 k contribution but we do not have any information about
the WITHDRAWALS, With 800k contribution and other contribution approximately 968 K you guys
have made profit of 568K and still you have the equity in the Morgan Rise approximately 500k,
equity in Saskatchewan of around 160K and other receivables. So basically you guys have not lost
anything and we are loosing 100% of our equity because of your dishonest ways and deceptive
techniques. The details are as under

4. Salim told that till my meeting with Karim yesterday, Karim was under impression that Paul was
the director and even when | prepared equity contribution sheet and emailed YOu guys , you never
told that Paul is not the director. it was only after he was dead that we came to knaw about he was
ngt director

5. Salim also asked that why the APPRAISAL FEE of around 3,600 which is way zbove the market.
We want to see the bank statement that this expense was paid from the 1178929 or like application
fee 2900 paid from Bellagio and expenses were recorded in the Bellagio and tax benefit were
received by the Bellagio

6. The relationship of BELLAGIO to 1178929 has never been disclosed and why tax loses are
availed by the other projects and Bellagio

7. Salim asked whether any other financing besldes Mortgage was taken by the 1178929 but
Murad said that no other financing was taken, it was specifically asked that Morgan Rise had to pay
—_ the INTEREST IN ADVANCE like the Spring Bank 20 acres Murad replied there was no distinction
\ between the two financing. There was no preferential financing for Morgan Rise
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8. Noor and Salim asked how much profit was made on the Okotok land and Murad said that
about 300K profit was made

Purchase Price = 157,000

Selling Price = 450,000

9. SL/NN asked about the properties constructed with Paul. The details given were:
3 properties in Aspen
1 Property in Morgan rise

10. Salim asked abaut why the MINUTE BOOK has not been maintained, though the previous
accountant specifically asked about the MINUTE BOOK there was no answer

11. Salim asked about the major milastones about the Morgan Rige

The details given by the Murad were as follows:

Land Purchase Start of Construction Construction Finish

D

. i D
418,700

May 31, 2007 June, 2007 July,
2008

Salim asked Murad that since You co-mingled the accounts so that you can use the funds for other

projects

12. Murad told Salim that Salim should come and tatk with Gurpreet /lessie as these guys are asking
for SWEAT EQUITY. Salim told Murd/Mahmood that as he does not know their past relationship, he

has no business talking to Gurpreet/jessie

13. About Bank statements, Murad/Mahmood told that Gurpreet has taken those statements from

the accountant

14. salim agazin emphasised that Bank Statements are must as the contribution and expenses needs
to be checked . if statements are not provided FORENSIC AUDIT from the court would be demanded

15. Murad gave the 2018 income statement to Saiim where the Spring Bank and Morgan Rise

€Xpenses to some extent were separated, Salim told Murad/Mahmood that since we are paying for
the statements and irrespective of paying or nat, itis the right of the shareholders to demand to see

the books which has been denied in one way or another

16. Salim told Murad/Mahmood that why SWEAT EQUITY/ FREE EQUITY was not disclosed to the
other shareholders and other shareholders were given the impression that Paul has contributed to

the equity, there was no answer

17. Noor/Satim told Mahmoaod what is preventing him from not sending the last 3 years/4 years

bank statement which Is available online, he sald that it will be sent
18. Murad told Noor/$atim that meeting with Kimball Lacey is necessary. It was decided that

meeting with Kimball on March 2 will be held. It was also suggested by the Noor that MT/NN and §1_

N2 A

/
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: i {im Lalani <salimiala gmail.com>
Ry Gmail Salim Lalan @

AGREEMENT ON MEETING PROCEDURES!PERSECUTEDN OF MINORITY

Sailm Lalani <salimiala gmali.com> Mon, Feb 1.8. 2019 a8t 622 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejpar§@gmaﬂ.ccrn>. Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, mahmood Tejpar <mahmood lejpar@gmail.com=.,
Mahmood 403 273 5132 Marlin Travel -Open 7 Days <mahmood@thinktravel.ca>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>,
Nooruddin Noorani <suinoor@hotmail.corn

Bog: Zehra Kaba <zehrakaba@shaw.ca=, John Gilani <jg@johngiilani.com>

Since last 11 years { first meeling minutes while ! was on visit in 2008 and we met at Paul office some where In tNorth
East and when Or Ali from Pakistan was also in the meating )| have been requesting again and ag.ain .thai when ever we
meet, proper minutes of the mesting should be recorded and should be distributed so that evary thing Is avallable
professionally and each and every shareholder is aware that what s happening and every thing Is racorded far future
reference. Daspite reminding again and again, this has not bsen impiemented. Consequently, we the rinority
shereholders are suffering. Personally for me this Is the MENTAL TORTURE as why this simple thing is.not implemented.
On the top of It, whenever | am taking minutes and clrculating to the shareholders, purposefully these minutas are not
being acknowledged,

| can understand that MURAD/MAHMOQD is not putting anything in writing as the FINANCIAL RECORDS are not
available and no body was invoived in the purchase and SIPHONING OF THE COMMISSION, DUE CARE FROM
DIRECTORS. BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTIES, the following things have happened which has impacted the minority
shareholders:

1, Paul had told to minority shareholdars that if the project is not sold within 2 years , he will buy it

2. The contract price with Kimball Lacey was 40 K and wa anded up paying 80K simply because of the CARELESS
NESS OF THE DIRECTORS and irresponsible ways of MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS tonotto insist on taking minutes
af the meeting so that this type of grave BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTIES BY THE DIRECTORS /DUE CARE FROM
DIRECTORS would have been recorded and DIRECTORS WOULD HAVE MADE to pay for the differance.

| am surprigsed at the CALLOUSNESS OF THE DIRECTORS that 40K went to BOK and they never bothered in even
visiting the site and updating the MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS. .
Wa can understand that the PAUL FAMILY had already made comemissions i the transaction, and had not put the single
dollar towards equity { As per Mahmood/Murad) they were laast bothered but ihe irresponsible behaviour of the
DIRECTORS and MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS Is hard to digest.

Parsonally whenever we want to buy say evenh an appliance of CAD 1,000 or 1500 , we visit 5 places and spand day or
two to ensure that the right decision has been made and we are getting value for the monay. Nor we are sure of the
amount spent nor we are sure about the quallty of the stuff used by the Kimball

3, When soliciting investment from the MINOQRITY SHAREHOLDERS , feasibility numbers were given. Those numbers
were not anly out by 10/20/30% but were out by 100% and 200% . The development charges wefe glven which were
actually out of line and the scle purpose was GETTING MONEY EROM THE MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS making
commisslon on purchase, commisaion an selling and making commission on tha development

The feasibility numbers were completely MISLEADING.

4_In the past things were said and then the DIRECTORS came up with the excuse that they did not understand . The
laiest exampie is the SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMNT between the Paul family and Tejpars. The absence of this
agreement is 2lso HIGHLY IRRESPONSIBLE of the Murad/Mehmood as they have exposed MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS to the excessive risk.

To avoid the above situation, as the generaily mesting norm | clearly mentioned in the SHAREHOLDERS
AGREEMENT, the following needs to be implemented without delay.

1. Every meeting should be recorded so that he said/ she said situation does not arise. go far because of the lack of
recording MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS have been adversaly impacted. if people are man of words they shoutd not
have problem with this internationally accepted practise
2. Based on the above recording or even if the recording is not done, each and every meeting minutes shouid be taken
and circulated 1o the shareholders and if the feedback is not received within 15 days, thosa minutes would be considered
- final

iF ANYBODY HAS ANY OBJECTION ON THE ABOVE
"MECORDING OF THE MEETING® AND "MEETING MINUTES CONFIRMATION" PLEASE DO SO THROWGH THE
EMAIL ELSE IT WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS ACCEPTED
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M Gma“ Salim Latani <salimiala@gmail.com>

Fwd: Lail / Tejpar family investments

murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com> . Thu, May 2%, 2020 at 10:02 PM
To: Nooruddin Nooran| <ash_noor@hoimail.com>, Noor Noorani <sulngor@hotmait.com=. Salim lafanl
<salimlala@gmail.com>, Karim Kaba <karlrmkaba@gmalt.corm>, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmood.tejpar@grail.com>

Helio Afl,
Attached please find the letter that we recelved today from the Lalls, citing the 3 pr_opos.als. from them. Before | go further,
i woukd like to clarify the faise clalms and accusations that the letter from the Lails is ciaiming:

. Claim #1 - Tejpar's “Overstated” $1000,000 equity; this claim Is false as you can see from the atiached

TejapriLall spreadsheet of April 2010 that the contribution has now accumulated up to $806,925.04 as per GL
April 2018 ) )

. Clahm #2 - Rejection of $1.25 mlliion offer on Morgan rise; this claim is taise as the offer was collactively rejected
by the Tejpar and Lails because the offer was too low .

« Glaim #3 - Rejection of second offer of $1.29 million offer; this claim is {alse as the offer was collectively rejected
by the Tejpar and Lails because the offer was too low

It Is imperative that we act urgently and respond 10 the offer as scon a8 possible as we will have to start workingon
sacuring Mortgage for the property asap. We will each have 1 (one) vote and we will go with the decision of the majority in
ihis matter, In shart, | will have 1 vote, Mahmood will have 1 vote, Sulemen will have 1 vote, Noor will have 1 vate, Karim
will have % vote and Salim will have 1 vols.
My vote is for cption #2. 1 request that you all please respond no \aler than 10:00 am lomorrow So we can allcome 10 3
decision. | sincerely hope that we can all bring back the peace in our lives afler this resolutlon.

Murad Tejpar

—emenemee- FOrWarded message ———

From: Michael Strilchuk <strilchuk@strilchuklaw.com>

Date: Thu, May 21, 2020 at 4:19 PM

Subject: Lail / Tejpar family Investments )

To: ali.tejpar@gmall.com <all tejpar@gmail.com>, mahmood.lejpar@gmall.com <mahmood.tejpar@gmail com>,
tejparm@gmail.com <tejparm@gmail.com>

Good afterncon gentiemen,
Please see the attached correspondence.
Regards,

MIGHAEL J. STRILCHUK

Barrister and Solicitar

STRILCHUK LAW

505 — 21% AVENUE SW, CALGARY, ALBERTA T2§ 0G8

TEL: 403-260-1081  FAX: 403-289-4779

e ; :
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M Gma“ Sallm Lalani <salimlala@gmall.com?>

e

Fwd: Lail / Tejpar family investments

Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Fri, May 22, 2020 at 3:26 AM
To: murad tejpar <tg|parm@gmall.com=, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmcod.tejpar@gmall.com>, Ali Tejpar <ah.ltejpar@gmat|.cum>.
Nooruddin Naorani <ash_noor@hotmall.com>, Karim Kaba <karlmkaba@gmail.com>, nooruddin Nooranl
<suinoor@hotmail.com>

Boc; Ahmed Hemant <ahmedhemani@hotmail.com>

Murad,

Lail's have rightly caught you that your equity Is overly stated and it Is ot more than 300K /400K if reconciled with bank
statements and you adjust for withdrawals/ eXpenseslsalarlesfcommlssions etc. Not providing bank statements purchase
documents and other material docs req uested highlights this fact and your fraud

Regarding options, you cannot ask on shotgun 10 reply by tomorrow. They have given you Option 3 where you are only
selling your interest and not touching 20 acres as wa had invested in 20 acres.

You have personal dispute with Lails and you exchange your shares in option 3 which has nothing to do with othef people
shares,

Regarding one vote, we don't have shareholders agreement. This situation requires super majorlty provisions, exits for
fon willing with original investment and the interest occurred, and ring fencing.

it seems that because of frauds done in 1176328 by youlMahmoodiPaul you want to get rid of it,

On Thu, May 21, 2020 at 10:02 PM murad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com> wrole:
{Quolad tsxt hidgen]
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M G ma il Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com>

VERY TRANSPARENT: NOT CHANGING ACCOUNT DESPITE MANY REQUESTS

Salim Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Sun, Feb 10, 2019 at 10:26 PM
To: murad tejpar <lejparm@gmall.com>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmood.tejpar@gmall. com>,
Nooruddin Nograni <sulnocor@hotmail.com>, Karim Keba <karimkaba@shaw,.ca>

Bec: Zehra Kaba <zehrakaba@shaw.ca>

Mahmood you are right, very transparent. So scared to change the accountant as all beans will be spilled!!!
Agreeing several times but not changling accountant as there are some buried secrat!
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I Salim Lalanl <salimlala@gmail.com>
M Gmail a

SPRING BANK PROJECT: MAJORITY SHAREHOLDING/EXISTING RISKS FOR
MINORITY SHAREHOL.DERS
Salim Lalanl <salimlaia@gmall.com>

To: Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>
Cc: Nooruddin Negorant <sulnoor@hotmall.com>

Mon, Sep 22, 2014 &t 6.58 PM

Dear Murad,

Til very recently , | was under impression that though Your Family and Paul Family has 50% sharehclding in the
company, you have the majority voting rights. _

Just for clanification, your familly could have 10% shareholding but could have 90% voting rights. That ls how the
companles are structured in Canada, by having Class A and Class B shares.

Canadian Tire and Loblawas have 15-20% shareholding but 90% voting rights

You had given impression that minority interests are 100% safe and you always said that it is 110% safe as Mahmood is

president, But when In your article of association you do not have any provision where the voting rights are different than
the shargholding.

This is unnecessary risk for the shareholders,

You know that whethar | give you 1500 dollars or 10,000 dollars | take everything In writing. Same is vica versa whenever
you give me 5k or 20k or 2k u get things in writing.

Here cumutative minority sharaholders have given almost 350K but there ig no safeguard and nothing is in writing

This is not a good business praclise
Piease call shareholders meeting and address this issug,

Thanks

Coney - Gy
\'2.;) By
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M Gma| I Sallm Lalani <ssalimlala@gmall.com>

SPRING BANK SHAREHOLDER DETAILS

Sallm Lalani <salimlala@gmail.com> Wed, Nov 7, 2018 at 10:20 PM
It;.ﬁmurad tejpar <tejparm@gmail.com>, Murad Te|par <lejpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <sulnoor@hobmail.com>,

m Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Mahmaod 403 273 5132 Mariin Travel -Open 7 Days <mahmood@thinkiravel.ca>,
Mahmaad Tejpar <mahmood.tejpar@gmail.com>

Helle Murad,

COU'? You provide the shareholders detail of the Spring Bank . Who is owning what? From the Paul family who has
contribuled meney and Paul is interacting with accountant under what capucity???
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M Gmal‘ Sallm Lalani <salimiala@gmail.com>

EVERYTHING ABOUT BANKRUPTCY MAKES SENSE

Salim Lalanl <salimiala@gmall.com> Sat, Feb 2, 2019 at 8:47 PM
To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmall.com>, Murad Tejpar <tejpar@shaw.ca>, Mahmood 403 273 5132 Marlin Travel -Open 7
Days <mahmood@thinktravel.ca>, Mahmeod Tejpar <mahmood.tejpar@gmail.com>, Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>,
Karim Kaba <karimkaba@gmali.com>

Murad/Mahmood

Now | can connect the dots very clearly

1. As per your statement Jessie told you .."We dor't care If this company goas bankrupt”
The collateral has been provided by you guys as mentioned by the Mahmood in the last meeting at Macdonald In
December, Why the Paul Family should be worried as they have the negative equity and no collateral as per Mahmood

2. Earlier than 2013, there was no payment/littie payment made by Jessls in the project( as per the limited financial
staternents provided by you). As soon as | started demanding Financial Statements equity contribution from the Paut
Family started coming

3. When we started together { Myself, Noor and Karim) pressurising for providing financial statements and other project
refated financial information , Paul went to Aruna and staried discussing finsncial statements as there are many things
which are not as per " FIDUCOARY DUTIES OF DIRECTOR". Il asked you in the last December McDonald mgettng that
why Paul is meeting Aruna as he is nol a shareholder and you said because of some confusion about the equity between
Jessig/Gupreat

4. You mentioned that Gurpreet told that she does nol want to be a director { Meeting at North Hill and you said that
Punjabis are chor and as per Gurpreet Morgan Rise proceeds should be divided proportionatel because of sweal equity
though as per you they owe you the money because of invastments by you on their behaif and there wasno
understanding of SWEAT EQUITY", This Is your versior) ) and she will not qualify because she has some qualifying
issues and Credit Gard Debts, Noor and myself were surprised and we told you that it ioes not make sense that belng
lawyer she does not have proper credit and she Is falling behind on some payments or other credit score issues. But now
it makes sense that if there are any misieading finencia! information provided by the directors to the MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS, being a lawyer she could have serious impact

8. If the company goes bankrupt , Paul family has zero impact as the asset might be enough to cover the debt, They have
the negetive equily and they careless what happens to the company as they want lo cut losses

€. Your degperation to sell the Morgan Rlsa’aiso indicales MANY THINGS

= 20t =)
oy =
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M Gmail Salim Lalani <sallmlala@gmail.com>
SPRING BANK: SWEAT EQUITY/ PAUL FAMILY SHARE
Salim Lalani <salimiala@gmall.com> Wed, Feb 20, 2019 at 1:27 AM

To: murad tejpar <tejparm@gmall.com>, Murad Tejpar <tgjpar@shaw.ca>, Nooruddin Noorani <suinoor@hotmail.com>,
Karim Kaba <karimkaba@shaw.ca>, Mahmood Tejpar <mahmocd.tejpar@gmali.com>

While discussing with Karim, he has given a good suggestion that we value the Spring Bank Project and based on that
valuation, whatever is the 25% share of the Paul Family, vou includedincrease their shara in the Morgan Rise Property 80
that spring bank project is free from their panticipation.

Suppose Spring Bank naet proceeds after paying Loan, Commission, Kimble is say 100,000---- Paul Family 25,000
Doliars, you add this 26,000 to your Morgan Rise. '

We take the Spring Bank Project in a separate company . Now the question is how to finance the separate company. We
need about 790 K financing.

COMMISSION + SWEAT EQUITY

= o v

The way this deal was made with Paul, he was winner in all situation. Whether investment parformed or went south , he‘
would have made money In all situation. His interest and the Minority Shareholders interest was not aligned at all and this
very MATERIAL FACT was not disclosed at the time of investimant. Even a KID would have known that PAUL would
have been least botherad whether good investment or bad investment, he would have made money In any way. So l_was
right that the way projact has been maneged, purchase price Is not right, but the SWEAT EQUITY ( ZERO EQUITY) is
even the worst scenario as MINORITY SAHREHOLDRS AND DIRECTORS INTEREST were not aligned
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Accrual Basly

Dale

PR

L . A
2560 ' Loan poyable - Heldi Lacsy

Total 2560 + Loan payanie - Helgl Lacey
2653 - Losn - Noorenl Suleman & Roor
Tolgl 2853 - Loan - Noorani Suleman & Noor
2600  Loan Payabla - Othar

Tonal 2500 - Loan Payabla - Ohe!

Towl 2500 Lean Payable

2588 51
2600 « Bharenalders L.oan-Mahmood
Trargler 5I5/20%1
Daposit &5/
Tianster THI201Y
Tronsfar bl dhl
Tranglat e/t
Tegnatar BiaveN1
Deposit 410/872011
Tronefwr a2
Transia: 12J8720%
Transfet 12302011
Transier 13012012
Transigr 2812012
Tranafar ajifzm2
Transler 3129/2012
Trangler a5k
Genaral Journal 4012012 174

Yotal 2600 Sharehclders Loan-Mahmood

2840 » Sharenoldsr Loang-Mursd Te|par
Depokk TN 42081

Tolgl 2610 - Sharaholde! Loans-Murad Tejpar
2526 - Shareholdel Loans-Gurprast Lall
1

Deposi ohaRe
Transier 1)8/2012
Yrantfer 422012

Total 2626 - Shereholsar Loans-Gurpreel Lall
2630 - Shareholder Loans~Jasprit Lall

Total 2610 - Shereholder Loans-Jaspiit Ladl
2599 - M - Othar

Total 2589+ BfH » Otiver

Total 2688 < SH

2600 - Bank Loahd
2610 - Horgago « 170+ Worgan Alae

Genaral Jowrnal #/41/2011 33
Genaal Journgd 813172014 3
Genaral Jourmal 1ohi20n 189
Geneai Joumal 1oiE2Y 10
Ganeral Joumal 1013372011 9
Ciererel doumal 312012 Wz

Tous 2810 - Montgage - 170 - Morgen Fise
2620 + MoTIgage - O50 - 30 ACres

Ganarel Journal 282011 7

Gigrerel Joutnal 1WB/2011 m
Genaral Journat 112972011 103
Genaral Journgl 1hefeo2 104

Totss 2820 - Mongags - 830 - 20 Acras
2800 - Bank Leans - Othar
Tolal 2800 + Bank Loana - Othar

Total 2600 - Bank Loans

2800 + Aneted pariie3
27979 - Loan pey-Ballsgle Homeg-ralaled

Chaque TRV Strat
Cheque Ths201t Sum
Trankter herdyt

Chegue 7/26/3011 Stk
Trangler i 2ot

Chagque 9201 205
Cheque 10M@iEei1 908
Chegue 11002014 a7
Chegue 12/31 /2011 908
Choque 11012 (314
Cheque 1/8/2012 08
Cheaue 2/58/2012 11D
Chagud Iarz012 811
Chegue afuij2pi2 -1}
General Journal 430/202 115

Tots! 2700 Loan pay-Bellagie Homes-raluied

MNum
—_—

1178929 ALBERTA LTD
General Ledger

As of April 30, 7012

Npma

i e e i

Trangler
Transiar

Tearstar

Revenus Canana
Aavanye Conada
Aavenus Canada
Racaiver Genaral
Asung N. Lalant Prot...
Recelver Genaral
Fecelver Generdl
Revenug Canada
Revenya Cansds

. —
gunds Trans! .. 1050 Bank - Fo.
Qaposk - Mah. . 1g4b - Benk - 8,
Fonds Trenstor 1050~ Bank -F..
Fynds Tranater 150 Bank-F ..
Funds Transfer 1050 - Bank - ¥ ..
Funds Traneler 1060 Bark-F .
Cg deposit 1050+ Bank » F...
Funds Trengler 1050~ Benk - F
Fynos Trenster 1050 - Banx - F
Funcy Teanster 1060 - Bank - F. .
Funds Trangler  1080° Bank - F...
Fynys Trangiar 1050 Benk - F.
Furds Transi... 1050+ Bank - F.
funds Transf ., 1080 Banx - F...
Fungs Trargler 1050 Bank - F...
Racord interB.. 1220 + 204 Maz.
Depusit Q40 - Bank - 5.
Daposi 4040 - Baok - & .
Pawan Dhaliv... 1080 - Bank - £.
Lail 1040+ Sank - B..
Recors imare... 5412 jrterest ...

5410 + ntorest ..
$410 - NSrest ..

Record intere..

Late ehaige W... 5410 intarest ...
Racord niere...  5410° Intared ...

5410 - intera#l . -
Egta Ghargd d.. 5410 - Inteasst ..
LRla chat( W.. 5410 ¢ inlplogt ...
Late changs a.. 5410 - Intgrast .-

Ravarsal 106 .- FaV0 - Intarast ..

yangfer 10 828 1050 - Bank -
uansie 1o B28 1050 + Bank -
Funds Teansfer  1050° gank - £
wanster 1o B28 1050 - Bank - F..
Funds Transier 1050+ Bank - F...
1050 - Bank - F.
1060 - Bank - Fo..
1050 - Beak - F.
1050 - Bank - Fuu
Bellag'c 1050 - Bank - F...
1050 - Bank+ F-.
1050 - Benk - F...
1050 - Bank - F.
1050 - Bank « F
ReconGile me.. 410 1 \masest

Denlt

0.0¢

080

000

0.00

7500

Doy 23t vy

Craalt
e

100 80
1,50000
1.000.00
2,800.90
430000
4,300.00
2.600.00
1.000.00

Z00.00
3,328.00
2,385 00
1,704 00
1,700.00
1,700.00
1,700.00

28,855 T

—
57,505.71

—— e ——

gs,158.71

26,00
2500
2500

3060

W50

2§.00
an.qe

e e

55.00

160.90

353.87

18.07

¥y 82
e
363.96

——te

Balpnge
0.9
a0
29.00
.00
000
0.00

.316,28000

710,054,563
310,831 56
.310,313.66
312,413 66
31341368
L316,41366
.319,713.86
.324,013 86

26821437
e
-368.318.%7

314,063 45
1236348
i

T 1236045

BR1TT 82
.gn.177 42
91,777 42
.53,§27.42

~Rasar 42
000
00
vee

\T74,210.24

.2,000,050.00
.1,080,000.00
1,090,025 00
1,000,050 60
.1,000,075.00
-1 180,000.00
.4,090,030.00
-1,090,000 00

3 590,600.00

-910,050.00
1007500
910,000 G0
-§10.090.00

[
81800000

g.o0

270,647 48
270,847 45
263,647 42
288,847 45
.261,001.32
466,631.32
268,549 28
.24,848.29
262,649.39
260,849.09
,258.649.96
267,494.09
.256,494.39
.2£3,434.09
.251,484.38
249,454 38
-?49.595.:!1

7 248,508.31

Psys 6
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16:54 AM 1178929 Alberta Ltd

0510217 Trial Balance

Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2013

Apr 30, 13
Debit Credit
1040 - Bank - Servus # 169 1,170.27
1045 - Bank - Servus # 880 1.17
1050 - Bank - First Calgary # 205 2,681.78
1055 - Bank - First Calgary - Common § 27.58
+060 - Bank - First Galgary - CS CU 23.22
1070 - Cash Clearing 0.00
Inventory-204:121¢ - 204 Morgans Way - Land 420,713.2¢9
Inventory-204:1220 - 204 Morgans Way - Building 1538056.91
Inventory-204:125¢ - Inventory writedown- 204 228,699.00
1200 - inventory:1230 - 20 Acres Elbow - Farm Residence 15632943.08
1290 - Loan recelvable: 1300 + Loan rec.-101103086 Saskatch... 16352279
2279 - Deposit-20 Acres1049607-Good-iim 1,000.00
2500 « Loan Payable:2520 - Loan-Karim Kaba-12.5% 20 Acres 79,062.50
2500 - Loan Payable:2530 - Loan-Salim Lalani-12.5%-20 Acre 79,062.50
2580 - Loan Payable: 2840 - Loan-Nooran! Invest-25% 20 Acre 158,125.00
2599 - 8/H:2030 - Interest payable-S/H Loans 49,960.00
2599 - 5/H:2600 * Shareholders Loan-Mahmood 388,844.37
2509 - S/H:2640 - Shareholder Loans-Murad Tejpar 312,363.45
2598 - $/H:2620 - Shareholder Loans-Gurprest Lait 100,733.67
2599 - 5/H:2622 - Loan - Payl Lait 10.557.42
2399 - $/H: 2630 - Shareholder Loans-Jasprit Lail 1,000.00
2800 - Bank Loans:2810 - Mortgage - 170 - Morgan Rise 1082051.34
2800 - Bank L.oans:2820 - Moartgags - 850 - 20 Acres 803,449,51
2900 - Related parties;2700 - Loan pay-Bellagic Homes-relat,.. 244 379.07
3260 - Share Capita) 100.00
3900 - Retained Earnings 52,10B.17
4010 - Rental Income - Morgan Rise 111,500.00
4020 - Revenue - other 0.00
Alc'ting and legal; 5010 - Atcounting 4.000.00
Alc'ting and lagal:5020 - Legal 74.81
Mortg. Int.:5420 - Mortagage Interest -Morgan Rise 101,083.29
Prop, Tx:5560 - Property taxes 9,961.64
5400 - Insurance 3.154.48
5410 - Interest & Bank Charges 93.50
5750 - Repairs & Maintenance 3.066.22
5760 - Association fee-Morgan Rise 1,250.00
5900 - Udiilties 75.12
TOTAL 3792436.58  3792436.58

Page 1
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1178929 Alberta Litd.
Year End: April 30, 2008 Prepared by 300-34
General ledgar
Date: 0105/2007 To 30/04/2008
Name Date Number Reference Sourge Annotation Debit Credit Balance
2754 First Calgery 133 Aspen Qpenlng 0.00
joan Loan Advance 14 Nov 07 - 133 A 1411112007 793 Gd 363,600.00 -383,500.00
133AspJ784 Buplicale Transaction J7 144142007 992 GJ 383,500,00 0.00
133 Fabre Bickman Stmi of Receipts 141112007 994 [ 483.500.00 383,500,00
4 23AspenStmiDIsh,Fric 80401/ 133 A 181112007 891 BN 188 752.34 .753,262.04
ADJ133AspenSimiD) Reversiag J881. G 1681112007 862 BN 369,752.34 ~383,500.00
i33AspenStm!Dish.Frlc 804011123 A 1811142007 893 GJ 369,762.34 1753,252.34
893,Reversing Error JBS3 133 Aspen 1811112007 993 Gl 369.752.34 383 500,00
pMonAdvi33As502,133 Aspan - Genst M 53/05/2008 843 GJ 188470400 -571,670.00
Change 1.423,004.68 1,684,974,68 .§71,970,00
Close 574,970.00
2780 Noorani Suleman & Nooruddin Openlng -15,000.00
nogran, Noommni Investments CK 15 - 2810512007 250 GJ 7,500.00 -22,500.00
1600, Deposit - Could ba Nooranl pay 0BIBI2007 260 GJ 1,600.00 .24,100.00
a0, Refund to Noarsal invastments p8/o0s8/2007 261 G 12,500.00 -11,600.00
Change 42,500.00 8,100.00 3,400.00
Close -11,600.00
2782 Noorant - 20 Acres Opening a.00
noosan Noorani investments CK 15 - 28/05/2007 250 G 12,500 03 -12,500.00
NOGRANI, 20 NOORANI WVESTMENTS INC 0410712007 275 GJ 25,000.00 -37,500.00
49,8MO Deposit Nooram investments 16112007 701 3] 442500 -41§25.00
purZDacreslawyst,purchsse cost & pr 18/11/2007 881 BN £8,000,00 130,625 00
ADJpur20acresiawy,Revarsing JBsi. C 1871472007 854 BM £9,000.00 44,626 .00
purzUacreslawyst,putmasa cost & pr 181112007 865 BN £8,000.00 +130,625.00
ADqurZOacres!awy.Raversing Jogs, © 18/11/2007 866 BN 89,000.00 -41,626.00
pur20acreslawysi,purchase cost & pr 1801172007 867 BN £9,000.00 -j30,625.00
ADqurZOacrashwy,Rauefslng J867. C 18/11/2007 884 BN 88,000.00 -41,626.00
purabacresiawyst prchase cost & pr 181112007 B85 GJ #9,000.00 -130.82500
Koaran, Noorani Investmerts 20 Acre 13/12/2007 803 GJ 27,500.00 ~158,125.00
Changt 26700000 425,125.00 .158,125.00
Clase -158,125.00
7785 Karim Kaba 20 Acras Qpening 0.00
778,914756 Alberta Lid ; 624 Forda TRIOER00T 238 aJl 12,560.00 .12,500.00
KARIN,0645 - 914756 ALBERTA LTD KAR 0410712007 274 GJ 25,000.00 .37,500.00
48, BMO Daposit Noarsni lavestments 161172007 701 Gd 4,128.00 -41,625.00
puriQacresiawyst,purchase cost & pr 18/14/2007 861 BN §9,000.00 +130,625 00
ADJRUIZ0 yReversing JEB1. C 1811/2007 664 BN £9,000.00 -41,625.00
purznacraslawyﬂ.pumhase cosl & pr 181112007 805 an B9,000.00 «130,625.00
ADJpurzbacresiawy,Raversing 1885, & 18/14/2007 865 BN §9,000.00 -41,626,00
pur2Oacresiewysl, purchase cosi & pr 1811142007 887 BN 89,000.00 -130,625.00
AOmeiﬂauaslawy.Rwersing Jagr. C 1811142007 8ad BN £9,000.00 -41,625.00
purmweswwst.purchnsa DSt & pr 18/11/2007 365 GJ 89,000.00 -130,625.00
waritn, G 0380 - $14756 Alberta Lid 17/12/2007 a4 GJ 13,750.00 ~144,375.00
Kettim, Katim Kaba 2nd Instalment 14101/2208 821 Gl 13,760.90 -158,125.00
Change 267,000.00 426,125.00 .168.125.00
Close -158,125.00
1000 Shara capital - common Opening ~100.00
3560 Retalned Earnings - Previous Year Opening 8,647.17
adjust opening retained samings a0/04/2008 11 At 2,146,233 6.500.84
ta priar yasr's closing balance
Change .00 2,146.33 -2,145.32
Clote 6,500.84
R ——
4010 Okotoks Project Optning 0.00
Okatoks. Okoloks Sete Procceds 3440512007 248 G 660,000.00 -680,700.00
Chunge 0.00 666,000,00 866,000.00
Close £50,000.00
080642020
10:42 PM Page 35
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05102117
Accrual Basis

1178929 Alberta Ltd

Trial Balance
As of April 30, 2015

1040 - Bank - Servus # 169

1045 - Bank - Servus # 880

1050 - Bank - First Calgary # 205

1055 - Bank - First Calgary - Common S

1060 - Bank - FIrst Calgary - C5 CU

1070 - Cash Clearing

Inventory-204:1210 - 204 Morgans Way - Land
Inventory-204;1220 - 204 Morgans Way - Building
Inventory-204:1250 - Inventory writedown- 204

1200 - Inventory:1230 - 20 Acres Elbow - Farm Residence

1290 - Loan receivable; 1300 - Loan rec.-101103086 Saskatch...

2000 - A/P:2040 - Accounts Payable-Kim-Springbank

2000 - A/P:2045 + Accounts payable-Accrual

2270 - Deposit-20 Acres1045607-Good-Km

2500 - Loan Payable:2520 - Loan-Karim Kaba-12.5% 20 Acres
2500 - Loan Payable:2530 - Loan-Salim Lalani-12.5%-20 Acre
2500 - Loan Payable:2540 - Laan-Noorani Invest-25% 20 Acre
2599 - S/H:2030  Interast payable-5/H Loans

2599 - 5/H:2600 - Shareholders Loan-Mahmood

2589 - 5/H:2610 - Shareholder Loans-Murad Tejpar

2599 - 5/H:2620 : Shareholder Loans-Gurpreet Lall

2599 - §/M;2622 - Loan - Paul Lail

2599 - §/H:2630 - Shareholder Loans-Jasprit Lail

2599 - §/H:2660 : Loan Payabie - Harpal/Amarjit

2800 - Bank Loans:2810 - Mortgage - 170 - Morgan Rise
2800 - Bank Loans:2820 - Mortgage - B5D - 20 Acres

2900 - Related parties:2700 - Loan pay-Beilagio Homes-relat...

3260 - Share Capitai

3900 - Retalned Earnings

4010 - Rental Income - Morgan Rise

4030 - Rental Income-20 AcreSpring Bnk
Alc'ting and legal: 5010 - Accounting

Mortg. Int.:5420 * Mortagage Interest -Morgan Rise
Mortg. Int.:5425 - Mortgage Interest - 20 Acres
Prop.Tx:53565 - Property Tax - 20Acres
Prop.Tx:5570 - Property Tax - Morgan Rise
5401  Insurance

5410 - Interest & Bank Charges

5755 - Repairs & Maintenance -20 Acres

5760 - Assoclation fee-Morgan Rise

TOTAL

Ea{ Wi & 47

Apr 30, 15
Debit Cradit
1,208.57
1.27
1.510.54
27.58
30.50
0.00
420,713.29
1538476.91
228,699.00
168297917
163,522.79
128.814.21
3,210.00
1,000.00
86,025.37
87.,726.26
172.050.74
45,960.00
413,794.37
322,763.45
108,233.67
3,842.58
11,300.00
4,450.00
1028761.43
B838,784.45
244,379.07
100.00
46,477.54
$0,000.00
48,000.00
3,210.00
41,978.45
34,562.48
3,031.08
8,436.69
4,893.95
220.75
311.11

1,250.00
3906372.14 3008372.14

Page 1
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THIS IS EXHIBIT®
' . . referred to in the
(o

lDe

Clerk's %)be:zrje me this %

You are.being sued. You are a defendant,

Goto the end of this document to see what you san do and whan you must do i,

Note: State below only facts and not evidence {Rule 13.6)

Statemont of facts relied on:

1

The Plaintiff, Servus Oredit Unlon Lid., is a financlal instution, operating pursuant i the Credit
Union Ast, R.8.A, 2000, ¢ C-32, wiiich provides financial services throughout the Province of
Alverta, whose head aoffice {s located In the City of Edmanion, In the Province of Alberta,

The Defendant, 1178928 Albera Ltd. (*1178"),.Is a coeporation incorporated pursuant fo the laws
of the Province of Albarta and cany on business in and around Calgary, Alberta.

The Defendants, Murad Tejpar (‘Murad"), Mahmoad Tejpar (“Mahmood"), Jasprit Lail (*Jasprit’),
and Gurpreet Lail-Challwal ("Gurpreat’), are indlviduais who reside in or around Calgary, Albarta.

On the appiicafion of 1178, the Plaintiffl agreed to extend to 1178:

(@ term loan facility in the maximum princlpal sum of $947,405.80; and

(b} a term. loan facllity In the maximum principal sum of $790,956.42;

{collactively, the “Loans"), the lanms of which are set out in the Credit Facility Letter dated March

14, 2018 (the “Facility Letter").

NATDOCS\7939180W.2 ﬂ

2003.13227 idhe D.20 2e_
COURT FILE NUMBER ‘
COURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALEERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE EDMONTON
PLAINTIFF SERVUS CREDIT UNION LTD.
DEFENDANTS 1178920 ALBERTA LTD., MURAD TEJPAR,
MAHMOOD TEJPAR, JASPRIT LAIL, and GURPREET
LAIL-DHALIWAL .
DOCUMENT STATEMENT OF CLAIM
ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND Dentong Canada LLP
CONTACT INFORMATION OF PARTY 2500 Stantec Tower
FILING THIS DOCUMENT 10220 103 Ave NW
Edmonton, Alberta T5J OK4 \
Ph, {180) 423.7219 Fx, (780) 423-729%
File No.: 405682-454
Lawyar; Tom Gusa
NOTICE TO DEFENDANTS
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8. Pursuant to the Facllity Lefler, 1178 agreed, expressly or impliedly, among other things that:

{a} 1178 shal repay the Loans by way of monthly blended payments of principal and
Interest, as amended by the ‘Plainliff and 1178;

(b the Interest rate on the Loans is 2,00% per anaum above the prime rate of interest
maintained by the Plainliff from time to lime (“Prime"). calculated dally and payabls
monthiy;

{c) the Loans are payabig:in full on dsmand by the Plaintiff; and
{d) 1178 wauld pay to the Plaintiff all costs and expensss (Including legal fees on a sollcitor

and his own clfent, full Indemnity basls) incutred by the Flalntlff o establish, preserve or
enforce any rights granfed 1o the Plaintiff under the tarms of the Loans and Facility Letter.

6. There Is due and owing to the Plaintiff under tha Facifily Lefier as al August 4, 2020 as follows:

Term Loan

Principal $ 890,296.54
Inferest $ 23,388.45
Total $ 92268499
PerDlermn - $183.56

Tarm Loan

Principat - $  753,12581
Interest $ 14,704.53
Total $ 767.830.14
Per Gtem - $153,72

{the sum of tha above amounis Is referred to herein as the “Indabtednass”),

7. By & Morigage made under the Land Titles Act, RSA 2000, ¢ L-4 daled October 28, 2007 and
registered In the Land Titles Office for the Alberta Land Ragistralion Districi as registration
numbsar 071 566 202, 1178 mortgaged to Community Credit Unjon Ltd. the lands legally
described as

MERIDIAN 5 RANGE 3 TOWNSHIP 24

SECTION 5§

THE WEST HALF OF LEGAL SUBDIVISION & .

CONTAINING 8.09 HECTARES {20 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREQUT THE ROADWAY ON PLAN 6372JK, CONTAINING
0.52 OF AN ACRE MORE OR LESS .

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

{the “First Lands");
as. collateral securlty for the payment by 1178 of iis Jlabiilias pursuant to the Facliity Letter,
including the Indebtedness, lo the maximum principal amoun! of $910,000.00, plus interest and

cesls on a solicitor and his own client, fulf indemnity basls (the “Pirst Mortgage"). The Firsi
Morigage was subsequently assigned to the Plainti#,

NATDOCSW7839100W.2
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8. By lhe Flrst Morigage, 1178 agreed thal nelther the First Morigage nor the taking of a judgment
or on the exercise of any remedies in respeat of any of the cavenants oragreements therein shall
operate-as amerger of the debl insiruments 6r any other presant or future Instruments or security
which the Plaintiff may hold for payment of the indebtedness secured or of the indebledness itseif
or in any way suspend the payment of, affect or prejudice the rights, remedies or powers, legal or
equileble, which the Plsintiff may hokd in connection with the debt instrument or any dther prasent
or fulure Instrument or security held for payment of the:Indebledness: securad.

9. Alse by the First Mortgage, 1178 cavenanied with the Plaintiff to pay ail taxes, uliiities and rates,
llens, charges encumbrances and claims which may be levied against the First Lands or on the
First Mortgage which may falf due &r be unpaid and also to insure the bulldings and chatiels on
the First Lands agalnst damage by‘fire, tempasi, lornado, cyclone, lighteriing and such other risks
ag the Plaintiff may deem appraprists, in defaull of all or any of which the Plaintiff should have the
fght to do the same and add to the First Morigage- all costs in that regard and in respect to any
proceedings. taken lo reafize the monjes securad by the First Morigage, including fees and
charges of the Plantiffs sailciiors as belweeri a solicitor and his own client on a full Indemnily
basis,

G, By an Assignmeni of Rents. and Leases dated October 29, 2007 and registered in the Land Titles
Ofiice for the Alberta Land Raglstration District as registratlon numbar 071 556 203, 1178 granled
lo Community Credit Unfon Lid, an assignment of all leases and rents, and the full power and
authority to demand, collect, sue for, distrain for, recover. and recalve the leases and rents in
respect of the Firat Lands, as security for the payment by 1178 of is Habllitles, including the
Indebtedniass, This Assignmeént of Rents and Leases was subsequently assigned o the Flaintiff,

1. By a Morigage made under the Land Tilles Act, RSA 2000, ¢ L4 dated March 11, 2009 and
fegistered in the Land Titles Office for the Alberta Land Reglstration District as registration
number 081 088.827,. 1178 morgaged io the Plaintiff the lands legally described as

PLAN 0514055

BLOCK 1

LOT 27

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS
AREA: 0.86 HECTARES (2.1 ACRES)MORE OR LESS

{the “Sacond Landg"),

88 collateral securily for the payment by 1178 of its llablities pursuant to the Facility Letier,
ncluding the indebtedness, to (he maximum principal amount of $1,080,000.09, plus Interest and
costs on a solicltor and his own client, full indemnily basis {the “Sacond Mortgage”),

12 By the Second Morgage, 1178 agreed that neither the Second Morigage nor the {aking of a
Judgment or on the exercise of any remedies In respsct of any of the covenants or agreements
thereln shall operate as a merger of the debl Insiruments or eny other present or futurs
instruments or securlty which the Plaintiff may hold for payment of the Indebtedness securad or of
he indebtedness itself or In any way suspend the payment of, affect or prefudice the righis,
remadies or powars, legal or equitable, which the Plaintiff may hald in connsction: with the debt
inslrument or any other present or future instrument or security held for paymant of ths
indebtedness secured,

NATDOCSWTI397150\W2
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13. Also by the Second Mortgage, 1178 covenanted wills the Plaintiif to pay all taxes, utilitles and
rates, liens, charges encumbrances and clalms which may be levied against ihe Sacond Lands or
on the Sscond Morigage which may fall due or be unpaid and also te Insura the bulldings and
chatlels on thé ‘Second Lands against damage by fire, tampest, larnado, cyclone, lightening and
such other risks as the Plalntiff may deem appropriate, in defaull of all or any of which the Plalntiff
should have the right to do lhe same and add to the Second Mortgage all costs in that ragard and
In respect to any proceadings {zken lo realize the monies secured by the Second Morigage,
Inchiding fees and charges of the Plainli's solicitors as between a solicltor and his own client on
a full Indemnily basls.

14, By an Assignment of Rents and Leases dated March 11, 2009 and registered in the Land Tiles
Offica for the Alberta Land Registratign District as registration number 091 068 828, 1178 granled
to the Plainliff ar assignment of all leases and renls, and the full powar and. aulhority {0 demand,
collect, sua for, distrain for, recover, and recslva the leasses and rents in respect of the Second
Lands, as security for the Payment by 1178 of its fiabllitles, Including the Indebledness.

15. As additional security for ths payment and performance of all debts, liabilitles, and obligations of
1178 to the Plaintii, howscaver arising {prasenl and fulure, absolule and contingent, diract and
Indirect), by a General Security Agreement dated Qclobsr 29, 2007 {the “First GSA"), 1178
granted io the Plaintiff a securily Interest In all present. and after acquired personal property of
1178 located at or on or refated fo the First Lands and all proceeds thereof. The First -GSA
sacures all of the Indebtedniess.

16. On or about August 17, 2007, the security imerest granted by 1178 In the First GSA was
registered In the Personal Property Registry for the Province of Alberia as reglsiration number
07081732030,

17. As additionel security for the payment and parformance of all debts, liatilitles, and obligallons of
1178 to the Plalntitt, howsaever arising (present and future, absolute and contingent, direct and
Indirect), by a Specific Securlty Agreement dated March 11, 2008 (the “Second GSA"), 1178
granted to the Plaintiff a securlty Interest in all present and after acquired personal property of
1178 located st or on or related to the Second Lands and all proceeds thereof. The Secand GSA
secures all of e Indebladness,

18 On or aboul March 10, 2008, the secunly Infersst grented by 1178 in in the Second GSA was
registarad in the Paersonal Property Registry for the Province of Alberia as reglsiration number
09031006569,

19, To further secure tha dus paymeni and discharge of all present and future indebtedness and
Hablliity of 1178 to the Plaintiff, including the indebtadness, on or about Qctober 19, 2016, Murad,
Mahmood, Jasprit, and Gurpreel, and each of tham, executed a Guaranteo and Postponement in
favour of the Plalniff {the “Guarantee”), jointly and severally guarantseing the due payment and
discharge of all present and future Indebledness and liability of 1178 (o the Plalnti, plus Inlerest
thereon at the interest rates sel gut inthe Facllity Lelter, plus all costs, charges and expenses,
ineluding legal fees and disbursements on a solicitor and kis own client basis (ihe “Guaranteed
Indebtedness”),

20, On or about June 22, 2020, the Plaintif demanded payment of the indabtedriess from 1178, but
1178 has falled or neglscled and continues lo fall or neglect io pay the indebtedness. Concurrent

NATDOCSWTE5B180V-2
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with the issuance of the demand for payment, the Plainliff did serve on 1178 a Notice of Intention
to Enforce Security pursuant to section 244 of the Bénkruplcy and insolvency Act.

21, On or about June 22, 2020, the Plaintiff demanded payment of the Guaranteed Indeblednass
from Murad, Mahmoad, Jasprit, and Gurpreet, and each of them, but Murad, Mahmood, Jasprit,
and Guipreet, and each of them, have falled or neglected and continua to fai] or neglect to pay
the Guaranieed Indebtedhess,

22, 1178 has defaullad under the terms of the First Morlgage, Second Morgage, First GSA, and
Second GSA,

23, 1178, Murad, Mahmood, Jasprit, and Gurpreet, and each of them, have defaulted under the
terms of thelr respective sgreements and guarantees with the Plaintif,

24, The Plaintiff proposas that the tral of this action ba held at the Law Courls, in Edmonlon, Alberta,
Romedy sought:

(a) Walver of the requirement for the parties to engage In a dispule resclution process as
contemplated by Rule 4.16 of the Alberta Rules-of Court, AR 124/2010,

{b) Judgment as follows;

{ Judgment against 1178, Murad, Mahmood, Jasprit, and Gurpreat, joinlly and
severally, In the amount of $1,680,645.13 as of August 4, 2020 together with
interest from and after August 4, 2020 untll the date of judgment at the rate of
2.00% per annum above Ptima;

(i Judgmant in such further or ather sums as thls Honourable Court may direct: and

(i) Costs on a solicltor and his own clfenl, full Indemnity basls or such oiher basis as
this Henourable Court may deern Just and apprapriate In the circumsiances,

(c) Allernatively, interest on all sums due and owing pursuant to the Judgment interast Act,
RSA 2000, ¢, J-1.

{d) A declaration ss to the amount owing under the First Morigage with interest according to
the terma of the First Morigege and, in default of payment, sale or foreclosure .and
possession of the First Lands,

{e) An Qrder for possession of the First Lands.

{n An Order aliowlng the Plaintiff o ils duly authorlzed. sgent to be at liberty lo enter the First
Lands for the purposes of doing eny and afl things necessary io preserve the praparty
and for an Order that the Plaintiff shall not be considared a maortgagee In possession or
frespacser,

(9} A declaralion as to the amount owing under the Secaond Morigaga with interest according

{o the terms of the Sacond Morigage and, i defauli of payment, sale or foreclosure and
possession of the Second Lands,

NATOOCS\WT038190W-2
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(h) An Ordear-for possession of the Second Lands.

{H) An Qrder aflowing the: Plaintiff or its duly authorized .agent to be at liberly to enter the
Second Lands for the purposes of doing any and &l things necessary to preserve tha
property and for an Order that the Plaintiif shall not be cansldered & morigagee in

[possassion or trespasser.

f) An Ordar shorteriing the parfod of redemptien ar seiting the period of redemplion for such
period as this Honourable Court may direct.

k) A deciaration that the security gramied by 1178 in favour of the Plaintiff is valid and
anforceable.

(1) Such furthar aceount and inquiries as may be rlegassary.,

{m) Such further and other relief as the nalure of the case may require and this Honourable
Court may desm just,

NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANT(S)
You only have a short fime to do scmathing o defend yoursell agalnst this clafm:
20 days if you are served in Alberla
1 month if you ars served outside Alberta bul In Canada
2 months if you are served outside Canada
You can respond by filing a sialement of defence or a damand for notice in. the office of the clerk of the
Court of Queen's Bench at Edmanton, Alberta, AND serving your statement of defence or 2 demand for
| notice on the plaintiff's address for service.
WARNING
If you do not fila and serve a statement of dafence or a demand for notice within your time period, you Figk

losing the lsw suil automatically. If you do not file, or do nel serve, or are late in doing elther of these
things, a court may give a judgment io the plaintifi{s) agains| you.
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Form 1

COUR'T FILE NUMBER 2003-13227

COURT COURT OF QUEIEN'S BENCH OF ‘

A{HERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRY EDMONTON i E
i
PLAINTIFF(S) SERVUS CREDIT UNION LTD. : %
H . r_) !
DEFENDANT(S) 1178929 ALBERTA L'TD,, MURAD
TEIPAR, MAHMQOD) TRIPAR, D
FASPRIT LATY , und GURPREET LAIL- gﬁg @ 1:50 pm
[HIALIWAL 027177
DOCUMENT STATEMENT OF DEFENCLE
PARTY FILTNG THIS MURAD TRIPAR and MAHMOQOR
DOCUMENT TEPAR
APRDRNSE FOR SERVICE VOOREL VERJER
AND Suite 200
CONTACT 128 -2 Ayenue SE
INFORMATION OF Culgaey, AB T2 518
PARTY FILINCG TIIS
POCUMENT Attenfion: Zul Verjee, Q.C.

Telephone: ¢|03-532-8881

Fagyimife: 403-532-8870

File No,:  333653-2682
Nate: State below oaly facts and not evidence (feule 13.6}

Statement of fagee relled on;

1, Lixcept where hervinafter expressly aduited, Murad Tejpar end Mehmood ‘Tujpar (Legether

veforred (0 us “ihese Defendants®), deny cach and every sllegation contuined w1 che

Stwiement of Claim, and put the Plaintifl, Servus Cradit Unlon Lid, (“Servas™) to the stricl

prootthereof. '

z. In soswer 1o the whole of the Statement of Claim, these Defendants deny thul the
Delondant, 1178920 Alherta Lid, (#117*) dufiulied on the terms of the Fira Morlgage,
Sceond Mortage, Plest GSA and Second U8A (us defined in the Staterent of Clain), s

alleged in dhe Statement of Claim, or al all, and put the Plaintift o the strict proof thercof, b

N
\\W by F/l\_
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b further answer o e whole of the Statement of Claim, Lhore Defendants deny they
provided u Guarwmee (te defined In the Statemenr of Claim) for 117’5 indzbtedness as

alleged in the Statement of Claitn, or a1 all, and put the Plaintiff t the strict proof thereof,

T further answer to t}:e whole of lhie Stutement of Claim, these Defendants deny that they
breached any duty that they owed, or muy have owed to the Plafatiff in contract, whether
85 elleged in the Statoment of Claim, or at all, and put the PlaimilT to the Strict peoat
theraaf,

Further, or in the siwrpative, these Defendants staic thal it the Guarantes for |17's
indebivdnesy was rovided on their behalf, which is not admited, but strictly denicd, suid
Guarspilce was nof preperly cxcounied o did ot comply with the Guurantees
Acknowledgment Act, RSA Et}t')f}, c(G-11,

Further, or i the alternative, these Defondants state that thal if the Quurantes for 1179
indebtedness was provided on their behalf, which 12 not admitted, bist strivtly denled, the
Plaintiff falled to demand puymenl un the said Coaranice,

These Detendants pload und wly upon the Guararmees Acknowivdgment det, RSA 2000,

and regulntions therefo, all az amended,

Any mateers thut defeat the claimn of the Plaintif¥s);

These Defendants rely on the tollowing uy further answer to the Blaintitts slaim:

8.

These Detendants ropem and further rely on pryzgraphs 1 thraugh 7 sel out abhove,

In Turther answer o the whole Stateinent of Cluim, these Defendanis stale that if the
Guarantee for | 7°s indabledness was provided s alleged, or ar all, which s not admited,
but dettied, any brewch of sald Guaranlee was the resubl of direel or indirect
tisrepresentutions, upon which these Defendants relled in exventing the Guarantee, and
which have nol been honoured by Servug, some particulurs of which include, but are nut

limited te, the following;

) Thot Servuy faifed, refused, or neglested 1o provide fell, or any reporting, contrary

lo Lhe representations and warrahties thai it da S0

.
uy)
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b)Y That contrary. to the implied contracha) duty of good faith, Servas fiiled to
provide, or prematorely-sent, & demand:for farids from 7

W That, contrury fo the ,j’gﬁ_pl_tcd,,;umt‘r,agtugd Uty of goad faith, Rervns prematurely
rogaied the Grarunice. and ie Loans.(hs defiasd In the:Statempnt of Clidmy;

d) That Sepvus, withSul. €xplanation o sesoiifngg, has souglit the’ missciminn ymoust
of the: Guarantee fram these Dofendants, dospili: the [aet that payments made
reduged theLoans frum thedr maximum angunis; uod

e} Such further am| other particutars ay: will bt proven at th-rial of'thig action.

Puuthés, and in the ahternintive, these Disferdants state that it 1|7 dethulted ot the First
Mortgape, Second Marigags, ¥ irElE(38A and. Seecnd (ISA 4s-alleged in the Stitlement of
Claim; or aL.a); any default was:tho respll of (he:casD efondants; Jasprit Lail gad ‘Gurprect
I‘,ui'l-ﬁhaniwug}_ breaching. the fiduciary: dutles they owed to [17 .as directois, some
particulars of whict .inc}ﬁp_jﬁe bt are not Ihrmfeed] oy

8] Failing: to ¢om munidate with these Detendénty In-thelr cupacity-as diteglors of ) 17
b Talling tespond & requests. for Hitoimatigh and/or recseds: inade by thede

Defendants 1 thatr capachty as diréctors.of'] 17 '

c) Refusing to contribiste feir share of -1 17%. expenses, ax agreed o with these
Drsfendants;

&y Refisi g W Firm arzecognizg the finuneial satemerils preprred by the aceountant
ok 117,

&) Refusing to-cooperate, i the valuatici of ihe fireperty contsniled by 117, such‘that
¥ ;‘.f_;ii‘lc.cf’iha:hm'puﬂy\mﬂ'[d.‘n'_nf- be dpmpletedyand

Iy Buch Aifther aind other particuiars as will he proven at e tida) of this acflan.

These Defendants stats, that:the. cumulatiye: offéct of.the foregoing has stymivd 117
ability o operate ond ‘ubstriected ity eftorts: to-ndheis to the grecments with Servys,
prejidicing 117,

S
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12, Tuihermore, these Defundans state, diat 10 the Guarantoes Mot 117%s indehtudness wers
provided as alleged, or at al), the cumidative eftoct of the foregoing has materially Increnscd
the risk of the Guaranlees and thal the mulerisf fnercase fn sisk has dizcharped any
obligation which may have existed from these Tefendants,

Remedy snupbi;
1} ‘These Defendants seek the foflowing remedics:
) Dismissal of lhe colirety of the Plainl{fs claims, with costs; or

b) In the ullernutive, contribiion ar indemnity from the co-Defendants in an seoant

b provun at the trail ot'this acting,
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Affidavit of MURAD TEJPAR sworn oun the 24 day of July, 2020
I, Murad Tejpar, of Calgary, Alberta, MAKE OATH AND SAY THAT:

1, T am one of the Applicants named herein and, as such, I have personal knowledge of the
matters hereinafter deposed to except where stated to be based on information and belief
and, where so stated, I do verily believe same to be true.

Background

2. The co-Applicant, Mahmood Tejpar, the Respondents, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal and Jaspreet
Lail, and I (together the “Parties”} are sharcholders in 1178929 Alberta Ltd.
(the "Corporation™). We are all Directors of the Corporation, which owns property in
Alberta. Each shareholder controls 25% of the voting shares. There is no unanimous
shareholder agreement between the Parties and the Corporation. A true copy of a corporate
regisiry search result for 1178929 Alberta Ltd. is hereto attached as Exhibit “A”,

3. The Corporation was incorporated by the Parties on June 27, 2005, for the purpose of
purchasing land for development. Another entity, Bellagio Homes Inc. (“BHI”), was
subsequently incorporated by Mahmood Tejpar, and a relation of the Respondents, Pawan
Dhaliwal, on July 12, 2007, to carry out the construction of housing developments on the
acquired land. Although the Corporation and BHI are separate entities, it was the Parties’
intention that these corporations would work in concert with one another. A true copy of a
corporate registry search result for Bellagio Hormes Inc. is hereto attached as Exhibit “B”.

hg =
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Decisions refated to the operation of the Corporation and BHI were made jointly by the
Parties and their relations. The Applicants and their father, Mumtazali Tejpar, made up the
“Tejpar Group” and the Respondents and their relations, Paul Lail Sr., Pawan Dhaliwal,
and Amarjit Kaur Lail, made up the “Lail-Dhaliwal Group”. While the Parties relations
are not, and have never been, shareholders or directors of the Corporation, the reality is that
they played a central role in the manner in which the Corporation and BHI were operated.

In particular, Paul Lail Sr. and Mumtazali Tejpar, the patriarchs of the two groups, were
heavily involved in the formation of the Corporation and in choosing the land it purchased.
The Parties primarily acted on the direction of Paul Lail Sr. and Mumtazali Tejpar when
making decisions with respect to the purchase, development and sale of land.

Paul Lail Sr. also actively involved himself in overseeing the Corporation’s financials,
including annually reviewing the corporate trial balance between 2005 and 2013 and meeting
with the Corporation’s accountant on behalf of the Lail-Dhaliwal Group to have the
financials approved. The other members of the Lail-Dhaliwal Group, including the
Respondents, relied upon Paul Lail St. to represent their interests during the operative years
of the Corporation and did not choose to take an active part in the corporate decision making
until late 2017,

The Corporation carried on the business of purchasing and selling land between 2005 and
2009. This included a number of properties in the community of Aspen Woods in southwest
Calgary, as well as 20 acres of land in Springbank (the “20 Acres”) and a property located
at 204 Morgan Rise SW (“Morgans Rise”). The majority of land purchased by the
Corporation was developed by BHI before it was sold. Paul Lail Sr. acted as realtor for the
Corporation and made a commission on ¢ach sale.

Funding for the purchase of land and its development was provided through the Tejpar
Group, the Lail-Dhaliwal Group, several outside investors and through credit facilities
provided by Servus Credit Union Ltd. (“Servus Credit Unien™). The loans or investments
made to the Corporation were recorded in the Corporation’s general ledgers, which for the
period of 2005 through 2009 were prepared by the accounting firm, Ruhal, Warren and
Chugh (“RWC™), which had been retained by Paul Lail Sr. on behalf of the Corporation.
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit *“C” is a copy of the Corporation’s general ledgers
for the period 2005 to 2009.

During this period, members of the Tejpar Group and the Lail-Dhaliwal Group would meet
with RWC at the end of each fiscal year to review and approve the Corporation’s financial
statements before they were finalized. Mahmood Tejpar, as well as Paul Lail Sr. and Pawan
Dhaliwal of the Lail-Dhaliwal Group, attended at each review of the Corporation’s financial
statements which took place between 2005 and 2009. Each shareholder was provided an
opportunity to review and raise concems with respect to the financial statements ahead of the
meeting.

In May 2007, the Corporation loaned $80,000.00 io myself and Mahmood Tejpar and
$80,000.00 to the Respondents to fund the purchase of land in Saskatchewan (the “Aberdeen
Land”) by a numbered corporation, 101103086 Saskatchewan Ltd. The Parties are
shareholders of 101103086 Saskatchewan Ltd., sach controlling 12.5% of the voting shagss-
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The numbered corporation, 101103086 Saskatchewan Ltd., currently retains ownership of
the Aberdeen Land.

On Qctober 29, 2007, the Corporation entered into a General Security Agreement with
Servus Credit Union which guaranteed the mortgage debt on 20 Acres. 1 no longer have a
copy of the General Security Agreement, with all available copies residing in the
Respondents’ possession, but they are mentioned in the Credit Facility Letter attached as
Exhibit “E” to my Affidavit.

Similarty, on March 11, 2009, the Corporation entered into a Specific Security Agreement
with Servus Credit Union which guaranteed the mortgage debt on the Morgans Rise. [ no
longer have a copy of Specific Security Agreement, with all available copies residing in the
Respondents’ possession, but they are mentioned in the Credit Facility Letter attached as
Exhibit “E” to my Affidavit.

In August 2009, the Parties decided to refrain from purchasing or developing further land
through the Corporation or BHI due to the state of the economy. The Corporation retained
the 20 Acres and Morgans Rise, however, which remained subject to the mortgages held by
Servus Credit Union.

After 2009, the Parties sought an alternative accounting firm for the Corporation to reduce
costs. Myself and Paul Lail Sr. retained Rahim Samji Euphoria Management
(“RSE Management™) on behalf of the Corporation in 2010. RSE Management provided
accounting for the 2010 fiscal year, after which it was replaced by Paul Lail Sr. and myself
with the accountant Aruna Lalani.

In or around early 2011, myself, Mahmood Tejpar, Pawan Dhaliwal and Aruna Lalaini met
with Paul Lail Sr. at his request. During the meeting, Paul Lail Sr. recommended that the
shareholder loans in BHI be transferred to the Corporation now that neither company was
operating. It was my understanding that this was done to concentrate the shareholder loans
of the Tejpar Group and the Lail-Dhaliwal Group within a single Corporation for tax
purposes, The transfers were documented in the Corporation’s 2011 general ledger.

Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “D” is a copy of the Corporation’s general ledger
for 2011,

Subsequently, the Parties entered into an Unlimited Joint and Several Guarantee and
Postponement of Claim with Servus Credit Union, guaranteeing the mortgage debt on
Morgans Rise and the 20 Acres, respectively. Further, myself, Mahmood Tejpar, and
Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal all entered into a separate Formal Assignment and Postponement of
Shareholder’s Loans with Servus Credit Union on or around April 26, 2012, I no longer have
a copy of these documents, with all available copies residing in the Respondents’ possession,
but they are mentioned in the Credit Facility Letter attached as Exhibit “E” to my Affidavit.

In 2013, Paul Lail Sr. passed away. Mahmood and I continued to mest with Aruna Lalani to
review the financial statements on an annual basis, The remaining membel:s of the Lail-
Dhaliwal Group continued to receive and approve of the Corporation’s financial staterments,

N
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but chose not to attend the review of these statements with the accountant. /\

<2



T;xw’; g 52—

(4)

18. Subsequently, in late 2017, two separate offers were made for the purchase of Morgans Rise
in the amount of $1,250,000.00 and $1,290,000.00. The Parties discussed the offers and
made a decision to reject them.,

19. On March 14, 2018, the Corporation received a Credit Facility Letter from Servus Credit
Union approving refinancing of the Morgans Rise and 20 Acre mortgages. Attached hereto
and marked as Exhibits “E” to this my Affidavit is a true copy of the Credit Facility Letter,
dated March 14, 2018.

20. The Corporation still owns Morgans Rise and the 20 Acres, both of which remain subject to
the mortgages held by Servus Credit Union. Asof June 11,2020, $912,773.02 was outstanding
on the mortgage for Morgans Rise and carried a monthly morigage payment of $8,622.00. In
turn, the amount owing in relation to the mortgage on the 20 Acres was in the amount of
$759,529.25 and carried a monthly mortgage payment of $7.211.00.

Shareholder Loans and Default on Mortgages

21. Between 2009 and 2020, the Tejpar Group and the Lail-Dhaliwal Group provided loans to
the Corporation to make up shortfalls associated with Servus Credit Union mortgage
payments, and with regards to taxes, insurance, association fess and utilities on the 20 Acres
and Morgans Rise properties. The loans were recorded in the Corporation’s financial
statements and approved by the Parties on an annual basis prior to being finalized by the
accountiant.

22. Ihave reviewed the general ledgers of the Corporation (as of April 30 of the respective years)
prepared by RWC, RSE Management and Aruna Lalani and do verily believe the same to be
true that in 2018, the shareholder loan balance of the Parties was set out as follows:

a. $475,247.14 to Mahmood Tejpar;
b. $342,400.10 to Murad Tejpar,
c. $130,732.03 to Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal; and

d. $57,509.86 to Jasprit Lail.

Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “F” is a copy of the Corporation’s general ledgers
for the years 2010 to 2018.

3. 1 have further reviewed the financial records of the Corporation for the period of May 2018
to May 2019, and verily believe to be true that the following additional shareholder loans
have been made to the Corporation since the 2018 fiscal year ended:

a. $18,470.15 has been provided by Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal;
b. $18,795.42 has been provided by Jaspreet Lail; and
c. $44,022.40 has been provided by myself and Mahmood Tejpar from a joint account.

1SS
g

24. Accounting has not been completed for the 2019 fiscal year.
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Given the foregoing, the shareholder Joans of the Corporation currently stand as follows:
a. $497,258.34 to Mahmood Tejpar;
b. $364,411.30 at Murad Tejpar;
c. $149,202.18 to Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal; and

d. $76,305.28 to Jaspreet Lail.

In addition to the foregoing shareholder loan amounts, I do verily believe that the general
ledgers and financial records of the Corporation set out the following loan amounts as owing
to other members of the Lail-Dhaliwal Group, several third-party investors and BHI:

a. $7,042.58 to the estate of Paul Lail Sr.;
b. $11,027.72 to Amarjit Kaur Lail;

¢. $100,536.58 to Karim Kaba;

d. $100,536.69 to Salim Lalani;

e. $201,091.65 to Noor Noorani; and

f. $241,428.57 to BHI.

Despite having had an opportunity to review, and having approved the financial staternents
between 2005 and 2018, the Respondents began to dispute the shareholder loan amount
attributable to the Parties in the Corporation’s financial Statements in or around October
2018.

Mahmood Tejpar and T subsequently met with the Lail-Dhaliwal Group on a number of
occasions to attempt a resolution of the dispute related to the shareholder loan amounts, The
most recent meetings have taken place on April 3, 2020, April 19, 2020 and May 3, 2020.
Despite these meetings, the Respondents continue to dispute the shareholder loan amounts
set out in the Corporation’s financial statements. The disagreement in relation to the
shareholder loans has led to an ongoing deadlock of the Parties’ relationship, which is
negatively affecting the Corporation.

Further, the members of the Lail-Dhaliwal Group have repeatedly failed to cooperate with
Mahmood Tejpar and I or to respond to our requests for information or those requests made
by third party investors or Servus Credit Union. This conduct on the part of the Respondents
has stymied the Corporation’s ability to function and obstructed the Parties® efforts to sell
the 20 Acres, Morgans Rise and Aberdeen Lands. Examples of such requests include:

a. On June 14, 2019, the Parties agreed that myself and Pawan Dhaliwal would obtain
separate Market Assessment Valuations for the 20 Acres so that the Parties could agree
to a listing price. I obtained a Market Assessment Valuation, but Pawan Dhaliwal
failed to do so; ,
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b. OnlJuly 16, 2019, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal asked the Parties to provide the Corporation
with supporting documentation outlining the shareholder loans made. Mahmood
Tejpar and I provided our supporting documentation to the Corporation, but the
Respondents’ supporting documentation was never produced;

c. Also, on July 16, 2019, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal advised myself, Mahmood Tejpar and
an outside investor, Salim Lalani, that the Respondents had retained Emst and Young
to review the Corporation’s financials. We were told that Ernst and Young’s report
would be shared and reviewed with the Parties. To date the report has not been

provided;

d. On October 2, 2019, a representative from Servus Credit Union requested that the
Parties provide personal net worth statements to assist with obtaining a lower rate for
the renewal of the Corporation’s mortgages. The Respondents never responded; and

€. Repeated requests by myself and Mahmood in the summer/fall of 2019 and spring of
2020 for back up documentation to demonstrate the Respondents’ position on the
shareholders loans have been ignored.

Furthermore, Jaspreet Lail failed to contribute his agreed upon share of the 20 Acres and
Morgans Rise mortgage payments for the months of January and March 2018 as well as
February, March and May through September of 2019, resulting in their default.

The Lail-Dhaliwal Group’s failure to pay their share of the Corporation’s mortgage
obligations on time, as well as their refusal to communicate has made it impossible for the
Corporation to meet its obligations to Servus Credit Union. Mahmood and I have lost
confidence in the Respondents’ abilities as Directors and no longer trust that they are acting
in the best interests of the Corporation.

On May 13, 2020, the Corporation received a letter of default from Servus Credit Union.
The letter set out that the Corporation had defaulted on its payment, reporting and conditional
obligations under the 20 Acres and Morgans Rise mortgages and the Credit Facility Letter,
dated March 14, 2018. A period of 15 days was provided to remedy the defaults. Attached
hereto and marked as Exhibit “G” is a copy of the letter of default received from Servus
Credit Union, dated May 13, 2020.

The Applicants subsequently retained Zul Verjee, Q.C., Barrister and Solicitor with Verjee
& Associates (*Counsel”) on May 25, 2020 to assist in resolving their dispute with the
Respondents and in responding to Servus Credit Union’s letter of default,

[ have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Verjee and Associates
communicated with counse! for the Respondents, Michael Strilchuk of Strilchuk Law, on a
number of occasions in May, June and July 2020, proposing several scenarios to resolve the
Parties’ dispute. I have further been advised that Verjee and Associates proposed that the
parties attend a mediation/arbitration to resolve their dispute in the event an agreement couid
not be reached.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that despite the substantial
communications between Verjee and Associates and Mr. Strilchuk, a resolution of

<)
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Parties’ dispute was not reached and the Respondents were, and remain, unwilling to attend
mediation/arbitration.

36.  On June 22, 2020, the Corporation received a further letter from counsel for Servus Credit
Union, Tom Gusa, Barrister and Solicitor with Dentons Canada LLP, demanding payment
of its indebtedness to Servus Credit Union, totaling $1,672,302.27. A 10-day deadline was
provided. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “H” is a copy of the demand letter
received from Mr. Gusa, dated June 22, 2020,

37. I'have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Verjee and Associates
subsequently wrote Mr. Gusa on July 3, 2020, requesting that Servus Credit Union forebear
on taking further action in relation to the debt until the end of August 2020, to allow the
Parties an opportunity to resolve their dispute and rectify the Corporation’s defaults.
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “I” is a copy of the letter sent to Mr. Gusa by Verjee
and Associates, dated July 3, 2020.

38. I have been advised by Counsel, and verily believe to be true that Nicholas Mcllhargey of
Verjee and Associates received a telephone call from Mr. Gusa on July 15, 2020. During
the call Mr. Gusa advised Mr. Mcllhargey that Servus Credit Union was no longer interested
in maintaining a retationship with the Cotporation and required full payout. Furthermore,
he advised that any forbearance period agreed to by Servus Credit Union would require
payment of a substantial penalty fee and a consent redemption order for use in the event the
extended deadline was not met.

39.  Based on the foregoing, I do verily believe that it is not possible for the Parties to resolve
their dispute. The dispute has damaged and will continue to damage the Corporation and its
shareholders and it is preventing the Corporation from rectifying its mortgage defaults with
Servus Credit Union.

40.  This Affidavit is made in support of an application for an Order directing the Respondents
to purchase the Applicants’ shares in the Corporation pursuant to 242 of the Alberta Business
Corporations Act, RSA 2000, ¢ B-9, or, in the altemative, to have the Court wind-up and
dissolve the Corporation pursuant to Section 215 or 242 of the Alberta Business
Corporations Act, RSA 2000, ¢ B-9.

SWORN (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME

at City of Calgary, Alberta, this 24 _ day of
July, 2020.

)

)

)

)

) EI\J\ 7 ta—
Commissioner for Qaths in and for the

FORIBHOEXE Mo HaRGEY

BARRISTER & 30LICITOR
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FORM 23 CLRUK'S-STAMp

TRGLE-5:21 and #.15)

COURY FILE NUMBER 2001 - 09142

COURT COURT QP QUIEN'S RENCH OF ALRERTA

AUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

PLAINTIFR(S) MURAD TEIPAR tnd MAHMOOD TEIPAR

DEPENNANT(S) GURPREET LAIL-DHALIWAL AND
JASPREET LAIL

DOCUMENY NOTICE OF APPOTNTMENT FOR

URSTIONING

ADDRESS FOR'SERVICE AND BENNRIT YONRS TP

CONTACT INFORMATION O T3arristers:and Solicitors

PARTY FILING THIS DOCUMENT 4500 Dankers:TTall Nast

855 — 2 Srigct SW

Clgary, ABT2P4K7

Alleption:. Justin R, Lambert / Aumintjol (o) Brae
Telephone Na.! (403) 298-3046 /403298 8167
Fax No.:(403) 265-72 |9

‘Clent File No.: 90471;1

NOTICETO: MIRAD TEJPAR

This netice requires youto-attend thryuestioning,

You must‘ﬁuend'nf_t‘the:d:_ugl, time 4nd plwcs-and for the period specitied belaw.

DATE; ‘Movembar 11,2020
TIME: 10:00 a.m,
PLACE: Vi webpk Gletailsiy be provided)

PERIOD OF ATTENDANCE: B hours

You must netify the questioning party prier o the date af*the appointment regarding any
aitAngericnls il drd ndetsiry. loaddomiudate youd icsinable nécds, The questiontng party

miust, 1 tha exterit reaspnibly’ Possible; tnike: miatgements (6 ievoiminadile those reastinbli
neerls that vou identify,

——

——— ———
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¥ou must s bring soy records:déscribed helpw,

0
OR
2

You are not requited io bring any-rccords.

You mustalsy bring the tollowing resordy;

®

®)

(3]

(d)

All records provided 1o thie. acountagts of 1178929 Alberta Lid, (the
"Corporation™), fir the purposes of prepaing the geniral iedyers, and d@hnunt

flnamoial statemerits of the Copposation; Including without limitation. the recards

provided to Rubul, Warren-and Chugh, Rahim Bumji Buphoria Mimagement and
ArgnaT.glanl;

Any-and all finsndia) stateiments.and tix: refurng for the Corpbration and Bellngid
Homes Ine, (*BITT);

Any qind il bank stetwments for bank aceounis. used or controlied by the.

Corporation or BHI;-

Any and all records related (o the shareholder loansand ather foan smounts Ll are
deseribed in paragraphs 22 through 26.0f te-A Didavit sworn by Murad Fejparon
July’ 24,2020, inchuding It npt Binited to;

{ij Loan agresments;
(i)  Chéques orgther regords showling the adianeement of finds:
(ily  Ban¥ staternents showing ihe deposit oF the futtds;

(iv} Conesponderice rélated to'the alloged. [ogns.

An allowsiee.that is required fa bo paid to you for atiending as n witness accompanics.flils

natice.

e ———y
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Thenllowanee 1s euloulnidd-ns follows:

Allowance. peyabli foi-cach day of pait of

& diry nereusabily:sion, by sou us'd witness: | $50.00
Neals $11.46
Accommodation N/A
“Trarisporation $6:80
TOTAL $68.40

exwhen S3

WARNING

thie Court, if this persdn,

Thy Coutl. muy ordgr & person to ttend for. questioninfy, al o dale, fime and place spesified by

{4) iy requiced to ha.quj_cstio'm:ﬁ" under. the Afherin Rules af oy,
(b wis sersied wl'th‘a,ﬁnﬁd&'bt’ﬂppc%’iﬁﬂmm;ﬁm‘:’tuws‘t loning under thie & therta Rifss of
Couet, ;
€Y wiis provided with sm allwaiice, deteimined in nceardarice, with Sehedule B [Coyrr ;
Fogy ik Wimess dnidl Qiher Aliowansey] OF Wie Afbersa Rilés afCow, 1€ so
requlred by.che 22berta Relles af Camet; afid
{8)  did notatend the sppothimedt..
The Courl.may order-the person 16 be questioned to. bring. iweords.to the. questioning that- the
person could bevequired (o produce st trial, '
H
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CERTIFICATE

I, Nickolng Mellhargey, Barrister and Solcitor and & Cormmissiprcr for Outhy inand for the
Province of Alberta, :am hereby salisficd that a remole- commissioning [irodtss Was NBCessary
to-commission the Affidavil 6f Mizad Tejpar on Jonery 12, , 2021, Tn. light of the
CUVHJ—IQ pa;ndemic and thﬁ publn. hegm'r cmcrgexwy declamd for ﬁm vamce of Albcrla, iL was

losf:ﬂmr'

Dated the 13 of Tanuary, 2021.

/ Nictiolss Mellhargey
Commissioner for Oathg in-and for %c Lk:amnbe o Alberta
S MCILHARGEY
BARRISTER & SOLICITOR
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COURT FULR NIRVBER. 2001-05%42:

COURT - COURT O QUREN'S:RENGH OF ALBERTA

JYDICTAL CENTRE CALGARY

APBLIBANE(ST MUTAT TEIPAR nd MAHMODOD TEIPAR: | \¢ _ }

RESTONDENTIS)  GUNPREST LATDHAGIWAL s IASPREET |
e INV # 107659 ' P

DORUMENT ‘BUPPLENENTAL AFFIDANIT

ADDRESSFOR VOGEL VERJEE
SERVICEAND Haitisteis & Soticitors
CONTAGT 200; 128~ 2:Ayenue S1

PARTYFILINGTHIS.  attontion:  Zul VirliesQits )
Telephone:  (403)/559.8481
Fepuiiife.  (403)532-8870.

ENdly averjce@vogelvelies.com
nmilhargey@vogdiveres.com ;
Filedin,; 333683-2682 ; [

Affidavit ol MURAD TEIPAR swvorn au the 1% dayof Jaouary, 3021 |
|, Murid TG of (il gy, atbwety; MK QATH ANTLSAY THAT: |
Lo | pivigeg of the Afinlicaing nsdibiceln dnd, dssugt, 1Liwve poshig]. KaoWlodug.of the.

maﬁﬂ'sheremaﬂar‘dep osedi-ty oxeopt whinto: Stlited 16 be'busid on informatin il helidl
Sd, witiare:so:staled, T o verdly Yelioye:Samoite be true; {
2 "Ll ARigavit is spplemental'to Bie,ATidavlt Foae. on July 24,2070, Anyeand il L
azcribed th anch terme 't teinitial AMdavi, :

3. “Sf":r,ncis-my f-.\’fﬁdgvi‘t;-rs,wc:;:h'-‘;_lpiy"-ﬂﬂhﬁﬁzﬂ.___"was,fli;'lgi, thu: Purties huve: continued to work ’
wardy:s reso futlon of thiely dispute. Tt was 016 Prcegintention to-preceed with arbitearion,
hayiever, the Parties s o noLabIG 1o e lo the ki ol urhitritlon and.based oeithd overiis
outlined below, 1 now o anger belisve that resolution Hitough atbitkation 8- possibie,

4. 1 have been wdviz d.By-roy eournisel, Zut Werjoa, QuC, o Yopel Verjow (“Camagl?) ‘thaton

Ul 2%: 2000, fighip Lianberr of B Joney T B éhnhiclsd he Vopel Veiiet uries o
aid g1y been retiined by=the. Respondents aud would be zoptavihe M, Shilohuk
a3 their coumsed, -

A~
ﬂ""'ﬁ
VY
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1 have been advised by Counsel and verlfy believe to bo wue that on September 2, 2020,
a Statement of Claln bearing Action No, 2003-13227 (the “Servus Actian') was served on
mysclland Matmood Tejpur (“Mahmood”) shrough the Vogel Verjee office. The Statement
of Clgim nemed the Corporation and the Partles to the within Action as Defendants and
sought judgment for the Corpotaion’s indebledness with the Servus Credil Union

#Servus®). Amtached horeto und murked us Exhibit KA i g true copy of the Staternent of
Claitn bearing Action No, 2003-13227, which I have reviewed.

I have becn advised by Counsel and verily helieve 1a be true that on September 22, 2020
o Stalement of Defence was filed in the Servus Action on behialf of mysclf and Mahinood.
Atlsched hereto and marked as lixhibit “B” is a true copy ol the Stament of Delence filed
an September 22, 2020, which L have reviowed,

t have been advised by Counsel and verily believe o he Lrue that on October 30, 2020,
\r. Lambert wrote Mr. Nicholas Melthurgey of Yoge! Verjee and advised that his clicnts
had aceopted sn unconditionst offer from a thivd party to purchase Morgan's Rise (o
$2 18 wmillion, The Respondents® listing of Morgan's Rise hud nol been raised with, or
approved by, myseif and Mahmood or vwr Counsel at a1y point prior o this date. Atrached
hereto and marked as Exhibit “C* is « true copy of the e-mail coreespondsnce betwocn
Mr. Latubort and My, MeTlhargey, dated Cetober 30, 2020, which L have reviewed.

[ have boen advised by Counsel and vertly believe to be truc that Mr. Lambert subsequently
diseussed the sale of Morgan®s Rise, including the purchase price of $2.18 million, in a phone
cabl with Mr. Mcllhargey on November 2, 2020,

During 1he evening of Noveinber 2, 2020, 1 was reviewing the Morgan’s Rige listing on the
website www.rew.ca, The website suid Lhat Morgan's Rise had sold for $1.3 milion,
approximately $900,000.00 less than advised by Mz, Lambert, Tadvised my Counsel of the
discrepancy immodislely,

i have been advised by Counsel and verily believe 1o be tue thal when Mr. Mcllhargey
raised the sisesepancy in the sale price with Mr. Lambon through email on November 3,
20720, Mr. Lambert repiied that the purchase price wus §1.218 million and the disciepuncy
nad been a mistake, 1Te fither added thal the purchase had fallen through and lha Morgan's
Rise had been relisted by the Respondents. Attached hereto and muzked ng Exhibit D7 is
& trug copy of the cemail correspondence botweun Mr. Mocllhargey and Mz, Lamberl, dated
November 3, 2020, which [ have reviewed.

‘e relisting ol Morgan’s Rise 8galn took pluee without the invalvement or approval of the
myself sod Mahmood  Funher, T am advised hy Counsel and verily belisve to ho teoe thad
the relisting ook place without their lnvolvement or awatcness,

] have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true thal Counsel wrote Mr. Lanburl
on November 4, 2020 to, smongst other things, request 4 ¢opy of the purchase und sale
conlraet for the Morgan’s Rise prrchase thal had fallen through, as well as the name of
counge! representing the Corporation for the puspose of the salc. Counsel further demanded
that the Respundents include the Vagel Verjee office on wary future correspondence related
15 the sule af Morgan™s Rise, Attached hercto and marked as lxhibit “E” is a true copy of
the carrospondence from Counsel, dated November 4, 2020, which T have reviewud.
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! huvie beern advised by Counsel and werily believe lo.be truc that Mr, Lambert teplied to
Counsbl an Navermbet §, 2020, 't Bis reply, he advized, amongst other things, that his clients
had acespled aconditional effet ffoni ¢ third paf}'g?tﬁ:pdt:chg&iu Motgan’s Rise. This once.
again acourred withowt the involvement of mysel! , Mahmood; or.ouf Counsel. A purchase
arebirient atborpanying die lettor set ot that an offer of $1.265 million was accopted by
the-Respondents an. November 3, 2020,

I have beon advised by Counsel.and verily beligvedn be trd thpt i, Lanibert's letter further
represanted that the Respondents weuld: altempt to-engapy the Vogel ¥V erjeé affice ln Muture
commubication tofated 1. (he sal of Morgan's: Rise, however, the: name ol counsel
acling for the Corporationliithe sale.was notprovided. Mr, Lambert also‘sérved arunfiled
Naticeof Appoititment Lo cross-examine me on fpy-Affitavit; sworm Thiy 24, 2020, and
ralsed aflepalions thayithie Appticants had not been responsive (o:past inquires by his:nffice
relalitig 10 the 20, Abres, Attaehial hurcto aid inarkod g8 13xhibit “F? Is 8 grue-copy of the.
cotrespondenee, from Mr. Lambert; datgd Novembia 3, 2020; glong with & copy of the
purchase agreementand untiled Notice ol Appolntment, which 1 have ravicwed.

1 huve Been advised by Couhsgl and vepily believe o beslrue that the Vegel Verjee-uftico
was. ol cdpied on.amy. coresporidence relaing fu the sale: of Morgan's. Rige until
November 23, 2020, Further; Ehave been. gdvised by Counse] and verily helieveto-be-true
that as of te date of this Affidivil; Vogel Verjoe has never been copied.on eonéspondence
with the listing sytuit Bi¢aimsel for the purchager ivalved in the sale:

1 have been. ndvisod by Counisel i vierlly belisies 1o-bé trug; that. the Rekgondenis” Notice
of Appointment avas-subsequently-adjoutned by agréement to Nevbinhcr 24, 2020 w ellow
Fyt the:produetion of financial redords undor the control of myself or Muhmood. 1 have:been

advived By Counseldnd vorily bélieve to.be rug that theé fiincial records under the-contrel

of myself and Mshmood werc provided to Mr. Lambéeton Noveniber 20, 20248,

1 have been mivised by Gounsel and verily believe o bé tive that on November 8, 2020,

Coungel wipte's bt 1o, Tinfnbiert 1o, aniohgst ulhor things, requiest confirmation that the,

d&g&sit’-miﬂiﬁcd i1 thi widstrever] p’;&;ﬁ:h;;sﬁ:ﬁﬂ:&;fﬁiiﬁt~.{'g1"5§'fli1;'géljnfﬂ'_§Rﬁﬁ‘e»ﬁl’!c “Deposit™)
had been: received, Gounsel fuither reitorated ‘the fequisl-to b€ indluded on all future
vommunication. concernlng fhe-Morgm's Rige saleand highlighted prior ¢onespondence
s W Lafnbeit inorglation 40, the. 20 Aviés propetty; miast recently In s email -dated
Noverber-3; 2020, atmehed. (G his &fHdayit s Bxhiblt “D¥; Astiched horcto apd marked
As Lixhibli ¥GP ie » trae eopy of the correspondencé ffoni Counsel, dated November 9, 2020,
which | have reviswed..

I have begn advised by Coyage! aid verily bolioveto letrue that coifitmation of the Doposit
aml the name of counsel represént/ig tdio Cofposation.in the sile wagnot provided.

T have. boon advised by Counsel-and verily believe to be.true:that on Novembsr 16, 2020,
Me, Wfellliurgey sent:a lotier to Mr. Lisntbert fo, amoppst other things, sciterats his request
forconifitmation that the Diepdsit Had been reeetvéd. Wy, Mcllhargey Qurilior renuested thai
NMir, Lambart proditce:coples.of ihe Hnanclal fecordsirder Iy clients™ ponfio] to aséist withr

resplition of the Partics dispute; Auached herolo and marked as Exhibit “EP* Is a true cupy,

of the cofréspondénce fiim Mr, Méllhdrgey, duted November 16, 2020, which 1 heve
reviewed, '
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20: I'have bojert ndvisald by Counsel and -verily biliove:to.be true thal My, {.ambert wrote to
M, Mebargty or Novéinber. 17,2020, 1o, amongdt ottier things, confirm the realtorts: .
recelpt of the Diepositand provide detuily kelated to the sale.of Morgan®s Rigé, fnohuding that; I
sonditions. o the sale were waived on November 14, 2020, 1 have besi-#dviged by Cousel I
Uyat the Voigsl- Viriee office was ot piivy td.(he Respondents commumication with the l
realtor;

21, Thave farther besrrndvised by Counsel-and verily balive to be ltut-that My, fambett wrote
that.thy linancidl reconds ynder s clients* control-would be-produced:as sgol possible; buf *
nol.piier tordy:cross-examination, Adtached herétound indrked a8 Exhibii “I is.a true copy
of the carresponidenessfrom Mr, Lambert, dafed Noveribér'17, 2020, which T have reviewéd,

e

e

22, 1.have been udvised by Counsel and verily belicve:to-be true that although the fitgnail
ricords undlel the. ebritrod of mysell’ and Mahmood were provided to My Lambert -on
Nuvémber 20, 2020, the fitierielal otords inder (He Respondents® eontrol have.not been

diselosed or produced-as-of thie:date plrikly AffdaviL ;

23, 1l been advised by Coungsl-and verlly believe (o bo true thul later on November 17,

2020, M, Lam beitsent afr gl 4dvising (hat _,Ivﬂ‘q{_'malﬁh‘ili:hulgﬂf Brilohul Law, who had
previously beou actinig as:éSunsel £ the Relondiiits in hs matter, was Teprosenting the
Corporation in Lhe sale-of Morgan’s-Rise, Atiachied Yeréto.and matked. ds. Bxhibdi g jg-
b lfug copy of the' correspondence from Mr, iambert, dated Navember 17, 2020, which
[ havi veviewsd, ' h

B e

24, I'huveheen edvised by Cotngelanid yorily Yeleved bé true tharon November 18, 2020,
Mr:Melthargey - wrate Mr. Strilchuk to highlightithé-onsiict betwesh his.office and myself
and Maltrood. 1 Ritve been advised that Mr Stellehuk replled the same day lo advise that
he had ot rece{ved inglrucHons fiom" the Respondents on (he salb--qt: Miorigan's: Rise, o
Atiached heroto and marksd sy Eshiblr “KY is:a ¢ dopy.of G ‘eorréspondends o

Mr: Mellbargey, dated Novernber.18, 2030, which Ihave reviewed,

25, Lhavebeen sitvised. by Cownseland verily-believe to bo trug-that Mr., Lamburt.sy bsequently ;
sent an emiil o the Vigs). Veérjes offlee’ alléging -thiil -the fetter 1o Mr, Stdlehuk way: i
o atempt.o hall the sale of the:Morgan’s Risé picperty. AttacHed herefo and marked as. ;
Bxhibil “L” js.5 tre copy ol the: carrespondence from Me. V.ambert, dated Novermber 18,
2000, whish & kave revicived, .
25 1 have.been advigsed by ‘Counsel anil vaily Heligvi.tor b traé that; on November 19, 202(), ;o
Mr. Mellhargey sont.a fetter to-Mr, Iambert to, antongst dihei things, agalt request the E
name of” counsl represeisting; the Ciperdtion: 1 the Morgan®s Rise sale and highlight the, '
concamy, of myselland ‘Mahmpod tegurding the use, of M. Stiilohul, Attached hereto and :
warked as lixhibit *M™ i3 g frue copy 4F the vorresponiléte from My, Mcltharpey, dated
November [9; 2020, which I have roviewed, )
2% Uhyve begn advised by Comnsel and verily telleveto be tene that Mr, Lambert subsequently .
Serit Correspordence (o My MuHbgigsir Inter thipt day ta request thatmysell snd Mahriopd i

cansent (o the usc of Mr, Strilchek Tor the sale of Motgan’s Rive; despils hisicontlict, Fam
advised that Mr. Mecllbargey replied: toagain highlight the conflict and vefuse; Atiached- f
hereto and merked &g Bxhibit WN» 8. the Wortgsptindopee between My, Liamber, and i
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M, Méllhurpey, dated Noyvember 19, 2020, which 1 have reviewed.

98, 1 have been advised by Couhsel and verlly believe 16 be teue that the parties subsequently
dgrocd to retain CGeoff Home of Cameron Hotne. to”gat-for the Corporation. i tho.gale of
Morgan’s Rise, Attached herstons Exhibit %6 {5:the correspondence botween Mr. Lentbert,
dind Mr. Mollbiirgéy Felating.to the.retdiner of Mr. Hom, duted Noverber 20-and 23, 2020,
whicl: | have reviewed,

29, [ have tuea advised by. Counsekiand verly beltevo.to be troe hal despite Mr, Strifehuk’s
assertion Hist e whs virf|, acting Tor the Corporation,an craatl forwarded by Mt Tom Gusa,
cotnsel for Servus, on Noventher 27, 2020, eveals that: M, Strilchuk subisequently
disoussed the sale-of the Morgan'd Rise property with My, Gusa on Novpinber 23, 2020.
'Vse, exnail urther rovpals that M. Qusa forwarded a-payout stalentthit on thé Morgan™s Ride
property (o° M Strilchuk on:Novémber 24, 2020 inresponse to. his roguest: Allached herato.
and ‘murked as Exhibil “P* s frig copy of the gofrtspondence trom Mr. Gusa, dated
November 27, 2020, which | have teviewad.

30, | have been advlsed by, Counsol.and verily. bolieve to be. true: that the Margan's Risc salé.
dosed-an Pecembet 4, 2020, und oxeess provsedsifrom the sale, amounting to:§239,925.90
venain ln trust with Caméion’] Tdme pending. 4 resplutioh of the Pastles divpule. Attached
herelo and marked ay Fxhibit “Q® is.a true copy ol he Sale Repoiting Package [Grwarded.
to Vagel Verjes for thd partics’ oounsel by, (ameron-Fore, which T huve reviewed,

31, Based on the Torsgoing, I'io verily beligve that the:Respondents have been unresponsiveand
ancooperaiive in our sifbrtsto deal with thonr. i longerbetfeve it is possible tw resolve
the Parties: dispute without the Cowt's nvolverment and an Ofder fidim Uie Contt'fo-wind-up’
(e, Corfioration and digsolve is semaining assors Is necessury.

32, Tlis Affidnvil is made in suppont ofan gpplicution:fofan Ordor ditecting the wind-up and
dissolutlon of the Corpetation pursuai~ip Section 215 o 242 of the Alberia Busingss
Corporations e, NEA 2000, ¢ B-9,

The. deponcnt, Murad Teipdr, wag fiol physically present before the Commissioner of Oaths
‘he "Commixsioner™; however; horwas Tinked with:théfommiissioner usting video teehnology
and the, procesy desgribed o the March 20, 2020, Notfee to. the. Profession & Public: Remote
Commissioning of Aftidavits for uso in Civil ahd Ramily Protéedingd Dyring the COVID-19-
pandemic was utilized,

SWORN (OR-AFFIRMED) BREORLME )
2L Clly of Calgary, Alberts, this._Igh  dayot” )
Jarasicy, 2021. ' )
);
i / 7 ) ﬂ ,1/\ "J
___’f, ;/ J// /f/ e ; —
Commissiotér for Oathsn and tor the- MURADTES

POICHOTAS MCILHARGEY

BARRISTER & SOLICITOR
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COURT FILE NUMBER  2001-09142
7

COURT COURT OF QUEEN’S BENCH OF ALBERTA

JUDICIAL CENTRE  CALGARY

APPLICANT(S) MURAD TEJPAR and MAHMOOD TRIPAR

RESPONDENT(S) GURPREET LAIL-DHALIWAL and JASPREET -
LAIL

DOCUMENT SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT

ADDRESS FOR VERJEE LAW

SERVICE AND Barristers & Solicitors

CONTACT 200, 128 - 2 Avenue SE

PARTY FILING THIS Attention:  Zul Verjee, Q.C,
DOCUMENT Nicholas McIlhargey
Telephone:  (403) 532-8881
Facsimile: {403) 552-8870
E-Mail; zverjec@verjeelaw.com
nmeilhargey@verjeelaw.com
File No.: 533653-2682

Affidavit of MURAD TEJPAR sworn on the 2 ) day of May, 2021
I, Murad,;l}ejpar, of Calgary, Alberta, MAKE OATH AND SAY THAT:

. I am oné%of the Applicants nanied herein and, as such, ] have perscnal knowledge of the
matters hereinafier deposed to except where stated to be based on information and belief
and, where so steted, I do verily believe same to be true,

is -Affidavit. is__supplemental to the Affidavits I swore on July 24, 2020 and
January 12, 2021. Any and all capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall
have the same meaning as ascribed to such terms in the initial and supplemental Affidavit,

Ll

3. Since my Affidavit, sworn January 12, 2021, was filed, the Parties have taken steps to have
the 20 Acres property controlled by the Corporation sold.

4. Thave been advised by my counsel, Zul Verjee, Q.C. of Verjee Law (“Counsel™), that on
January 5, 2021, Nicholas Melthargey of Vetjee Law, sent an email to Justin Lambert of
Bennett Jones LLP providing a directors’ resolution te approve the listing of the 20 Aores,
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “A” is a true copy of the correspondence sent i
by Mr, MoIlhargey, dated Janvary 5, 2021, which I have reviewed.

3. Thave been advised by Counsel and verily belicve to be true that the Respondents did not
sgree with the proposed directory’ resolution, taking issue with the list price and the realtor

W
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io be used. ] have been advised that the Respendents, through Mr. Lambert, insisted that
the Corporation retain Aly Rumtella to list the 20 Acres for $1,200,000.00

1 have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that on January 22, 2021,
Mr. Mcllhargey sent Mr. Lambert a letter accepting the Respondents’ request that the
Corporation list the 20 Acres with Mr. Rumtella for $1,200,000.00. I have further been
advised and verily believe to be true that a revised version of the directars’ resolution
addressing same was provided to Mr. Lambert for the Respondents’ signature. Attached
hereto and marked as Exhibit “B” is a true copy of the correspondence sent by

Mr. Mellhargey, dated January 22, 2021, which I have reviewed.

I been mdvised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that on January 29, 2021,
Mr. Lambert sent an email to Mr. Meclthargey indicating that the Respondents were prepared
to list and sell the land, but required an amendment to the directors’ resolution so as to allow
the price to be adjusted as and when recommended by the Mr. Rumtelia. Attached hereto
and marked as Exhibit “C” is a true copy of the carrespondence sent by Mr, Lambert, dated
January 29, 2021, which [ have reviewed.

[ have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr, Mcllhargey replied
to Mr. Lambert on February 1, 2021, and provided a revised form of directors’ resolution
that allowed an adjustment of the list price on written consent of the directors, without the
need of a further resolution. Mr. Mcllbargey highlighted that the Applicants were not
prepared to allow Mr, Rumtelis to make decisions for the Corporation without the directors’
input, Attached hereto and matked as Exhibit “D* is a'copy of the correspondence sent
by Mr. Mcllhargey, dated February 1, 2021, which [ have reviewed,

| have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr. Mcllhargey followed
up with Mr, Lambert on February 3, 2021, after receiving no response. In roply the same
day, Mr. Lambert wrote that he had already provided feedback. When Mr. Mclihargey
requested clarification, Mr, Lambert referenced his email dated January 29, 2021, and
subsequently wrote that the revised resolution that had been provided did not address his
comments and that the Respondents would not sign it. Thave been advised and verily believe
to be true that Mr. Lambert’s correspondence did not provide any explanation as to how his
comments from January 29, 2021 had not been addressed. Attached hereto and marked as
Exhibit “E is a true copy of the cotrespondence between Mr. Mcllhargey and Mr, Lambert,

dated February 3, 2021, which I have reviewed.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that at the time the foregoing
correspondence was being exchanged it was known to both Parties and their counse! that
Servus had a foreclosure Application on the 20 Acres scheduled for February 11, 2021.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr. Mcllhargey ence again
followed up with Mr. Lambert regarding the directors’ resolution on February 8, 2021
By way of reply, Mr, Lambert advised that the 20 Acres had already been listed with
Mr. Rumtella and that his clients would not be signing a directors’ resolution approving the
sale of the 20 Acres due to the restrictions imposed by the resolution, I have been advised
by Counsel that these “restrictions” were not identified or explained in Mr. Lambert's
communication. Attached hereto end merked as Exhibit “gv is a true copy of the
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correspondence between Mr, Mellhargey and Mr. Lambert, dated February 8, 2021, which
I have reviewed.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that in Mr. Lambert’s
correspondence dated February 8, 2021, he also advised that the Respondenis had obtained
an appraisal valuing the 20 Acres at $1,200,000.00. I have been advised and vesily believe
to be true that Mr. Lambert refused to provide a capy of the appraisal to Verjee Law unless
myself and Mahmood preemptively approved the Corporation reimbursing the Respondents
for its cost. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “G” is a true copy of the correspondence
between Mr. Mclthargey and Mr. Lambent relating to the appraisal, dated February 8, 2021,
which I have reviewed, ‘

T have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr, Lambert subsequently
wrote Mr, Mclthargey on February 8, 2021, to advise that the Respondents had accepted an
offer from the tenant to purchase the 20 Actes for $1,200,000.00. Thave further been advised
by Counsel and verily believe to be true that a copy of the purchase agreement botween the
Corporation and the tenant was attached to Mr. Lambert’s correspondence (the “Purchase
Agreement”), Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “H" is a true copy of the
cotrespondence from Mr, Lambert, dated February 8, 2021, which I have reviewed.

A review of the Purchase Agreement reveals that it wes entered into on February 5, 2021,
in the midst of the Parties’ negotiations regarding the proper procedure for the sale of the
20 Acres. The Respondents’ decision to bave the Corporation enter into the Purchase
Agreement was undertaken without informing Mahmood, myself or our Counsel.

On February 9, 2021, the Corporation was served with a caveat registered against title to the
20 Acres. The cavest states that it was registered against title on January 21, 2021,

1 have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr, Mclihargey forwarded
the caveat on to Mr. Lambert later the seme day. [ have further been advised that
Mr. Lambert replied to this email and insinuated that the office of Verjee Law was somehow
involved in its registration. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “I is a true copy of the
correspondence between Mr. Mellhargey and Mr. Lambert, dated February 9, 2021, which
I have reviewed,

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that on February 9, 2021,
Mr. Mcllhargey received a voicemail from Jo Brar at Bennet Jones LLP advising that
Servus was prepared to agree to a redemption period in the Servus Action to April 14, 2021,
In the voicemail it was explained that Bennett Jones LLP had discussed the sale of the
20 Acres with Servus and provided Servus with a copy of the Purchase Agreement. [ have
been advised and believe to be true that Counsel was not copied on any correspondence
between Bennett Jones LLP and Mr. Gusa in regards to discussions related to the Servus
application scheduled for February 11, 2021, prior to this date.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr. Mcllhargey
subsequently sent a letter to Mr, Lambert on February 9, 2021, reminding him to copy the
office of Verjee Law on any further correspondence with Mr. Gusa dealing with the
Corporation.  Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “J” is a true copy of the
correspondence from Mr, Mcllhargey dated February 9, 2021, which I have reviewed.
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I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that although Verjee Law was
copied on further correspondence between Bennet Jones LLP and Servus, the Respondents
continved to neglect to update Verjee Law on developments, and include it in
correspondence, pertaining to the sale of the 20 Acres.

[ have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that on February 22, 2021, the
deposit condition under the Purchase Agreement expired. I have been advised by Counsel
and verily believe to be true that Mr. Mcllhargey sent Mr, Lambert an email on February 23,
2021 to inquire whether this condition had been met, No response to this email was received.
Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “K* is a true copy of the correspondence from
Mr, Mcllhargey, dated February 23, 2021, which [ have reviewed,

On February 24, 2021, I was reviewing the website realtor.ca, The website said that the
20 Acres had been listed for sale for $1,299,000.00, despite their being an agreement for
its purchase. I advised my Counsel of the listing immediately,

[ have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that on February 25, 2021,
Mr. Mcllhargey followed up with Mr, Lambet regarding the deposit condition and inquired
whether the 20 Acres had been relisted. Attached hereto and merked as Exhibit “L” is
a true copy of the correspondence frora Mr. Mcllhargey dated February 25, 2021, without
attachments, which I have reviewed.

1 have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr. Lambert sent a reply
to Mr. Mclthargey by email on February 26, 2021 and wrote that the Respondents had
decided to allow improvements the fenant had made on the property to stand in place of the
deposit, 1 have further been advised and verily believe to be true that Mr, Lambert also
confirmed that the Respondents had unilaterally decided to have the Corporation relist the
property on advice of Mr, Rumtella, Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit “M” is a true
copy of the correspondence from Mr, Lambert dated February 26, 2021, which I have
reviewed,

The relisting of the 20 Acres and the decision to treat the tenants’ improvements as a
substitute for the deposit took place without the involvement or approval of myself and
Mahmood. Further, | am advised by Coungel and verily believe 1o be true that the relisting
and substitution of the deposit ook place without their involvement or awareness.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Mr. Lambert wrote two
emails to Verjee Law on March 16 and 17, 2021, respectively, raising concerns that Verjee
Law had offered to represent the third-party investors in the arbitration that had been
proposed.

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that Verjee Law sent replies
to Mr. Lambert on March 18 and 19, 2021, respectively, highlighting that the proposal was
made in October 2020, when the Parties were expected to proceed to arbitration, so that the
third-perties evidence and participation was ensured. I have further been advised by Counsel
that the third-parties never agreed to participate and I can confirm that neither myself nor
Mahmood have paid for the third-parties’ legal representation at any point. Attached hereto
and marked as Exhibit “N” is a copy of the email chain between Mr. Lambert and the office
of Verjee Law, dated March 16 to 19, 2021,

Yy
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I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that after February 2021, the
closing date for the sale was amended unilaterally on two occasions by the Respondents,
first to April 26, 2021, and then to April 30, 2021, without the knowledge ot involvement
of my Counsel. I have further been edvised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that
Counsel was only advised of these extensions after they had been put in place by the
Respondents,

I have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that the 20 Acres sale closed on
April 30, 2021, and excess proceeds from the sale, smounting to $267,865.88 remain in trust
with Cameron Horne pending & resolution of the Parties dispute. Attached hereto and
marked as Exhibit “O” is a true copy of the Sale Reporting Package forwarded to Verjee
Law by Mr, Lambert on May 5, 2021, which I have reviewed.

T have been advised by Counsel and verily believe to be true that despite the Pariies’
agreement to retain Geoff Horne of Cameron Harne to act for the Corporation in the sale of
20 Acres, Verjee Law was not copied on any of the correspondence between Cameron Horne
and the Respondents or their counsel throughout the process of the 20 Acres sale,

Besed on the foregoing, I do verlly believe that the Respondents have continued to be
unresponsive and uncooperative in our efforts to deal with them. I no longer believe it is
possible to resolve the Parties dispute without the Court’s involvement and an Order from
the Court to wind-up the Corporation and dissolve its remaining assets is necessary.

This Affidavit Is made in support of an application for an Qrder directing the wind-up and
dissolution of the Corporation pursuant to Section 215 or 242 of the Alberta Business
Corparations Act, RSA 2000, ¢ B-9,

The deponent, Murad Tejpar, was not physically present before the Commissioner of Qaths
(the "Commissioner"); however, he was linked with the Commissioner using video technology
and the process described in the March 25, 2020, Noti¢e to the Profession & Public: Remote
Commissioning of Affidavits for use in Civil and Family Proceedings During the COVID-19
pandemic was ufilized,

SWORN (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME
at City of Calgary, Alberts, this _ @4  day of
May, 2021,

V1

W
Commissioner for Oaths In and for the MURAD TEJPK&R
Province of Alberia
NICHOLAS MCILHARGEY
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My Commission Expires Jure 21, 0=/,

Brief of the Respondent for the Application Before
the Honorable Justice

May 12, 2022
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POSITION OF THE RESPONDENTS

1. The parties are directors and shareholders of an Alberta numbered corporation, 1178929
Alberta Lid. (the “Corporation”). Each party controls 25% of the voting shares of
the Corporation.

2. The within aclion was brought by the Respondents, Murad Tejpar and Mahmood
Tejpar (the “Tejpars™), via an Originating Application for the liquidation and
dissolution of the Corporation under Section 215 of the Business Corporalions Act,

R.8.A. 2000, ¢c. B-9,!

3. The Corporation was incorporated by the parties on June 27, 2005, for the purpose of
purchasing land for development. In 2009, the corporation ceased operation. It has since
monetized all of its assets, with the exception of a single loan receivable. The total assets of
the Corporation, including the outstanding receivable, are insufficient to pay out the totality

of claims made by its creditors.

4. On November 19, 2021, Justice K. M. Hormner granted an Order, made effective at 12:00 pm
on November 26, 2021, appointing Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. as referee (the “Referee”)
to run a claim’s process to determine the value of all the creditors® claims against the
Corporation. A claim’s process was subsequently undertaken by the Referee and a Notice
to Claimants outlining the Referees initial findings provided to the creditors on March 16,

2022,

5. The application before the court today has been brought by the Referee for a final distribution
of the remaining proceeds in the Corporation on a pro reta basis to the creditors as set out
inthe First Report of Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. and for the Referee’s discharge,
The Tejpars are in agreement with the application brought by the Referee, but wish to
address the matter of costs between the parties as the court’s decision may effectively

conclude the underlying action,

*TAB 1.
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6. The Tejpars submit that the Originating Application should never have been necessary.
The Tejpars made repeated attempts to address the objections of the Applicants, Gurpreet
Lail-Dhaliwal and Jaspreet Lail (the “Lails"), regarding the calculation of the creditor loans
outlined in the Corporation’s ledgers. Despite the Tejpars’ efforts, the Lails’ refused to
engage with the Tejpars or to comply with their obligations to the Corporation, resulting in
the Corporation’s defauli on its mortgage obligations and forcing the Tejpars to initiate the

within action.

7. Since the underlying action commenced, the Lails have taken steps to marginalise the
Tejpars’ interests, conducting the affairs of the Cortporation without the Tejpars’ knowledge
or consent, and without the requisite corporate authority to act. The Lails have further forced
the assignment of a Referee at great cost to the Corporation. The Referee’s findings support
the Tejpars” position regarding the creditor loan amounts owed by the Corporation, making
them the successful party in this litigation and it is respectfully submitted that the Tejpars

are entitled to their costs.

COSTS

8. The Tejpars’ submit that they are entitied to costs based on partial indemnity of the legal
fees incurred in accordance with the Court of Appeal's recent decision in Medllister v
Calgary (Ciry), 2021 ABCA 25 (“McAllister'), or in the alternative, enhanced costs as a
muitiple of the reasonable Schedule "C", Division 2 of the Alberta Rules of Court, Alta,
Reg 124/2010 (the "Rules of Court") fees imposed. In the further alternative, the Tejpars
submit that the full cost of the Referee should be borne by the Lails,

9.  The findings of the Referee are generally in agreement with the creditor loan amounts
outlined in the general ledgers of the Corporation. For reference, the general ledgers set out

the creditors’ Joans as follows:2

a)  $854,440.04 to the Tejpars ($831,559.22 confirmed by the Referee);

>TAB 2 at paras 22 — 26 and TAB 3, \ Qj
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3)
b)  $223,316.33 to the Lails ($236,709.08 confirmed by the Referee);

¢)  $18,070.30 to Amarjit Kaur Lail and the estate of Paul Leil Sr. ($42,420.30 confirmed
by the Referee);

d)  $402,164.92 to Salim Lalani, Noor Noorani and Karim Kaba ($401,500.85 confirmed
by the Referee); and

e)  $241,428.57 to Bellagio Homes Inc. (“BHI”) ($241,428.57 confirmed by the Referee).

10. At all material times, the Lails had access to the general ledgers of the Corporation and the
contact information of the Corporation’s accountant which prepared the Corporation’s
financials. Further, the Lails or their representatives participated in the review of the
Corporation’s financial statements and provided their approval regarding same every year

between 2005 and 2018.°

11. In October of 2018, the Lails began to dispute the amounts contained within the general
ledgers, however, they failed to provide any evidence in support of their allegation that the
creditor amounts outlined in the general ledgers were incorrect. The Tejpars met with the
Lails on numerous occasions between October 2018 and July 2020 to come to an

understanding regarding the Lails’ concerns and attempt 1o rectify the parties dispute.*

12, During the parlies’ meetings the Tejpars made requests of the Lails to provide back up
documentation to support their position on the creditor loan amounts. The Lails repeatedly
ignored these requests and failed to produce any evidence or alternative theory in support

of their position.®

13. Despite repeatedly reviewing the general ledgers of the Corporation with the Lails, and
providing them with the supporting documentation that went into the general ledgers

calculation, the Lails refused to accept the creditor loan amounts outlined in the general

3TAB 2 al paras 4 — 6, 21 and 27.
¢ TAB 2 at paras 27 and 28,
3 TAB 2 at paras 28 and 29,
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ledgers.

14.  The Lails further failed to cooperate with the Tejpars throughout this period, stymieing the
Corporation’s ability to function and obstructing the parties’ efforts to sell the Corporation’s
assets. For instance, the Lails’ failed to respond to requests made by the Servus Credit Union
{“Servus”) in regards to the Corporation’s mortgage obligations and Jaspreet Lail in
particular, failed to contribute his agreed upon share of the payments for the Corporation’s
mortgage obligations for the period January and March 2018, as well as February, March
and May through September 2019.

15. The Lails® failure to pay their share of the Corporation’s mortgage obligations, as well as
their refusal to communicate with the Tejpars or Servus made it impossible for the
Corporation to meet its obligations to the Servus, leading to the Tejpars filing of the
underlying Originating Application for the liquidation and dissotution of the Corporation.

16.  Afier the within action was filed, the Lails’ improper conduct continued. The details
regarding their bad faith actions are outlined extensively within Murad Tejpar’s Affidavits,

filed January 14, 2021 and June 7, 2021, and are generally summarized as follows:

a) In October 2020, the Lails’ unilaterally listed and sold the Corporation’s Morgan Rise
property without the Tejpars® knowledge or consent and without having the requisite

corporate authority to act;’

b)  The initial sale of the Morgan’s Rise property subsequently fell through in late October
2020. Despite having received a request from the Tejpars that they be included in all
further decisions related to the sale of the Corporation’s property, in early November
2020, the Lails again listed and sold the Morgan’s Rise property without informing the

Tejpars or having the requisite corporate authority to act;®

¢ TAB 2 at paras 29 — 30,
"TAB 4 at para 7,
*TAB 4 gt pares 10— 13,
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¢) In mid November 2020, the Lails retained Michael Strilchuk of Strilchuk Law to
represent the Corporation in the sale of the Morgan’s Rise property, without the
Tejpars’ knowledge or consent, Mr, Strilchuk had previously acted for the Lails in
their dispute with the Tejpars and was in direct conflict with the Tejpars, Once again,
the Lails’ lacked the requisite corporate authority to retain counsel on behalf of the

(3

Corporation;®

d)  In early 2021, the Lails refused to consent to the sale of the Corporation’s 20 Acres
property unless their realtor was provided carte blanche to control the sale without

need for the directors, and specifically the Tejpars’ consent; '

e) Inearly February 2021, while the parties were addressing the Lails® demands in order
to enter into a resolution to sell the 20 Acre property, the Lails’ listed and sold the 20
Acres property to the property’s current tenant without informing the Tejpars or having

the requisite corporate authority to act;"!

1] On February 9, 2021, the Tejpars’ learned that the Lails were involved in discussions
with Servus to address foreclosure proceedings it had filed against the Corporation.
The Tejpars were neither informed of these discussions nor copied on the Lails®
communications with Servus, only learning of them when Servus contacled the

Tejpars’ counsel directly; 2

8)  Inlate February 2021, the Lails unilaterally made the decision to let improvements the
tenant bad made on the 20 Acres property stand in place of the required deposit for the

salc, without the knowledge or involvement of the Tejpars;'?

h)  In late February 2021, the Lails unilaterally made the decision to relist the 20 Acres

property, without the knowledge or involvement of the Tejpars; '*

—

* TAB 4 at paras 23 - 27.
'“TAB 5 at paras 4 - 9.
'""TAB 5 at para 1.
'“TAB § at para 17,

"' TAB 5 at para 22.
"'TAB 5 at para 23.
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i)  After February 2021, the closing date for sale of the 20 Acres property was amended
unilaterally on twe occasions by the Lails, first to April 26, 2021, and then to April 30,
2021, without the knowledge or involvement of the Tejpars;'® and

i}  Despite repeated requests by the Tejpars to be included in communications related to
the sale of the properties or the affairs of the Corporation, the Lails’ repeatedly fajled
to copy the Tejpars on any communications with third parties throughout the litigation.

17. This Honourable Court has a hroad discretion in awarding costs pursuant to Rules 10.29,

10.31 and 10.33 of the Alberta Rules of Court.

18. Rule 10.29 provides that as a general rule, the successful party in an action is entitled to a
costs award against the unsuccessful party, subject to the Court's general discretion and any
specific rules, such as Rule 4,29, which sets out the costs consequences resulting from formal

offers to settle,

19. Intum, the court's general discretion is governed by the factors enumerated in Rule 10.33 all
of which the Court may consider in making a costs award, including “the result of the action
and the degree of success of each party; the amount claimed and the amount recovered” as
well as, more generally, “any other matter related to the question of reasonable and proper

costs that the Court considers appropriate”.

20. After considering the factors described in Rule 10.33, the Court can make a costs award

under Rule 10.31 on the basis that they represent the “reasonable and proper costs" incurred

by a party who was successful in litigating its claim. Rule 10.31 expressly authorizes the
Court to use its discretion in implementing a reasonable and proper costs award and lists
several options open to & court in awarding costs, including awarding costs on a percentage
of legal costs incurred without reference to Schedule “C", Division 2 of the Alberta Rules of

Courr.

21. The Tejpars respectfully submit that the evidence demonstrates the Lails have acted in
bad faith in their dealings with the Tejpars and the Corporation. The Lails have been

'S TAB 5 at para 27,
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uncooperative and failed to communicate with the Tejpars throughout the litigation,
conducting the affairs of the Corporation as they saw fit and without any regard for the
Tejpars’ input. Despite their efforts to explain away these acts as in the best interests of the
Corporation, fhis alone, without more, does not excuse their decision to unilaterally make

decisions on behalf of the Corporation.

Further, it is clear that it was the Lails’ own misconduct, and refusal to cooperate with
Servus, which led to the Corporation’s default on its mortgage obligations, The argument
that the Lails’ subsequent failure to conduct the affairs of the Corporation preperly, or
include the Tejpars in communications, should therefore be excused because they were
acting in the Corporation’s best interests is disingenuous. There is nothing in evidence to
support an argument that the Lails needed to act without the proper corporate authority and
the Lails’ improper conduct deserves sanction in the form of enhanced party and party costs,

or an order requiring the Lails to bear sole responsibility for payment of the Referees’ fees.

Moreover, the Tejpars’ submit that the entire exercise of the claim’s process was unnecessary
given the Referee’s findings and that the claim’s process has resulted in the parties
unnecessarily incurring costs that otherwise would not have been incurred. As previously
referenced, the findings of the Referee are generally in line with the Tejpars’ position; that

the creditor loan amounts were as outlined in the general ledgers of the Corporation.

In contrast, the Lails’ have refused to recognize any amount claimed by the Tejpars or the
third-party creditors, Salim Lalani, Noor Noorani and Karim Kaba, This behaviour
continued throughout the litigation, and was consistently outlined in without prejudice
correspondence from the Lails, where they alleged that there was no evidence to support the

Tejpars’ ¢laim, and that the claims of Karim Kaba, Salim Lalani, and Noor Noorani were

not the Lails® concem.

1t has always been the intention of the Tejpars to resolve the parties dispute through a
pragmatic approach, The Tejpars made significant efforts to address the Lails’ cbjections
both prior to and during the litigation. As has already been highlighted, the supporting

documentation that went into the general ledgers® calculation was provided to the Lails and
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they, or their representatives, had an opportunity to review the Corporation’s financials on

an annual basis before they were finalized.

Practical means to resolve the conflict on a without prejudice basis were also proposed by
the Tejpars throughout the litigation in an effort to save the significant time and expense

necessary to fully litigate this dispute. These proposals included:

)  The assignment of the Corporation’s assets and liabilities to each shareholder in place

of their outstanding shareholder loans; and

b)  To hold an arbitration to resolve matters in the fall of 2020, wherein the Tejpars agreed
to pay for the participation of, and share representation with, Salim Lalani, Noor

Noorani and Karim Kaba in order to secure their involvement to ensure that the

arbitration could proceed.

Additionally, the Tejpars made a number of without prejudice offers to distribute the
monetized assets of the Corporation amongst the creditors on a pro-rata basis in a similar

fashion to what has been proposed by the Referee.

On October 5, 2021, in particular, the Tejpars proposed a division of the monetized assets

of the Corporation amongst the creditors as follows:

a)  54% to the Tejpars;

b)  21% to the Lails, Amarjit Kaur Lail and the estate of Paul Lail Sr.; and
¢)  25% to Karim Kaba, Salim Lalani, and Noor Noorani.

These numbers are consistent with the Referee’s findings which has the Tejpars receiving
47.4%, the Lails, Amarjit Kaur Lail and the estate of Paul Lail Sr. receiving 15.9% and Karim
Kaba, Salim Lalani, and Noor Noorani receiving 22.9% of the monstized assets of the
Corporation,,

The Lails rejected the Tejpars’ proposal and in turn proposed that they receive an
amount equating to 39% of the monetized assets, a number far in excess of the Referee’s
findings.
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Given the nominal difference between the Referee’s finding and the creditor loans set out
inthe general ledgers, it is submitted that the Tejpars have, in fact, been successful
in the litigation, and are, therefore, entitled to costs on an enhanced party-to-party
basis. Alternatively, the Lails® insistence on the need for the Referee is not supported
by its findings and the Lails should bear sole responsibility for payment of the Referees’

fees,

The Tejpars have incurred significant expenses in dealing with this matter in the amount of
$175,417.98 and therefore seck to recover costs on a percentage of the legal fees actually
incurred over two years of procedural and other litigation steps taken to address the within

action,

The Alberta Court of Appeal in McAllister looked at the issue of party and party costs and
opined that cost awards should approximate 40 to 50% of the successful party's incurred
expenses.'S While this is not a hard and fast rule, it is a useful reference point to establish
that which is typically considered to be "proper and reasonable costs” in conjunction with
the factors set out in Rule 10.33. The Court of Appeal further remarked that while in some
cases the application of Schedule "C", Division 2 of the Rules of Court may yield teasonable
and proper costs, Schedule "C" is not a “standard” or a "starting point".} Rule 10,31 is clear
that Schedule "C" is one of many options the Court may use, or not use, to inform a cost

award,

In the alternative, if this Honourable Court is unwilling to exercise its discretion to award
costs as a percentage of the legal fees actually incurred, it is respectfully submitted that this
is an appropriate circumstance to award costs on an enhanced scale, pursuant to a multiple
of the fees set out in Schedule "C", Division 2 of the Rules of Court, in particular due to the

improper conduct of the Lails throughout the litigation.

¥ TAB 6 at paras 42-45.
7 TAB 6 at para 53,
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RELIEF REQUESTED

33. The Tejpars seek an order of this Honourable Court:

a)  Awarding costs for the underlying application to the Tejpars in the amount of 50% of

the legal expenses actually incurred by the Tejpars;

b} In the alternative, awarding enhanced costs, at a minimum, double those to which the

Tejpars would be entitled pursnant to the Schedule "C" tariff fees; or

¢) In the further alternative, directing that the Lails bear responsibility for payment of the

Referee’s fees.
ALL OF WHICH IS RESFECTFULLY SUBMITTED.

DATED at the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, this 12 day of May, 2022.

VERJEE LAW

w  a

Zul Véfjet, Q.C. / Nicholas McIlhargey
Solicitors for the Respondents, Murad Tejpar
and Mahmood Tejpar

A9
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COURT FILE NUMBER 2001 - 09142

COURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERFS GS

JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY

PLAINTIFFS MURAD TEJPAR and MAHMOOD TEJPAR

DEFENDANTS GURPREET LAIL-DHALITWAL AND JASPREET LAIL

DOCUMENT AFFIDAVIT

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE BENNETT JONES LLP

AND CONTACT Barristers and Solicitors

INFORMATION 4500 Bankers Hall East

OF THE PARTY 855 - 2 Street SW

FILING THIS Calgary, AB T2P 4K7

DOCUMENT

Attention: Justin R, Lembert / Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Telephons No.: (403) 298-3046 / 403-298-8167
Fax No.: (403} 265-7219
Client File No.: 90471.1
AFFIDAVIT OF GURPREET LAIL
A Wl
SwomWon November 27, 2020,
I e e 31, 1’1«"

I, Gurpreet Lail, of Calgary, Alberta, SWEAR/AFFIRNM AND SAY THAT:

1. 1 e a Defendant in this Action, 1 am also a shareholder and director of 1178929 Alberta
Ltd. (the "Corporsation"). As such, | have personal knowledge of the matters deposed to
herein, except where stated to be based upon information and belief, in which case I
believe the same 10 be true,

2, In this Action, the Applicents, Murad and Mahmood Tejpar, bave applied to dissolve or
liquidate the Corporation. My brother, Jaspreet Lail ("Jaspreet”), and [ agree that the
Corporation should be liquidated or resolved. However, we require advice and directions
with respect to that liquidation or dissolution.
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In particular, we require direction as to the sale of the Corporation’s assets, and the
manner in which disputes about shareholder loan balances, and alleged Habilities to third
parties, should be resolved.

The Corporation's Operations and Properiy

4,

Jaspreet, Murad Tejpar, Mahmood Tejpar, and I each own 25% of the issued and
ouwtstanding shares of the Corporstion. All four of us are also directors of the
Corporation. There i3 no unanimous shareholder agreement between the shareholders
end the Corparation, Attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is a copy of the corporate registry
search result for the Corporation.

I bave reviewed the Affidavit of Murad Tejpar sworn on July 24, 2020 in this Action (the
"Tejpar Affidavit"), I disdgree with nearly all of it. However, [ am making this
Affidavit only in support of an Application for advice and direstion from this Honourable
Court regarding the sale of the Corporation's assets. As such, I have not responded to
svery factual assertion in the Tejpar Affidavit, 1 will respond to the errors in the Tejpar
Affidavit if end when needed.

At the date of this Affidavit, the Corporation holds two assets: 20 acres of land in
Springbank (the "20 Aere Land") and 204 Morgan Rise SW ("Morgan's Rise"). The
Corparation has entered into an agreement to sell Morgen's Rise, with the sale closing
December 3, 2020. Attached hereto as Exhibits "B" and " C" are copies of the titles to
the 20 Acre Land and Morgan's Rise, respectively.

To fund its operations, the Corporation entered into twa credit facility agreements with
Servus Credit Uniom Ltd. ("Servus"). The credit facilities were secured through
mortgages on Morgan's Rise and the 20 Acre Land (the "Mortgages"), as well as a Joint
and Several GQuarantee and Postponement of Claim entered into with the sharchoelders,
whereby the shareholders jointly and severally guaranteed the due payment and discharge
of all present and future indebtedness and lisbility of the Corporation to Servus (the

"Personal Guarantees").
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8. Since 2009, the shareholders at various times have provided loans to the Carporation to
make up shortfalls associated with the mortgage payments to Servus in respect of the
Mortgages, and with regards to taxes, insurance, association fees and utilities on the
properties still owned by the Corporation. These loans should be treated as shareholder
loans. The parties disagree about the shareholder loan balances owed.

9. The Lails and the Respondents have becoine embroiled in & shereholder dispute, and a
shareholder deadlock between the Lails and the Respondents has resulted.

10.  Oun July 28, 2020, the Respondents commenced this Action seeking an Order 1 dissolve
the Corporation and liquidate its assets or, in the alternative, an Order directing the Lails
purchase the Respondents shares of the Corporation.

11, The parties require the Court's direction with respect to the sale of the 20 Acre Land as
outlined below.

The Servus Foreclosure Actions

12.  On or about August 12, 2020, Servus filed and served a Statement of Claim (Actien
number 2003-13227) in respect of the Mortgages and the Personal Guaraatees, in the
judicial centre of Edmonton (the "Servus Action™).

13, The Servus Action names the Corporation and each of the shareholders as defendants and
seeks judgment against us, jointly and severally, in the amount of $1,690,515.13 as of
August 4, 2020, together with interest from and afier August 4, 2020 until the date of
judgment at the rate of 2.00% per annum above the prime rats. Attached hereto as

Exhibit "E" is a copy of the Staterment of Claim in the Servus Action.

14, On November 19, 2020, Dentons LLP, counsel to Servus, provided to Bennett Jones
LLP, counsel to Jaspreet and me, and to Vogel Verjee, counse! for the Respondents, the
Affidavit of Value and the Valuator's Report obtained by Servus in the Foreclosure
Action.

15,  The Affidavit of Value and the Valuetor's Report in respect of the 20 Acre Land
estimates the murket value of the 20 Acre Land to be $1,000,000 and the forced sale
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vajue of the 20 Acre Land to be $900,000. Attached bereto as Exhibit “F" is a copy of
the Affidavit of Value and the Valuator's Report provided by Dentons LLP in respsct of
the 20 Acre Land.

The Respondents' Refusal to List the 20 Acre Land for Sale

16.

17,

18.

WSLEGALGIE47110000) \26099757v4

On Oetober 19, 2020, Dentons LLP emailed my counsel and Respondents' counsel,
advising that Servus was proceeding to obtain appraisals for Morgan's Rise and the 20

Acre Land and requesting the contact information of the appropriate parties to make
arrangemetits to access the properties. Attached hereto as Exhibit "G" is a copy of the

October 19, 2020 email from Dentons LLP.
On October 20, 2020, my counse| emailed Respondents' counsel:

{a) edviging that he would be directing Servus’ counsel to contact me to obtain access
to Morgan's Rise;

(b) asking which of the Rezpondents would be best to contact to gain access to the
home on the 20 Acre Land;

(¢)  discussing the listing of Morgan's Rise for sale; and

(d)  requesting that the Respondents immediately advise as to how they intended to
deal with the 20 Acre Land and Servus.

Aftached hereto as Exhibit "H” i5s a copy of the October 20, 2020 email from my

counsel to Respondents’ counsel.

On November 5, 2020, my counsel sent a letter to Respondents' counsel, discussing the
sale of Morgan's Rise and egain requesting that the Respondents provide an update
regarding a plan to deal with the Servus mortgage and Foreclosure Action in respect of
the 20 Acre Land. Attached hereto as Exhibit "[" is a copy of the November 5, 2020
letter from my counsel to Respondents' counsel.




19.

20,

21,

22.

23,
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On November 9, 2020, Respondents' counsel sent a letter to my counsel, discussing the
sale of Morgan's Rise and requesting that the 20 Acre Land be assigned from the
Corporation to the Respondents. Attached hereto as Exhibit "J" iz a copy of the
November 9, 2020 letter from Respondents' counsef to my counsel.

On November 17, 2020, my counsel sent a latter to Respondents counsel:
(8) discussing the sale of Morgan's Rise;

(&) refusing to assign the 20 Acre Land from the Corporation to the Respondents
without consideration, as it could expose the shareholders of the Corporation to

liability for a fraudulent conveyance; and

{c]  suggesting that the 20 Acre Land be immediately listed for sale or be purchased
by the Respondents a fair market value.

Attached hereto as Exhibit "K" is a copy of the November 17, 2020 letter from my
counsel to Respondents' counsel,

On November 18, 2020, Respondents’ counse] sent a letter to my counsel, wherein the
Respondents discuss the sale of Morgan's Rise and advise that the Respondents are not
propared ta purchase the 20 Acre Land from the Corporation but are prepared to accept
an assignment of the 20 Acre Land from the Corporation to the Respondents (for no
consideration). Attached hersto as Exhibit "L" is a copy of the Novernber 18, 2020
letter from Respondents’ counsel to my counsel,

Given the Servus Foreclosure Action, | believe it is in the best interests of the
Corporation to list the 20 Acre Land for sale or take other reasonable steps to deal with
the Servus Foreclosure Action,

[ do verily believe that the Respondents are not acting in the best imterest of the
Corporation, as the Respondents have been unwilling to list the 20 Acre Land for sale or
take other reasonable steps to deal with the Servus Foreclosure Action, In the result, I
believe the Respondents are preventing the Corporation from rectifying its defaults on the
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shareholders.
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24, fu the cimmnstances, I believe that g sale of the 20 Acre Land is needed and that it would
be just and equitable for thig Court to grant an order permitting same,

Notice to Third Parties

5. At paragraph 26 of the Tejpar Affidavit, My, Tejpar states that the Corporatien owes
$100,536.58 1o Karim Kaba, $100,536.69 to Salim Lalani, $201,051.65 to Noor Noorani,
and $241,428 57 1, Bellagio Homes Inc, ("BHI").

{collectively, the "Third Parties”) were private, personal amrangements between the
Respondents ang the Third Parties that the Respondents improperly bookcd as loans
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Business Corporations Act. 1 do not believe that the Respondents have provided the
Third Parties with notice of this Action or of their intent to dissolve or liquidate the
Corpuoration.

30. 1 make this Affidavit in support of an epplication for an Order authorizing the
Corporation fo list the 20 Acre Land for sale and directing the Respondent to give notice

of this Actien to the Third Parties.
4 v }Tnﬁ‘i"‘"

ORN ;D] BEFORE ME at
, Alberta, this
27th day of November, 2020.

)

)

)

g )

/ AT D %
)

)

)

)

] ONER FOR OATHS
for Alberta

Joseph F. Koshian
Student-at-Law

Print Name and Expiry/Lawyer/Student-At-Law
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My Comimiseion Expres June 21, 20 M

On Behalf of 117 Directors- Supplementary
Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail Sworn on March 3, 2021

Court File Number: 2101-01984
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CQURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
CALGARY

1178929 ALBERTA LTD.

NOORANI INVESTMENTS INC. and SALIM LALANI

AFFIDAVIT

BENNETT JONES LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
4500 Bankers Hall East
855 — 2 Street SW
Calpgary, AB T2P 4K7

Attention: Justin R. Lambert / Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Telephone No.: (403) 298-3046 / 403-298-8167
Fax No.: (403) 265-7219

Client File No.: 90471.1

SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT OF GURPREET LAIL
Sworn (or Affirmed) on March ,5 , 2021
I, Gurpreet Lail, of Calgary, Alberta, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY THAT:

1, I am a shareholder and director of 1178929 Alberta Ltd. (the "Cerperation”). As such, ]
have personal knowledge of the matters deposed to herein, except where stated to be

based upon information and belief, in which case I believe the same to be true.

2, I make this Affidavit as a supplement to my affidavit swormn in this Action on February
17, 2021 ("My First Affidavit"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise
defined herein carry the meaning ascribed to them in My First Affidavit.

WELEGAL9047 100001826926018v!




EKH’) &iT SRK

-2

On February 18, 2021, the Corporation commenced this Action by filing its Originating
Application, and My First Affidavit in support thereof, seeking discharge of the Caveat
that Noorani registered against title to the Lands owned by the Corporation.

On February 19, 2021, the respondent, Salim Lalani ("Lalani"), registered a caveat
against title to the Lands owned by the Corporation with the registration number 211 040
278 (the "Lalani Caveat"). Attached hereto as Exhibit "1" is a copy of the titie to the
Lands current to March 3, 2021. Attached hereto as Exhibit "2" is a copy of the Notice

of Registration of the Lalani Caveat.

The interest claimed under the Lalani Caveat relates to an alleged equitable mortgage
between Lalani as Mortgagee and the Corporation as Mortgagor (the "Lalani Alleged
Equitable Mortgage").

To the best of my knowledge, the Corporation did not grant the Lalani Alleged Equitable
Mortgage to Lalani, Lalani did not advance loans or pay a purchase price to the
Corporation for the purchase of an interest in the Lands, and there is no written

agreement to support an interest in the Lands that would support the Lalani Caveat.

I'am not aware of any reason that the Lalani Caveat should be registered on title o the
Lands.

I make this Affidavit in support of an application calling on the caveator, Lalani, to show
cause why the Lalani Caveat should not be discharged and for an Order discharging the
Lalani Caveat,
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9. l'am not physically present before the Commissioner for Oaths to affirm this Affidavit,
but am linked with the Commissioner for Oaths utilizing video technology, The process
for remote commissioning of affidavits specified in Notice to the Profession and Public
NPP#2020-02 dated March 25, 2020 is being followed. I undertake to send this signed
affidavit with its exhibits electronically to the Commissioner for Oaths.

SWORN (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME at
Calgary, Alberta, this 3
day of March, 2021.

A COMMISZIONER FOR OATHS GURPREET LAIL

in and for Alberta

Amarjot Brar
Barrister and Solicitor

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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SWORN BEFORE ME THIS.... L. DAY

istopher Kozoriz
EXH l B IT 5 9 C?Q?magsiefgr for%l.;ths
in and for Alberta
My Commission Expires Jure 21, 20%

On Behalf of 117 Directors- Second Supplementary
Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail Sworn on March 23, 2021

Court File Number: 2101-01984
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REMOTE COMMISSIONING CERTIFICATE

CANADA

PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

I, Jonathan McKay, Student-at-Law, s Commissioner for Qaths in and for Alberta, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that:

1. The process for remote commissioning of affidavits specified in Notice to the Profession
and Public NPP#2020-02 dated March 25, 2020 (the “Process™) has been followed for the
attached affidavit; and

2. I am satisfied that the Process was necessary because it was impossible or unsafe, for
medical reasons, for the deponent and me to be physically present together.

DATED at Calgary, Alberta ﬂﬁ@§1ay of March, 2021,

in and for Alberta

Print Name and Expiry/Lawyer/Student-At-

Law
Jonathan D. McKay
Student-at-Law

N
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COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALRERTA
CALGARY
1178929 ALBERTALTD.

NOORANI INVESTMENTS INC. AND SALIM LALANI

- AFFIDAVIT

BENNETT JONES LLE
Bartisters and Solicitors
4500 Bankers Hall Enst
855 —2 Strect SW
Calgary, AB T2P4K7

Ateention: Justin R, Lambert { Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Telephone Mo {403) 298-3046 / 403.258-8167
Fax No.: (403) 265-7219

Client Flic No.: 904711

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL ATFIDAVIT OF GURPREET LAIL

Sworn (or Affirmed)on March ﬁ, 2021

1, Gurprest Lail, of Calgary, Albexta, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY THAT:

N 1 am & shareholder and a director of 1178929 Alberta Ltd. (the "Covporation”). As such,
1 have personal knowledge of the matiers deposed to herein, except whero stated to bo

based upon information a

nd belief, in which casel believe the same to be true.

2. I make this Affidavit as a supplement to my aff{davit sworn in this Action oa February 17,

2021 ("My First Affidavit
(*My Second Affidavi

), and my affidavit sworn in this Action on March 3, 201
t"). Capitalized terms used kerein and got otherwise defined herein

camry the meaning ag cribed to thesn in My First Affidavit and My Second Affidavit.
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The Serpus Foreclosure Actlon In vespect of the Lands

3,

To fund ite operations, the Corporation entered into two credit facitlty agreements with
Servus Credit Union Litd. {the "Servus"), The credit facilities were secured through
morlgiges agains! real property owned by the Corporation, ingluding agsinst tie Lands
(the "Mortgages"), &8s well as a Joint and Several Guarantes and Postponement of Claim
entered into with the sharehaldess of the Corporation, whereby the shareholders jointly and
severally guarsniesd the due payment and discharge of all present and future indebtedness

and liebility of the Corporation to Servus (the "IPersonal Guarantees"),

On or about Augusl 12, 2020, Servus filed and served a Statement of Claim in the Judicial
centre of Edmonton (Action number 2003-13227) in respect of the Mortgages and the
Persons] Guarantees, naming the Corporation and each of its shareholders as defendants
{the "Servus Action").

The Servus Action seeks fo foreclose on the real property owned by the Corporation,
including the Lands, and aseeks judgment against the Corporstion and each of its
shareholdars, jointly and seversily.

On November 19, 2020, counsel to Servus provided to counsels for the defendants in the
Servus Action the Affidavit of Value and the Valuator's Report obtained by Servus in that

nction, The Affidavil of Valug and the Valustor's Report estimate the markst value of the
Lands to be §1,000,000 and the forced salo value to be $900,000. Attached hereto as
Exhiblt "1" is a copy of the Servus Affidavit of Value and the Valuator's Report,

On February 2, 2021, the Corporation obtained an appraisal in respect of the Lands, which
estimates the market value of the Lands to be $1,200,000. Attached hereto as Exhlbit 2"
is & copy of the appraisal obtained by the Corperation.

On February 11, 2021, a redemnption order in the Servus Action wus granted, pursuant o
which! the outstanding amount under the Morlgages as at February 19, 2021 is setl at
$798,420.49, plus costs and interest; the defendants in the Servus Action and subsequent

encumbrancers have one month fram the service of the redemption order to apply to vary

WELEGALAIG0471\NenaL 275 0N205v)

Exmf,n 59




=3

the amounis declared owing; and, the redertption date in respeel of the Lands is set to May
14,2021, Attached hereio as Exhiblt "3" ig 4 capy of the redemption order,

Sule uf the Morigaged Landy

9,

H,

13,

On February 17, 2021, ihe Corporation listed the Lands for sals with a realior who is en
erm's length third party. Attnehed hareto us Exhibit w4v jg 5 sapy of'the listing agreemenl,

The Lands are leased, and the tenant leasing the Lands hag tight of first refusal in respect
of the sale of the Lands, The Corporation hgg negotiated and entered {nto an agreement to
sell the Lands to the tenant for g sale price of $1,200,000 (the “Sule Price"), with g closing
date of April 26, 2021 (the “Sale™), Attachaed hersto s Exhibit *s" 5 5 copy of the
Country Residontial Purchase Contact for the Lands,

Servus Affidavit of Value and Valuator's Report, $200,000 greatar than the market value
estimated therein, and in-line with the marker value estimated in the appraisal obtatned by

the Compoation,

Forthe Sals to elose, the Naorani Caveat and the Lalani Caveat need to be discharged from

the title to the Lands.

My counsel, Justin Lembert of Bennett Jones LLP, proposed o Nooran] and Lalan} that
the caveators not impede the Sale from closing by respectively agrecing to discharge the
Noorani Ceveat and the Lalani Caveat (the “Caveats”) cu the condition that the Sale
proceeds be used to pay Servng the amounts owed under the Mortgages and to pay other

realtor commissions, witly any remining Sale proveeds (o remain in the tst account of
the fawyer scting for the Corporation in respect of the Saje until the parties claiming an

interest to those Proceeds prove their clajimg thereto (the “Proposal™),

I'am advised by my counsel that Noarani has indicated ¢ may consent to the Proposal, and
Lalan! has indieated that he wi}] not conzent to it. My counsel advised Lalani that we would

seck costs against him for our sppearmnce at the application, if the matter proceeded on a
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SWORN (OR AFFIRM D) BEFORE ME at
Caigary, Alberia, this * -

day of" March 502 1.
C zd%
)

ACO

in and“for Alberta

P .

comested basis,  Attached heceto as Exhibit "6" iz o copy of the correspondence
exchanged between my counsel and Lalani,

If the Sale docs not close and the Lands are judiclally listed for sale pursuant to the
redemption order, I believe that the forced sale valus of the Lands wili be substantiaily
lower than the Sale Price, which would be to the dettiment of the parties having or claiming
an interest [n the Lands, Including lo the detriment of the caveators if they are ahls to prove
their respective Caveats,

Imake this Affidavit in support of an Order discharging the Caveats and ratifying the Sale
of the Lands,

Lam not physically present before the Commissioner for Qaths to affirm this Affidavit, bu
&m linked with the Commissioner for Oaths ulitizing video technology. The process for
remote comtiissioning of affidavits specified in Nofice to the Profession and Public
NPP#2020-02 dated March 25, 2020 is being followed, | undartake to send this signed
effidavit with its exhibltg clectronically to the Cammissioner for Qaths,

-

SSIONER FOR OATHS

Jonathan D, Mgk
Student-ai-Law :

WSLEQALIg047 MasIR7I002950]
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Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail Sworn on July 2

Court File Number : 2001-09142
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g
COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA Jugtice Campbell
COM
CALGARY Oct 13, 2021

MURAD TEJPAR and MAHMOOD TEJPAR
GURPREET LAIL-DHALIWAL AND JASPREET LAIL

AFFIDAVIT

BENNETT JONES LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
4500 Bankers Hall East
855 — 2 Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P 4K7

Attention: Justin R. Lambert / Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Telephone No.: (403) 298-3046 / 403-298-8167
Fax No.: (403) 265-7219

Client File No.: 90471.1

AFFIDAVIT OF GURPREET LAIL-DHALIWAL

Sworn/Affirmed on July 28, 2021,

I, GURPREET LAIL-DHALIWAL, of Calgary, Alberta, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY

THAT:

i. I am one of the Defendants herein, As such, [ have personal knowledge of the matters

deposed to herein, except where stated to be based on information and belief, in which

case 1 believe such matters to be true,

WSLEGALWG04 7140000 1127901 722v7
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The Parties

2. The parties involved in this dispute are as follows:
(a) 1178929 Alberta Ltd. ("117"),

(b) The respondents in this Action, my brother, Jaspreet Lail, and I (coliectively, the

"Lails™), are each 25% shareholders and directors of 117.

(¢)  The applicants in this Action, Murad and Mahmood Tejpar (collectively, the

"Tefpars"), are each 25% shareholders and directors of 117,

(d) Karim Kaba, Saliman Lalani, and Noor Noorani (collectively, the "Third Party
Investors") are individuals who, as outlined at paragraphs 31 to 42 below, claim

ta have advanced funds to 117.

(€) Bellagio Homes Inc. ("BHI") is a corporation incorporated on July 12, 2007. The
two shareholders and directors of BHI are Mahimood Tejpar and my husband
Pawan (Paul) Dhaliwal. As further outlined at paragraphs 6(¢) and 30 below, BHI
is owed funds from 117.

The Issues

3. 117's assets included two pieces of land, referred to as Morgan's Rise and the 20 Acres in
the affidavits sworn by Murad Tejpar in this Action and respectively filed on July 28,
2020 (the "July 2020 Tejpar Affidavit"), January 14, 2021, and June 7, 2021. Those
pieces of land have been sold. The circumstances of the sale of those picces of land is

described further at paragraphs 10 to 23 below.

4. After the sale of those lands and the payment of associated bank debt and sale expenses, a
total of $507,791.78 was realized from the sales (the "Sales Proceeds"). The Sales

Proceeds are held in trust at Cameron Horne LLP.

£ The Sales Proceeds and a receivable (the "Receivable”) from 101103086 Saskatchewan
Ltd. ("101") represent the only assets of 117. To the best of my knowledge, 117
advanced $160,000 to 101 for the purchase of lands in Saskatchewan and the Receivable

O
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should be $160,000. However, for reasons unknown to me, the general ledgers of 117

show the Receivable as being $175,122.79.

6. The claims against the Sales Proceeds and the Receivable are greater than the Sales
Proceeds. In particular, the Tejpars allege at paragraphs 22 to 26 of the July 2020 Tejpar
Affidavit that:

(a) 117 owes the Tejpars $861,669.64 in respect of shareholder loans advanced by the
Tejpars to 117;

(b) 117 owes the Lails $225,507.46 in respect of shareholder loans advanced by the
Lails to }17 (although my brother Jessie and I actually claim to be owed
$308,821.47);

{c) 117 owes my mother, Amarjit Kaur Lail, and the estate of my deceased father,
Paul Lail Sr., $18,070.30 (aithough my brother Jessic and [ actually believe this
amouni to be $27,000);

(d) 117 owes the Third Party Investors $402,164.92 (more about this issue below at
paragraphs 31 to 42); and

(e) 117 owes BHI $241,428,57 (although my brother Jessie and I believe BHI is
owed $263,000).

7. In short, it is alleged that the creditors of 117 are owed over two times more than the

Receivable and the Sales Proceeds available to distribute to those creditors.

8. Further, as discussed below at paragraphs 24 to 42, the parties simply do not agree with

each other as to which claims are valid, or about the actual amounts owed to any given

party.

9. The parties require an efficient and cost-effective way to determine the validity of each
party's claims against the Sales Proceeds and the Receivable, the quantum of such claims,

and how to distribute the Sales Proceeds among the various parties in light of those
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issues. In the absence of such a process, the only way to resoive these issues would be an

inefficient and costly trial.

Allegations of Impropriety

10.  The Affidavits sworn by Murad Tejpar i this Action, filed January 14, 202} and June 7,
2021, make numerous allegations about my brother and 1 acting inappropriately in
relation to the sale of Morgan's Rise and the 20 Acres. In particular, Murad Tejpar
repeatedly claims to have been kept in the dark about the sales of Morgan's Rise and the

20 Acres.

11.  1do not intend to respond to each and every allegations he has made, as these issues are
not relevant to this application. However, 1 do wish to note the following about the
Tejpars' conduct to provide context io some of the allegations the Tejpars are now

making.

12, At all times, my brother and I aligned our interests with the best interests of 117, in that
we sought to maximize the sale prices for Morgan's Rise and the 20 Acres to maximize
the proceeds 117 received from those sales. We sold both properties at or above market

price.

13.  The market price was readily asceriainable, because in related foreclosure proceedings
Servus Credit Union Ltd. ("Servus") obtained appraisals of both properties. My brother
and I also obtained our own appraisal for the 20 Acres to support a listing price higher

than that being suggested by Servus.

14.  The Servus Affidavit of Value and the Valuator's Report estimated the market value of
Morgan's Risc to be $1,240,000 and the forced sale value to be $1,115,000. My brother
and I managed to obtain a sale price of $1,235,000 for Morgan's Rise.

15.  The Servus Affidavit of Value and the Valuator's Report estimated the market value of
the 20 Acres to be $1,000,000 and the forced sale value to be $900,000. My brother and 1‘
managed to obtain a significantly greater sale price of $1 ,200,000 for the 20 Acres.

W
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16.  Neither of the Tejpars have ever complained that the prices realized for the sales of the
lands were below market price and, in fact, ultimately signed resolutions approving [17's

sale of both properties.

17, Throughout the sale process, I believe that the Tejpars had significant conflicts of interest

and acted adverse to the interests of 117.

L& In particular, the Third Party Investors are alleged creditors of 117 and have no other
connection with 117. As a result, the interests of the Third Party Investors are directly
adverse to 117's interests. Nevertheless, the Affidavit filed in Action No. 2101-01984 on
March 23, 2021, by Salim Lalani, one of the Third Party Investors (the "Lalani
Affidavit"), exhibits to it at Exhibit B-2 a letter dated October 21, 2020 that Mr. Lalani
received from M. Mcllhargey of Vogel Verjee LLP, counsel to the Tejpars. In that letter,
Mr. Mcllhargey writes to Mr, Lalani;

We propose that you retain our office to represent your interests [at a
proposed arbitration to determine the balances owed to each creditor of
117] so that this matter may move forward. The Tejpars are prepared io
pay our fees and want 1o ensure that your investments are recognized once
the arbitration has concluded. Both Karim Kadri and Noor Nooranj are in
agreement with this proposal,

The letter from Mr. Mcllhargey to Mr. Lalani, dated October 21, 2020, is attach as
Exhibit 1",

9. In other words, the Tejpars proposed to share counsel with the Third Party Investors, and
offered to pay legal fees on behalf of the Third Party Investors to assist the Third Party

Investors establish monetary claims against 117's assets. | am advised by my counsel,
Justin Lambert of Bennett Jones LLP, and do verily believe that such an offer would only
be appropriate if the Tejpars’ interests were somehow aligned with those of the Third
Party Investors, otherwise M. Mcllhargey could not have offered to act for the Third
Party Investors in this matter, I do not know how their interests could possibly be aligned,
given that the Tejpars are directors and shareholders of 117, while the Third Party
Investors are alleged creditors of 117. This incident strongly suggests to me that the

Tejpars’ interests were not necessarily aligned with 117's interests.
)
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20.  Further, it became clear throughout the parties' dealings that the Tejpars were attempting

to obtain an assignment of the 20 Acres te themselves for below market value. Much of

the background in that regard is set out in a letter from our counsel to the Tejpars' counsel

on February 10, 2021, which is summarized as follows:

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(€)

()

(g)

The Tejpars pressured the Lails to transfer the 20 Acres to the Tejpars without
consideration (the "Transfer"), which would likely amount to a fraudulent

conveyance,;

The Tejpars insisted the Transfer would allow them to enter into a side deal with
creditors of 117, thereby resolving the Servus Credit Union foreclosure action, but

failed to disclose the terms of any such side deal;

When the Lails refused to participate in the Tejpars' scheme, the Tejpars shunted
responsibility for listing and selling the lands onto the Lails and contested listing

the 20 Acres for sale;

The Lails, to the benefit of 117 and the Tejpars, obtained an independent appraisal
higher than the bank's, and used that to obtain a vastly better offer to the Tejpars'

"no cash" assignment, and to negotiate a significantly longer redemption period;

Upon being presented with an offer almost $300,000 higher than the purported
value of the Tejpars' "no cash” settlement, counsel to the Tejpars provided a

caveat from one of the alleged Third Party Investors, and used it to make the

argument that the "no cash" assignment to the Tejpars is the best path forward.

The Tejpars placed themselves in a conflict of interest position by repeatedly
using the threat of alleged Third Party Investors and the foreclosure 1o try to

extract the 20 Acres from 117 below value.

By contrast, the Lails arranged for the sale of Morgan's Rise and the 20 Acres for
prices significantly greater than appeared to be realistically available, and

obtained an extension to the redemption period.
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{h) The Tejpars' recent insistence on compliance with corporate formalities is
opposite their earlier conduct in that there is no documentation of the alleged third
party loans, no corporate resolutions approving them on behalf of 117, and no

evidence the Lails were ever asked to consent to them.

I have personal knowledge of the facts set out in the February 10, 202 letter from my
counsel to the Tejpars' counsel, and the facts as summarized by my counsel in that letter
are accurate. The letter from my counsel to the Tejpars’ counsel, dated February 10,

2021, is attach as Exhibit nanr,

21, I also filed an affidavit in this Action on November 30, 2020, in which I provided details
of the Tejpars' refusals to engage meaningfully in a sale of the lands. I do not intend o

repeat my evidence about that here,

22. I had further concerns about the Tejpars' motivations when it became apparent that they
were depositing the rent cheques given to them by the tenant on the 20 Acres into a First
Calgary bank account, instead of depositing them into the Servus bank account for 117
where those funds would be applied to pay the Servus financing (which was in

foreclosure).

23.  If the parties intend to pursue claims against one another for wrongdoing, then my
brother and I will file additional evidence to address that. However, at this time, it seems
that the most important thing is to determine who is owed what, and to distribute the

funds to creditors,

The Available Financial Information & the Tejpars' Claims

24, 117 has not maintained proper books and records. Bookkeepers appear to have
maintained genera) ledgers on behalf of 117 from time to time. However, my brother and
I have not had input into the entries being made in those ledgers. The Tejpars provided
instructions to the bookkeepers regarding the entries to be posted in the general ledgers of
117, Ms, Lalani confirmed to me in an email dated November 9, 2018 {attached as

Exhibit 3" hereto) that "the bookkeeping material is provided and marked by Mahmood

and Murad. As per the instructions provided the bookkeeping is completed.”
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117 has occasionally had financial statements prepared on a notice to reader basis, As I
understand it, a notice to reader financial statement means that the accountant who
compiled the financial statements has done very little, if anything, to ensure the accuracy
of those financial statements. The last time 117 prepared notice to reader or any year-end
financial statements was in 2018. In 2018, I refused to approve the financial statements
because of concems about their accuracy (for reasons including those described below).

117 has not, to my knowledge, prepared year-end financial statements for its fiscal years

ending 2019, 2020, or 2021.

have been provided with 117's general ledgers and trial balances. I do not have any
reason to trust the accuracy of the general ledger entries at all, for reasons including the

following:

(a) The bookkeeper used by 117, Aruna Lalani, confirmed to me verbally that she
took instructions from the Tejpars as to what entries to make in the general

ledgers.

(b) It does not appear to me that backup was required before entries were made in the

general ledgers,

{c) On October 30, 2018, I wrote to Ms. Lalani and noted that 1 had found numerous
discrepancies in the shareholder accounts. I said to her, “...1 had always assumed
that shareholder accounts were prepared utilizing bank statemenis. But, when |

tried matching up bank statements to what you provided in the shareholder

document the information doesn't match up.” I asked her for other information
about how entries were being made in the shareholder accounts. I never received a
satisfactory explanation from her. A copy of my email to Ms. Lalani of October
30, 2018, is attached as Exhibit "4".

(d) On November 6, 2018, 1 emailed Ms. Lalani to ask, among other things, how she
had been finalizing the shareholder accounts without having asked my brother or
me for input in years past. I still do not have an answer to this question. 1 asked

her for a number of other clarifications. And, in paiticular, 1 asked her: "Please
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send ali the adjusting entries for 2018 as what you have provided and the
documentation that Mahmood provided 10 his Nov. 4" email DO NOT MATCH."
1 also asked her for shareholder account details for 117 from 2011 through 2016,
and for closing balances for shareholder accounts that were transferred over 10
117. 1 never received satisfactory responses 10 these inquiries. A COPY of my

email to Ms. Lalani of November 6, 2018, ig attached as Exhibit 5"

()  Attached as Exhibit "6™ hereio is 2 COPY of the trial balance for 117 as at April
30, 2017. Among other things:

)] Account 2040 is an account payable related to the 20 Acres. The tenant of
the 20 Acres had made improvements to the property, and a commitment
had been made to repay him $90,000 respecting those improvements.
Despite the fact that the improvernents represented 2 liability of only
$90,000 to 117, account 2040 recorded a liability of $126,814. 1 asked Ms.
Lalani in my email of November 6, 2018 whether this amount would be
adjusted 1o accurately reflect the extent of the liability. 1 never received a
satisfactory response. When the sale of the 20 Acres closed, the tenant was

paid $80,000 out of the proceeds of sale in respect of the improvements.

(i)  Account 2030 was apparently an account to record interest payable on the
shareholder loans, and showed interest owing of $49,960. However, no

interest was ever agreed fo in respect of the shareholder loans.

3] Attached as Exhibit "7" and ng" hereto are two different general ledgers for 117
as at April 30, 2018 — one printed on October 31, 2018, and one printed on
November 29, 2018. The general ledger printed October 31, 2018, in account
2610 (Shareholder Loans — Murad Tejpar) showed 5 different deposits made
towards Murad Tejpar's shareholder loan account totaling $11,686.61. I raised
guestions with Ms. Lalani about these deposits, as 1 did not see bank deposits
corresponding to these entries in the general ledger. As it turns out, there was no

support for these entries. Therefore, in the general ledger printed Nevember 28,

2018, all but one of the deposits totaling $1,528.25 was reversed or removed. @
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27. 1 have checked the general ledgers and trial balance shareholder loan amounts as against
deposits into 117's bank account, and | cannot get them to reconcile. For that reason, and
because as noted above I do not trust the entries that have been made in 117's general
ledgers, I have repeatedly asked the Tejpars to provide supporting documents to prove

their claims, and they have not been able to do so.

28.  The Tejpars appear themselves to be uncertain about exactly how much they are owed.

For example:

{(a) In an email dated April 22, 2020, the Tejpars stated that their shareholder loan
balance was $800,000 (a copy of this email is attached as Exhibit "9");

{(b)  In an email dated May 8, 2020, the Tejpars alleged that their shareholder loan
balance was $620,465 (a copy of this email is attached as Exhibit "16");

(c) At a meeting | attended with the Tejpars in or around early May 2020, I recall the

Tejpars asserting their shareholder loan balance was $525,000;

{d)  On June 2, 2020, counse! to the Tejpars alleged that the Tejpars were owed
$817,647.24 (a copy of this letter, which has been redacted to remove portions of

a without prejudice offer, is attached as Exhibit "11");

(e) At paragraph 25 of the July 2020 Tejpar Affidavit, Murad Tejpar alleges that the
Tejpars are owed $861,669.64; and

() In response to undertaking no. I given at the cross-examination of Murad Tejpar
held November 24, 2020, Mr. Tejpar advised that the Tejpars are owed
$854,440.04.

29.  The Tejpars have no real certainty about what their shareholder loan balance is.

30.  Further complicating attempts to sort out who is owed what, BHI and 117 shared a bank

account and their funds appear to have been commingled. Based on my review of the

WELEGAL\D904 710000 2790172 2v7 ( : :
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The Third Party Investors' Claims

31

32.

34.

35,

36.

Third Party Investors hag were with the Tejpars,

(a) the Third Party Investors did not advance loans, but advanced funds to purchase
an interest in the 20 Acres — Noor Noorani as to 25%, Karim Kaba as to 12.5%,

and Salim Lalan] as to 25%;

(b) there is nothing in writing about this alleged purchase of an interest in the 20

(c) even though the funds were advanced to buy an interest in the 20 Acres, not as

In the Lajanj Affidavit, Mr, Lafan; also describes himseif at various times as g “project
partner/project investor”, ang a "12.5% stakeholder”.

It is unclear to me whether these advances were in fact loans, or were some other form of

lransaction between the Tejpars and the Thirg Party Investors.
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39.

40,

41.

42,
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For example, a majority of the alleged funds advanced by the Third Party Investors in
respect of the purchase of the 20 Acres were not in fact advanced to 117. The trust ledger
produced by Murad Tejpar in response to undertaking number no. 7 from his cross-
examination on affidavit held November 24, 2020, shows that 117 advanced $288,880,
Noorani Investinents Inc. advanced $89,000, and Karim Kaba advanced $178,000 to Fric,
Lowenstein & Co., for a total down payment of $466,880 towards the purchase of the 20

Acres. The trust ledger of Fric, Lowenstein & Co. in respect of the purchase of the 20

Acres is attached as Exhibit "12".

Further complicating matters, in the Lalani Affidavit, Mr. Lalani states that he provided
half of the $178,000 that Mr. Kaba advanced to Fric, Lowenstein & Co., and that Mr.
Kaba actually advanced $89,000 of the $178,000 on behalf of Mr. Lalani, even though

there is no record of this on the trust ledger.

At paragraph 21 of the Affidavit of Nooruddin Noorani filed March 17, 2021, in Action
No. 2101-01984, Mr. Noorani states: "l should explain that I physically drove and
dropped of the cheque for $89,000 to Fric & Lowenstein's office (the tawyer). This was
not money payable to 1178929. It was money paid directly to Fric & Lowenstein in

trust.”

I have also reviewed the bank account statements of 117, and have not been azble to

reconcile which money deposits into 117's are accounts from the Third Party Investors.

There is serious uncertainty and doubt as to what amounts the Third Party Investors may

have advanced, and under what premise and to whom those funds were advanced.

All of these issues need to be resolved.

The Proposed Referee

43,

As noted above, I believe it is the best interest of all relevant stakeholders to efficiently

and cost-effectively determine the validity of any claims related to 117.

222
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44,  1am advised by my counsel and do believe that they have approached Alvarez & Marsal
Canada Inc. ("A&M") to act as d Relerce appointed under the Alberta Rules of Courl and

(he Alberta Business Corporal ions Act.,

45,  1am further advised by my counsel and do believe that A&M is a reputable international
accounting firm with extensive experience administering claims processes in insolvency
praceedings, including receiverships and proceedings commenced under the Bankruplcy

and Insolvency Act and the Companies Creditors Arrangement Acl.

46. 1 am further advised by my counse! and do believe that A&M is well positioned 10
efficiently and effectively runa claims process in this proceeding to evajuate the efficacy
of each claim against the Sales Proceeds and the R_eceivabie, and to determine what
purported claims are vaiid and the entitlement for distribution from the Sales Proceeds, if

any, to satisfy those claims.

47. A&M has advised my counsel that it is free of conflicts and A&M 1s independent from
any of the relevant stakeholders and is experienced aciing as a Court Officer adjudicating

disputed financial issues amongst parties.

48, 1 believe that appointing A&M o complete this process will free up valuable judicial
resoutrces and will ensure the most cost efficient and expedited way 1o determine the
claims related to 117 and that such appointment is in the best interest of all stakeholders

of 117.

SWORN OR AFFIRMED BEFORE ME at
Calgary, Alberta, this 28th day of July, 2021.

Yy

A COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
in and for Alberta

Amarjot S. Braf
garrister & Solicitor
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Bennett bones LLP

5 4500 Bankers Hall East, g55 - 2nd Street SW
, Alberta, Canada T2P 4K7
Bennett jones Calgary, Alberts, Cana

Tel; 403.298.3700 Fax 403.265.7219

Amarjot (3o} Brar
Associse

Direst Line: 403 298.8167
eoquil® brurj(@bennen onds.comm
Our Eile Na.: 9047 11

June 1, 2021
Via Email
Qalim Lalani

1223 Falconridge Drive NE
Calgary, AB T3J 1A3

Dear Mr. Lalani:

Re: 1178929 Alberts Ltd. v Noorani Inve stments Inc. and Salim Lalani
Action No. 2101-01984

Further to our previous letter dated March 29, 2021, please find enclosed for service upon you the

Order of Master Farrington, filed March 26, 2021 and Amended Originating Application, filed May
29, 2021.

Yours truly,

BENNETT JONESLLP

Amarjét (Jo) Brar

ABdbb
Enclosures
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COURT FILE NUMBER
COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE
APPLICANT

RESPONDENTS

DOCUMENT

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND
CONTACT INFORMATION OF
PARTY FILING THIS
DOCUMENT

NOTICE TO THE RESPONDENT

This application is made against ¥
You have the right to state your 5

E xm BT -

ForMm 7
[RULE 3.8]
52674
Origina) Originating HK
Application filed on
February 18,2021
2101-01984

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
CALGARY
1178929 ALBERTA LTD.

NOORANI INVESTMENTS INC._and SALIM
LALANI

AMENDED ORIGINATING APPLICATION

BENNETTJ ONESLLP
4500 Bankers Hall East
855 — 2 Street SW
Calgary, AB T2P 4K7

Attention: Justin R. {ambert / Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Telgphone No.: (403) 298-3046 / 403-298-8167
Fax No.: (403) 265-7219

Client File No.: 90471.1

. Youarea respondent.
‘de of this matter before the Court.

To do so, you must be in Court when the application i heard as shown below:

Date:
Time:
Where:
Before:

March A 26, 2021

10:00 a.m.

Calgary Courts Centre, Virtual Courtroom 55
The Presiding Master in Chambers

Go to the end of this document to see what you can do and when you must do it.

WELEGAL\D9047 1NO000} \26978205v1
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Basis for this claim:

1. The Applicant, 1178929 Alberta Ltd, ("117, i @ corporation incorporated pursuant 10
the laws of the Province of Aberta. 117 is the registered owner of a 20-acre parce! of

land legally described as:

MERIDIAN 5 RANGE 3 TOWNSHIP 24

SECTION 5

THE WEST HALF OF LEGAL SUBDIVISION 6

CONTAINING 8,09 HECTARES (20 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREOUT THE ROADWAY ON PLAN 6372JK,
CONTAINING

0.52 OF AN ACRE MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

(the "Lands").

e Respondent Nooranilnves tmenis Inc.

Th p )

2. The respondent, Noorani Investments Inc. ("Noorani"), is a corporation incorporated

pursuant {0 the laws of the Province of Aloerta.

3. On January 21, 2021, Noorani registered a caveal against title to the Lands with the
registration number 211 028 503 (the "Noorani Caveat").

4. The interest claimed under the Noorani Caveat relates to an alleged equitable mortgage
petween Noorani as Mortgagee and 117 as Mortgagor (the mNoorani Alleged Equitable
Mortgage").

5. Noorani has no interest i the Lands, 117 s not2 party to and did not grant the Noorani
Alleged Equitable Mortgage.

6. Further, and in the alternative, the Noorani Alleged Equitable Mortgage does not comply
with the Statute of Frauds and cannot support 21 interest in the Lands that would support

the Noarani Caveatl.

7. 117 is not aware of any reason that the Noorani Caveat should be registered on title to the

Lands.

WSLEGAL\0G047 MO0 1\26978205v]
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117 calls on Noorani to show cause why the Nooran Caveal should not be discharged.

Salim Lalani

A ———

9.

10.

1.

12.

3.

14.

15.

The respondent, Salim Lalani ( "Lalani'), is a0 individual residing_in Calgary, Alberta.

On February 19, 2021, Lalani registered a caveat against title to the Lands with_the

egistration_number 211 040 278 (the ", alani Caveat’).

registration MUY S2o

The interest claimed under the Lalani Caveal relates 1o an alieged equitable mottgage
between Lalani as Mortgagee and 117 as Mortgagor {the " alani Alleged Eguitable

Mortgage™).

Lalani has no interest in the Lands. {17 is not a party t0 and did not grant the Lalani

Alleged Eguitable Mortgage.

Further, and in_the alternative, the Lalani Alleged Equitable Mortgage does not com |

with the Staiuze of Frauds and cannot support_ap interest in the Lands that would support

the Lalani Caveat.

M

117 is not_awarc of any reason that the Lalani Caveat should be registered on title to the

Lands.

(17 calls on Lalani to show cause why the Lalani Caveat should not be discharged.

Remedy songht:

16.

117 seeks an Order:

(@) Directing the Registrar of Alberta Land Titles to discharge the Noorani Caveat

e et

and the Lalani Caveat, and

(b)  Awarding Costs of this application.

Affidavit or other evidence {o be used in support of this application:

7.

The Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail sworn February 17, 2021, filed.
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18. The Supplemental Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail sworn March 3, 2021, filed.

19. The submissions of counsel and such further material as may be provided to the Court in

support of the application.

Applicable Acts and regulations:

20. Land Titles Act, RSA 2000, ¢ L-4, ss 14]( 1) and 144

WARNING

You are named 2s a respondent because you have made or are expected to make an
adverse claim in respect of this originating application. If you do not come to Court either
in person or by your lawyer, the Court may make an order declaring you and all persons
claiming under you to be barred from taking any further proceedings agamnst the
applicant(s) and against all persons claiming under the applicant(s). You will be bound by
any order the Court makes, or another order might be given or other proceedings taken
which the applicant(s) is/are entitled to make without any further notice to you, If you
want to take part in the application, you or your lawyer must attend in Court on the date
and at the time shown at the beginning of this form. If you mtend to rely on an affidavit or
other evidence when the originating application is heard or considered, you must reply by
giving reasonable notice of that material to the applicant(s).
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4 " Sennett fones LLP
; 4500 Bankers Hall East, 855 2nd Sirgel SW
Beﬂn ett JOI’IES Calgary, Atberta, T20 4K7 Canada
T: 403.298.3100
F: 4D3.265. 719

Justlo R, Lambert

Partaer

Direet Line: 403,298 3046

c-ail: lambertj@bennettjones.com
Our File No,; 90471, 1

March 9, 2021
By Process Server

Salim Lalanj
1223 Falconridge Drive NE
Calgary, AB T3J 1A3

Dear Mr. Lalani:

Re: 1178929 Alberta Ltd., v Noorani Investments Inc. et al
Court of Queen's Bench Action No. 2001-0142

Further to our ongoing involvement in this matter, please find attached for service upon you:
1. Filed but unstamped copy Amended Originating Application, and;

2. Filed but unstamped copy of the Supplemental Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail sworn March 3,
2021.

Due to the high volume of filings at the Court of Queen's Bench, we are waiting to receive a stamped

copy back from the Court, and will provide same to you when it becomes available.

Yours truly,

BENNETT JONES LLP

ustin R. Lambert
JRL:kjm
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1178929 Alberta Limited Directors Versus
Noorani/Salim Lalani Master Farrington Order

Court File Number: 2101-01984
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COURT FILE NUMBER 2101-01984
COURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBE
{
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY 30660 ".
APPLICANT 1178929 ALBERTA LTD. %
RESPONDENTS NOORANI INVESTMENTS INC. AND SALIM 1
LALANI l.
DOCUMENT ORDER 1

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND BENNETT JONES LLP !
CONTACT INFORMATION OF Barristers and Solicitors :
PARTY FILING THIS DOCUMENT 4500 Bankers Hall East
855 — 2™ Street SW- \
Calgary, AB T2P 4K7 |

Attention: Justin R. Lambert / Amatjot (Jo) Brar
Telephone No.! (403) 2983046 / 403-298-8167
Fax No.: (403) 265-7219
Client File No.! 90471.1

DATE ON WHICH ORDER 2021 |
WAS PRONOUNCED: Macdn 26/ \
LOCATION OF HEARING: Calgary, Alberfa

NAME OF MASTER Lok |
WHO MADE THIS ORDER: Maser Forriogien

UPON THE APPLICATION of 1178929 Alberta Ltd. (the “Corperation"), to amend ~
the Originating Application (the "Application"); AND UPON reviewing the Affidavit of
Gurpreet Lail sworn Pebruary 17, 2021, the Supplemental Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail swort:
Maroh 3, 2021, the Second Supplemental Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail swoin March 23, 2021, and
the Originating Applicatlon of the Coproration filed February 18, 2021; AND UPON hearing
submissions from counsel; AND UPON hearing from Salim Lalani and reviewing his affidavits,

7
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:
1. The Originating Application may be amended to add Salim Lalani as a Regpondent.

2. The Corporation is granted leave to file the Amended Originating Application in the

form attached as Schedule "A" to this Ordet.

3. The Reglstrar of Alberta Tand Titles is directed to disoharge Ingtrument Numbers 211
028 503 and 211 040 278 from title to the tands legally described as:

MERIDIAN 5 RANGE 3 TOWNSHIP 24

SECTION 5

THE WEST HALF OF LEGAL SUBDIVISION 6

CONTAINING 8.09 HECTARES (20 ACRES) MORE OR. LESS

EXCEPTING THEREOUT THE ROADWAY ON PLAN 6372JK,
CONTAINING

0.52 OF AN ACRE MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREQUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

(the "Lands").

4, Upon the closing of the Countty Residential Purchase Contract in respect of the Lands
(Contract Numbet KMBLO007), between the Corporation 8s the seller and Kimball
Lacey, Heidi Lacey, Douglas Pitcher and Alita Pitcher as purchasers of the Lands (the
“Sale"), for the sale price of $1,200,000 (the "§ale Proceeds"), the Corporation shall
uge the Sale Proceeds to pay to Servus Credit Union Ltd. ("Servus”) the amoutits owed
to Scrv‘gé pursuant to the Servus motrigage seoured against the Lands and to pay other
reasonable amounts putsuant to the redemption order granted in Action Number 2003~
13227 and in connection with the Sale such as taxes and commissions, and any Sale
Proceeds remaining thereafter (the “Remaining Sale Proceeds”) shall be held in the
trust account of the lawyer acting for the Corporation in respect of the Sale until the
parties claiming an interest in the Remaining Sale Procesds prove their claims thereto

and a court directs payment thereof,

WSLEGALIS0471\00001\27100816v1 Q::’},/
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5. . The Corporation is awarded costs ta the amount $_l'3?13.:;7§.—, payable forthwith and

in any event of the cause by Salim Lalani.

CONSENTLD TO:

BENNETT JOIES LLP

Per:

Tusii/R, Lambert / Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Solicitor for the Plaintiff,
1178929 Albesta Litd,

CONSENTED TO:

SALTM LALANI

Self-represented Respondent

WSLBGALVZ047 000011271008 16v1

M.C.C.Q.B.A.

CONSENTED TO:

Per

A
(U

Soliciﬁ)r
Noorani-nvestments Inc.
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COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA

BETWEEN:

Gurpreet Director of 1178929 Limited

-and-

Salim Lalani

Defendant

Address for Service and Salim

Contact Information of 1223 Falconridge Drive
Party Filing this (403) 830-0534
Document

AFFIDAVIT
@) - @ t—

v
Sworn (or Affirmed) on this 2274 _day I M, ROAL.

I, Salim Lalani, of Calgary, Alberta, MAKE OATH AND SAY THAT:

1.1, Salim Lalani , of Calgary, Alberts, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY THAT:

1. I Salim Lalani am the joint venture investor/project investor/eguity holder/ stakcholder in the
20 acre project which is under the numbered company 1178529. As of 2021, I have invested
approximately 96 k in the project

5.1 have invested in this project (20 Acres) directly or indirectly by paying 12.5% of the

purchase price, advance interest and contributing to the 12.5% of the operating expense

deficiency from the project inception to-date. Exhibit A-8 , the email from Karim Kaba to Murad
Director 117 clearly defines that 12.5% project cost (20 acre land for sub-divisioning) , 50% of

his contribution belongs to me. Trial Balance from the accountant Aruna for the 2013, 52 C

Page t of 6
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2014,2015 and Triat Balance for 2018 from the Director 117 further identifies my investment in
the project . I met probably in 2014 personally with Aruna to confirm my investment

3. This investment was made under the GOOD FAITH and there was complete uoderstanding
that I am the project partner/project investor in the 20 acre project which was basically purchased
for the sub-divisioning and I have the 1/8th interest 12.5% interest in the project - It was told to
me by the project director that other project nvestor in the 20 acre will have share percentage as

per the investment

4. Exhibit A-1, Exhibit A-2 , Exhibit A-3, Exhibit A-4 and Exhibit A-5 ( Payorders, Cheques,
Deposit Slips) show the amount was contributed by Karim Kaba on my behalf.

5. The Director of the Company Murad. Mzhmood as well as Paul Lail knew from the start of
the project that I am 12.5% stakeholder in this project and Karim Kaba was depositing 25%,
wherein half of his contribution, 12.5% belonged to me

6. In all the meetings regarding the project with Murad and Mebmood, Paul Lail was present in
the meeting and all the othet project investors Karim Kaba , Noor Noorani and Sulaiman Noor , 1
believe like me were under the impression that Paul Lail is the director of the company. It was
only after his death in 2013 (not 100% sure) It came to gur knowledge that Paul Lail was not the
director of the company. During many correspondence regarding the “30 Acre” project , Paul
Lail was always copied and in fact many project meeting indirectly chaired by him. Exhibit A-17
my emai} to Directors and Paul Lail further clarifies who was invalved

7. As part of the 20 Acre Project 12.5% equity holder, when ever the © Fund Call” for the project
investor was made , the proportionate share of 12.5% were paid to 117829 for the 20 Acre
Project and invoices were received for our review

8. The investment was completely made in the GOOD FAITH and trusting that Murad and
Mahmood, whose family enjoys a very good reputation in ihe community, will act as per their
fiduciary duties as directors of the company. I did not go for much of the documentation and s0
was the case with other project investors. We had complete trust in the honesty of the directors
and also full faith in the Canadian Judicial System that Directors will full fill their fiduciary
duties. I was told in by many people that even the verbal agreement is an agreement in the
Canadian judicial system and I should not be worried about the formal documentation

9. Letter dated October 21, 2020 from lawyer Nicholas ( Vogel Verjee) Exhibit B-2 clearly
identifics that I have interest in 20 acres iand. This interest has been written it a clear mauner. It B
o @
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was mentioned that if I will not agree to the Arbitration and Mediation proposal, the arbitration
proposal will not go ahead. As the arbitration could only go ahead if all the equity stake holders
in the 20 acre project, which includes directors and the project investors of 20 acre project, my
interest in the 20 acre project is clearly identified

As I was out of the country and was attending to some urgent family issues, I did not agree to the
mediation and atbitration agreement. In that Draft, our interest has been clearly mentioned

the pame has been mentioned in writing with complete knowledge of the Gurpreet lawyers, the
affidavit is totally misleading. I am not 100% sure but the current lawyer was working with
working witk Murad and Mahmood, other directors of the company. This affidavit is based on ill
intentions. Tt is suspected that the plan is to sell the joint venture propexty without our know ledge
and the proceeds going to 1178929 with no intention to pay back our investment as director is
not recognizing my investment despite all the cheques, contribution from 2008 towards the
operating expenses deficiency

10. ‘The email from Gurpreet dated March 29, 2020 is a further proof of investment from other
project investors Noor Noorani , Sulaiman Noorani and Karim Kaba. In that email Gurpreet has
acknowledged in writing the investments from Noor Noorani, Sulaiman Noorani and some what
from Karim Kaba but disputing my investment amount, Regarding my investment in the project
she is raising doubts as the initial purchase amouat was con {buted by Karim Kaba and our
contact was with Murad. Mahmood and Paul Lail. Karim Kaba was investing 25% of the project
cost half of which belongs to me. Without verifying the equity contribution from the bank
staterents. trial balance and financial statemeants , raising doubt about equity contribution from
the 20 acre project investors, is a serious breach of fiduciary duties. She was told in the meeting
dated at Rickys that she should take a look at the ledger of the lawyer, Frick and Lowenstein,
where two pay orders were paid directly by Karim CAD 25,000 and CAD 65,000 . Being 2
lawyer herself, it is hard to believe that she did oot get the information from the lawyer. Even if
the information was not collected again maintaining the proper books is the responsibility of
directors and if the books are not properly maintained this is again 2 serious breach of fiduciary
dufies

11. In email, dated July 22, 2019 from another director, Jessie lail, brother of Gurpreet Lail, the
plaintiff, has acknowledged as the project investor/stakeholder/ having an interest in the Jand and

asking other project investor come on the title of the land if we qualify for the mortgage.

Gurpreet, the plaintiff is also addressed in this email. Gurpreet the plaintiff Affidavitis a serious
misrepresentation, Trial Balances year over year clearly shows my investment
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12. The Directors were reminded several times about the shareholders agreement ( joint venture
agreement/investor agresment) so that the things are defined explicitly between the Directors and
the 20 Acre project investors. Again here I would like to repest that I was under the impression
that Paul Lail is the Director of the company we are dealing with. It wag never clarified that Paul
Lail is not the director, Absence of proper documentation is because of the confusion and the
GOOD FAITH

13. Looking at the Payorders, Cheques and various ermails from me to Accountant and other
project investors/ shareholders ( Losely defined) cloarly shows that I was an active project

investor

14, Somewhere between 2019 and 202C , most probably the dispute between the directors
surfaced. Not knowing the exact reason for the dispute, but non payment of mortgage from the
Directors , most probably, kicked off the mortgage default. The project investors in 20 acres like
me and Noorani's and Karim Kaba always paid on time when Fund Calls were made. Delays
were very minimal, The Draft Arbitration and Median Agreement ciearly highliphts the dispute
between the directors. Exhibit A-10 from Gurpreet (Plaintiff) highlights the various issues

15. The Caveat was put by me to safeguard my investment. During the course of the project
many mis-representation were made. Had I known those facts I would have not invested in this

project

16. I request that Caveat be maintained as there are many reasons and factors where myseif the
minority investor will be 2 victim of Directors dispute , negligence and breach of fiduciary
duties. In Bxhibit A-10, Gurpreet { Plaintiff) questioning my investment after almost 12 years
without Tooking at trial balance, without confirming from other directors is a serious cause of
concern for me. She had engaged I believe E & Y auditors in her own capacity, and still failing
to verify my investment highlights her intention and the Directors attitude towards 20 Acre
project investors. The email from Gurpreet (Plaintiff /Director 117) raises serious concerns about
the overall state of the affair. The accountant is acknowledging year over year my investment but
Gurprest, as she was asked to give the bank statements (0 verify their investment, started
questioning my investment without verifying from their own record.

17. Exhibit A (Proof of Payments) and Exhibit B ( Mediation Agreement/Emails) and the list of

exhibit are prepared by me to quickly defy Gurpreet claim, under Affidavit, that the money was

never contributed by me [ N
(229 )

18. I will also request your honour to verify these contributions from the Accoumtant and tho.::\\ ~—

Cz
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bank statement
19. Exhibit A with Annexures and Exhibit B with Annexures are part of my affidavit
EXHIBIT A —Proof of Payments { Payorders/Cheques/Trisl Balance

Exhibit A-1 Pay order for the Purchase of Land 20 Acres to Lawyer Fric and Lowenstein October
31, 2007 CIBC 24,000 By Karim Kaba (12.5% Karim Kaba 12.5% Salim Lalani =25% Share)
Exhibit A -2 Pay order for the purchase of Land 20 Acres to Lawyer Fric and Lowenstein
October 31, 2007 Royal Bank of Canada by Karim Kaba (12.5% Karim Kaba 12.5% Salim
Lalani =25% Share)

Exhibit A-3 Cheque No 0349 Dated November 8, 2007 CIBC 4,125 ( 25% Share) for Appraisal,
Subdivision, Perimeter Establishment, Real Property Report

Exhibit A-4 Cheque NO 0381 December 14, 3007 CIBC 13,750 Interest on Mortgege

Exhibit A-5 Cheque No 350 January 14, 2008 Deposit Slip confirmation ( Karim Kaba Payment)
Interest on Mortgage

Exhibit A-6 Cheque No 162 May 26, 2009 CIBC 1,851.99 from Salim Lalani ( oge of 5 blapk
cheques given to Murad -Director) . Insurance , Maintenance , Broker Fees, Direct Energy etc
Exhibit A-7 Email Date July 18, 2008 to Murad _Director 117 regarding 5 post dated cheques
and transfer of 12.5% in my company name /request for payment details

ExhibitA-8 Email Dated June 23, 2008 to Director Murad 117 from Karim Kaba request for
confirmation of project payments/separation of accounts Karim Kaba /Salim Lalani

Exhibit A-9 Email Dated June 23,2008 from Karim Ksba/Salim Lalani attachment printout
request for confirmation of payment

Exhibit A-10 Email from Gurpreet Lail (Plaintiff/Director of 117), Lawyer by Profession , fully
acknowledging Noorani’s Portion (Other Defendant) and not accepting my payments

Exhibit A-11 Email from Salim Lalani (Defendant) regarding meoting and discussing trial
balance

Exhibit A-12 Trial Balance (Extract}from Accountant Aruna Financial Year 2013

Exhibit A-13 Trial Balance(Extract) from Accountant Aruna Financial Year 2014

Exhibit A-14 Trial Balance (Extract)from Accountant Aruna Financial Year 2015

Exhibit A-15 Trial Balance(Extract) 2018 from Mahmood Director 117

Exhibit A-16 Email from Accountant Aruna regarding Trial Balance

Exhibit A-17 Project Status Email to Director

EXHIBIT B — Draft Mediation Agreement/Emails

Exhibit B-1 Draft Mediation/Arbitration Agreement
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Exhibit B -2 Letter from Vogel Vitjee
Exhibit B-3 Email from Jessie Lail Director 117.

s <

SWORN/AEEIRMEP BEFORE ME at (city)
/ 4/ (7 PPk ’ Alberta., on

the 22°C dajof Inarek ,
Aot

Signature Q?/ (Sigaature)

/ T
(Seal) K/ 2 Salim Lalani
NOTARY PUBLK IN FOR THE

PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
My Commission expires:

Tatre &, oloe(

Christopher Kozoriz _
A Commissioner for Qaths
in and for Alberla

My Commission Expiras June 21, 202/

©2002-2021 LawDepot.ca®
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Respondent: Sallm Lalani

EXHJ BIF ' A= Proof of Payments ( payorders/Cheques/Trial Balance ' j

Exhibit A-1 Pay order for the Purchase of Land 20 Acres to Lawyer Fric and LowensteF
October 31, 2007 CIBC 24,000 By Karim Kaba {12.5% Karim Kaba 12.5%
Salim Lalani =25% Share)

Exhibit A -2 Pay order for the purchase of Land 20 Acres to Lawyer Fric and Lowenstein
October 31, 2007 Royal Bank of Canada by Karlm Kaba {12.5% Karim Kabz
12.5% Salim Lalani =25% Share)
Exhibit A-3 Cheque No 0348 Dated November 8, 2007 CIBC 4,125 { 25% Share) for
Appraisal, Subdivision, Perimeter Establishment, Real Property Report

Exhibit A-4 Chegque NO 0381 December 14, 2007 CIBC 13,750 interest on Mortgage

Exhibit A-B Chegue No 390 January 14, 2008 Deposit Slip confirmation ( Karim Kaba
Payment) Interest on Mortgage
Exhibit A-& Cheque No 162 May 26, 2009 C1BC 1,851.99 from Salim Lalani { one of 5
blank cheques glven to Murad -Director} . Insurance, Maintenance , Broker
Fees, Direct Energy etc
Exhibit A-7 Email Date July 18, 2008 to Murad _Director 117 regarding 5 post dated
cheques and transfer of 12.5% in my company name /request for payment
detalls

ExhibitA-8 Emall Dated June 23, 2008 to Director Murad 117 from Karim Kaba request
for confirmation of project payments/separation of accounts Karim Kaba
fSalim Lalani

Exhibit A-9 Email Dated June 23,2008 from Karim Kaba/Salim Lalani attachment
printout request for confirmation of payment

Exhiblt A-10 | Email from Gurpreet Lail {Plaintiff/Director of 117 ), Lawyer by Profession,
fully acknowledging Noorani’s Portion (Other Defendant) and not accepting
my payments

£xhibit A-11 Email from Salim Lalani {Defendant) regarding meeting and discussing trial
balance

Exhibit A-12 Trlal Batance {Extract)from Accountant Aruna Financlal Year 2013

Exhibit A-13 | Tral Balance(Extract) from Accountant Aruna Financial Year 2014
Exhibit A-14 | Trial Balance (Extractjfrom Accountant Aruna Financial Year 2015
Exhibit A-15 | Trial Balance{Extract) 2018 from Mahmood Director 117

Exhibit A-16 | Email from Accountant Aruna regarding Trial Balance

Exhibit A-17 | Project Status Email to Director J
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No; 2101-01984
COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
CLERK OF THE COURT
BETWEEN: FILED
. o MAR 25 2021
Gurpreet Director of 1178929 Limited
JUDICIAL CENTRE
QF CALGARWtiff
-and -
Salim Lalani
Defendant
Address for Service and Salim Lalani
Conract Information of 1223 Falconridge Drive
Pz Filing this (403) 830-0534

Daogamant

SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT

Sworn (or Affirmed) on this 25th day of March, 2021.

I, Salim Lalani, of Calgary. Alperia. VIAKE OATH AND SAY THAT:

1.1, Salim Lalani , of Calgary. Alberta, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY THAT:

1. I received supplemental affidavit regarding " Sale Agreement” yesterday March 24,2021 1in
my inbox at around 345 pm. [ read that email around 4:15 pm/4:30 pm. It has anachment of
more than 200 pages. | had already lined up my appointments for the day and I was busy il 8:30
tutoring at A & W (Wednesday) ttoring SAIT/Athabasca under grad students

2. The original application was amended. The original application was regarding the claim of
Gurpreet Directot 1178929 under the oath that no investment was made from me and Noorani.
The detailed answer and all the relevant proof in the form of cheques/payorders/trial balance
were provided as a proof. In fact the trial balances are prepared by their accountant and we were

paying our proportionate ducs and it is reflected in the trial balances 2 \

’ Page | of 3
QL‘ age | ol 2
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i 3. The plaintitf is side tracking the main issue about the proof of my invesiment and now oringing
ne the " Sale Agreement” 1o camouflage the original issue of her affidavit , which is completely

i

wrong and there are many misstatements. The fact that no documents were shared under oath
znd only email and verbal communication could be a trick by expensive down town lawyer.
When he called me over the phone he was disrespectful and repeated almost 2/3 times about
sueing me and recovering litigation charges
4. The fact that the plaintiff is a lawyer by profession and has misrepresented the facts under the
oath , I would request that issue be dealt first.
S. During the phone call his main emphasis was that the plaintiff has only booked 20 minutes and
as per the plaintiff lawyer, | will not get any sufficient time to give my view point.
6. The fact that the original application was amended with material changes I believe, I could not
trust the plaintiff's lawyer
7. Regarding " Sale Agreement” we the 50 percent investors were never involved in the selling
process.
8. The key fact is who kicked off this foreclosure. We the 50% investor ( Noorani /Karim Kaba/
Salim Lalani) were paying our due share on time whenever request was made
9. Despite many request to Gurpreet to give me the bank statements so that their contribution in the
project could be verified, she stopped paying her due contribution
10. Even there are many questions related to the * Arms Length Transaction". The tenant had offered
to remove the caveat and substitute that caveat with 2nd mortgage/3rd mortgage with just token
interest in the past but it was not implemented by the directors. Also the selling and buying
brokers is the same. Market today is completely different from market one month ago and prices
have risen substantially
11. I have lot of other proof in the form of email and other form where { could clearly show that we
the the project investor are the victims and the investment was made under certain promises
which were false
12. | will request the master o give me a reasonable time or a session to respond to the amended
application as | believe that they are side tracking the original application proving our investment

in the project

a&l%ﬁ“‘ﬁ@*g@@@@cmtdﬁaﬁ1{3\"&‘fétﬁiﬁ‘z{}a&.ﬁ@-;&q@}ﬁ@r_‘g@‘g,'.-pr’




Afidavit

-

SWORN/AFPIRMED BEFORE ME at (city)

C [(K Q.‘f’ { 'Q{szg,? , Alberta, on

the 25th day of March, 2021

- ..---»--‘*"‘“7
Signature 7 bl - {Signature)

(Seal)
A COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS IN AND Salim Lalani

FOR THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
My Commission expires:
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My Commigeion Expires June 21, 20 % 5
Affidavit of Salim Lalani Sworn on November 11,
2021

Court File Number: 2101-09142
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Court File Number ; 2001-09142

Court - Court of Queen’s Bench of Alberta
Judicial Centre : Calgary

Respondent : Salim Lalani

Document : AFFIDAVIT

Address for Service and Contact Information : Salim Lalani
1223 Falconridge Drive
{(403) 830-0534

CLERK QF THE COURT
FILED

ROV 117 20M

JUDICIAL CENTRE
OF CALGARY AFFIDAVIT

Sworn (or Affirmed) on this / /% day Nopember , 22 2/

i, Salim Lalani, of Calgary, Alberta, SWEAR/AFFIRM AND SAY THAT:

The filing for Referee with limited scope of “ Finding the Account Balance” is an
attempt by the Directors of 1178929 to hide the grave “Wrong Doings” done by
the Directors of 20-Acres.

This Is a legal cover to hide “Frauds” and “Serious Fiduciary Duty Breach” and to
vacate all claims as this would be very difficult for me to get the justice if the
“Referee” in the current “ Terms of Reference” is appointed and every thing is
combined. The attempt is to “ Burry the Episode” as the “Forensic Audit” ,though
a very brief one, will reveal all the facts. The case in point is investigating
“Foreclosure Fraud”, which was intentionally staged.

| sincerely belleve, whole exercise of the Referee is to protect themselves for the
serious offences, both Criminal and Civil, which will have far reaching

LS
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consequences for the Directors. The Directors of the «117” lied under the oath
several times, which will be explained in detail in other paragraphs. As mentioned
carlier, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal is a lawyer by profession and Jaspreet Lail is the
Chief Financial Officer/Chief investme nt Officer of the Corporation. Murad Tejpar
and Mahmood Tejpar are the third-generation businessperson and have ventured
into various businesses in the past. They knew every transaction in the Financial
Statements but unfortunately like Subcontinent, Pakistan and india, where we are
coming from, the powerful and influential people don’t regard for any law and
consider themselves above the law by using the most expensive lawyers. Lail and
Tejpar family is the reflection of that mentality. Murad in his Affidavit has
indicated very clearly that in all the projects in 117" and BHl “ Two Families
Were Involved” { Exhibit 62-2 Paragraph 4 and paragraph 5)

We the minority “20-Acres Investors” are the victims of muitiple fraud and this
would be grave injustice to not bring to the light the whole truth through
“Forensic Audit” and a “Proper Trial” to unearth the various frauds. The list of
“Wrong Doings”, committed by the Directors include, but not limited to:
a) Perjury
b) Real Estate Investment Fraud
¢) Fraudulent Representation
d) Financlal Statement Fraud
e) Tax Fraud Possibly Money Laundering
f) Purchase Fraud
g) Foreclosure Fraud
h) Serious Braach of Fiduciary Duties , which includes:
i) Non-Disclosure of the Material Information
il} Misleading the Investars
lil) Gross Negligence
iv) Failure to Perform Due Diligence
v) Willful Default
vi} Not Acting in the Best Interests of the Shareholders/investors
vii) Material Misrepresentation
viil) Intentionally not doing shareholders Agreement
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| request the honourable court to order the “Forensic Audit” at the
Director’s Expense to highlight the Real Estate Fraud, Foreclosure Fraud,
Financial Statement Fraud, Fraudulent Representation and Serious Breach
of Fiduciary Duties so that justice is served to the “20- Acres Investors”.

This case is not only about the money, but the mental agony and the
torture, which | experienced as the “20-Acre Investor” over the eleven
years. Dishonesty, falsifying facts, harassment, deception, and the
investment fraud impacted quality of my life as well as was a huge financial
burden. Not only myself, but my whole family suffered because of this Real
Estate Scam,

Looking at the nature of this Real Estate Scam and other serious offences,
the victim is not only Salim Lalani but thousands of new settlers in Canada,

who are defrauded by this kind of scams and lose their hard-earned money.

Non only the money, but they lose their peace of mind and experience
huge mental and emotional stress being robed of their hard-earned money
and perpetualiy toid lied by the scam perpetrators to cover up their scam.

In “20- Acres “case, the two families, Tejpar and Lail, Joined to perpetrate
this “Real Estate Scam”. In his Affidavit Murad Tejpar Sworn on July 24,
2020 in paragraph 4 page 2 he states that ( Exhibit 62-2)

"Decisions related to the operation of the Corporation and BHI were made
jointly by the Parties and their relations. The Applicants and their father,
Mumtazali Tejpar, made up the “Tejpar Group” and the Respondents and

thelr relations, Paul Lail Sr., Pawan Dhaliwal, and Amarjeet Kaur Lai, made
up the “Lail-Dhaliwal Group”.

Alt the members of the Tejpar Group and Lail-Dhaliwal Group played their
part in committing intentional deception to the Minority Shareholders of
20-Acres. This wiil be discussed In the ensuing paragraphs and proofs will

be shown in various Emalls attached in the Exhibit.

Court Proceeding 2101-01984 March 26, 2021 { Plaintiff : 117 Directors
Defendant Salim Lalani)

1. Before | go Into the details of the list of serious offences committed by the
Directors and their family, March 26, 2021 Court Hearing is mentioned here
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briefly. When we knew about the sale of “20-Acres Land”, which was going into
the “Foreclosure”, because of the intentional default by the Directors and putting
the mortgage in foreclosure, we (Noorani’s and myself) put the “Caveat” on the
20 Acre land as we wanted the Directors to either pay us or come to the
negotiating table. The Honourable Master removed the “Caveat” as 20-Acre
investors name was not on the title. Honourable Master explained to me that
since your nhame Is not on the title, | am removing “Caveat” but you have right to
appeal the decision (As can be gathered from the Exhibit 1, the understanding in
investing in this “20-Acres ” project was being as a shareholder where a separate
company was supposed to be created for this project. 20-Acres investors were
lead to believe that there is a separate company where 20-Acres is parked)

2.1 did not opt for the appeal as there were lot of parties involved and it would
have created lot of delays. As can be gathered from the various Exhibits, | have

100’s of proofs in the form of Emaiis and other documents, that our relationship
with the “20-Acres” was of a Shareholder/Equity Hoider/Project Investor

3. Another trap set by the Directors was the “Right of First Refusal” given to the
tenant Kimball Lacey, who eventually bought the property. This “Right of First
Refusal” was not removed even though the tenant had agreed in writing to
remove the “Right of First Refusal” and replace that with second mortgage of
0.01% or as minimal as could be legally possible, tc secure his 80,000 doliars,
which was owed by the “20-Acres”. More about this area will be explained in
other paragraphs (Exhibit 7 includes Email from the tenant regarding willingness
to remove ROFR)

4. One important fact to mention is that the piaintiff lawyer had booked only 20

minutes in the Master’s Court on March 26, 2021, the intention being that the

“20-Acre” investors does not get the enough time to explain their side of the

story. The Honourable Master was very kind to gave me almost about 45 minutes

to explain the whole situation as how we the “20-Acre Investors” were the

Victims of Fraud. Another important fact is that a new Affidavit from Gurpreet -

(>
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Lail-Dhaliwal, who was representing the Director’s of “117” , was submitted on
March 23, 2021, less than 48 hours of hearing of the case on March 26, 2021.

Real Estate Scam

4. Dishonesty, deception and this scam started right from the start when they
approached us “20-Acres Investors” to invest in the land. The active peoples were
Director Mahmood, Director Murad, and Paul Lail {(deceased). Paul Lail {Deceased)
, father of two directors Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal and jaspreet Lail { the Applicants) .
who was acting on behalf of his son and his daughter with their full knowledge
and consent, came with a proposal that the 20-Acre suitable land is available and
we could sub-divide the land into 8 parcels of 2 Acres each. This would be good
opportunity for investment and Paul Lail (Deceased) has lot of experience of doing
this kind of sub-division

5. The investors of 20-Acres were deceived in the following ways:

a) Tejpars nor did the Paul Lail (deceased) disclose that Paul Lail was not
the Director of the Company and Directors of the company were
actually Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal and Jaspreet Lail. From 2007, the time
when the 20-Acre land was bought, to his death in July 2013, he was
always chairing the 20-Acres project meeting and except Tejpars ,we
the “20- Acre Investors” did not know that the actual Directors were

Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal and Jaspreet Lail. In all the emails and
communication and minutes of the meeting, he was involved along
with Murad Tejpar and Mahmood Tejpar

b) From the time the land was bought in 2007 to 2011, | was working
outside Canada but was visiting Canada occasionally. When | started
residing permanently in Canada in 2011, when | requested for
preparing Shareholders Contribution Sheet/Equity Contribution
Sheet for “20-Acres Investor” | was completely given the false and
fraudulent information( Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2). The following major

Material Misinformation was given: @
2,
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. The "20-Acres Project” is in 117 numbered company which is
owned by Paul Lail 50% and Murad Tejpar 50% .
Il. The only asset In this 117 numbered company is “20-Acres”
ll. Because of the mortgage reason, Paul Lail and Tejpars are on
the title.
f{v. Theother shareholders cannot be on the title as the mortgage
is in the name of Paul Lail and Tejpar
V. Paul Lail and Tejpars have given the “Personal Guarantees” for
this morigage. “personal Guarantees” lie was used by Directors
to prevent the 20-Acres investors from coming on the title { In
their defence with Servus Credit Union, Directors denies that
they have given Personal Guarantees (Exhibit 63 statement of
Defence Murad Tejpar September 22,2020}

The Exhibit 2 gives the “Equity Contribution Details”, which was to be partofa
shareholder’s Agreement of 1178929 Alberta Limited , prepared in September,
2011 and was circulated to “20-Acre Project” Shareholder’s (Only after the death
of Paul Lail Sr. we came tO know that 20-Acre project is not in a separate company
and is parked in a company where there are multiple projects} . Exhibit 2
completely highlights the Gross Misrepresentation made to the “20-Acres
Investors” by Paul Lall { Deceased) and Murad Tejpar by representing them as the
only Directors, The later events after Paul Lail (Deceased) revealed that he was
not the Director, and the Directors were Jaspreet Lail and Gurpreet Lall-Dhaliwal.
It Is worth to mention that not only Murad Tejpar, intentionally misled the joint
venture partner but also the Jaspreet Lail, who was attending some 20-Acres
Project meetings along with his dad Paul Lail(deceased). Even in the court
proceeding on March 26, 2021 the Directors of 117 intentionally lied in the court
that Salim Lalani and Noorani Investments have no interest in the fand and they
do not know that Nooranis and Salim Lalani advanced any money for the
purchase of land. Exhibit 3, Exhibit 4, Exhibit 5, Exhibit 6 clearly highlights that
paul Lail (deceased)/Tejpars completely upderstood our interest in the land as the
Shareholder/Joint Venture partner. Each and every project details of “20-Acres”
was updated by Paul Lail (deceased} to his son and daughter, who were the actual
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Directors ( though we came to know about this fact after death of Paul Lail in July,
2013) . laspreet Lail and Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal were signing the yearly Financial
Statements of “117” as well as signing the renewal documents of “Mortgage from
Servus” and being sufficiently educated, they knew about all the state of affairs of
20-Acres project and our relationship with “20-Acre” project { Exhibit 59 and
various other Exhibits highlights the relevant Emails) . Despite knowing
everything about the nature of “20-Acres Investor”, 117 Directors, Gurpreet Lail-
Dhaliwal/Jaspreet Lail/Murad/Mahmood lied under the oath in the court that
Salim Lalani and Noorani Investments have no “Interest in the Land”. The ledger
from Fric ,Lowenstein and Co.in Exhibit 71 clearly shows that Nooranis /Karim
Kaba paid a total of 178,000 to purchase the 20-Acres land { Fric Lowenstein &
Co. Ledger is also attached in Exhibit 12 of Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwai Affidavit). Karim
Kaba was paying for his interest in 20-Acres (12.5%) as well as for my interest
(12.5%) and we collectively owned 25% ( 12.5% each ) of the 20-Acres project.
Murad has been in almost every 20-Acres project meeting since 2007 but still lied
in the court about the nature of relationship. This could be gathered in the
affidavit filed by Gurpreet on behalf of 117, dated March 3, 2021 on Page 2
Paragraph 6 ( Exhibit 68-2) which says

“Lalani did not advance loans or pay a purchase price to the corporation for
the purchase of an Interest in the lands”

The Exhibit 6, Exhibit 7 ,Exhibit 8 ,Exhibit 9, Exhibit 10, and Exhibit 11 clearly

highlights that the relationship was of the Shareholder/Project Investor. Tejpars,
despite knowing each and every detail, intentionally lied In the Affidavit filed by
the Directors of 117, on March 26, 2021 hearing.

6. Murad Tejpar, who was the primary contact for the “20-Acres Investors”
because of the Ismalli community and some distant relationship, also Misied the
investors that Paul Lail has experience in sub-division of the property. When
permanently residing in Canada after 2011, the visit was made to the planning

department of Rocky View Mountain following bitter truth surfaced:
(s
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a) That out of 20 acres, three to four acres cannot be used because of the
storm water Issue, so how 8 parcels of 2 acres can be made from 20 acres if
you must keep space for services also

b) There has been no sub-division of 2-Acres in the past in that area for the
last 20/30 years

¢) The sub-division could only done with certainty if there is an Area Structure
Plan

'd) The request for sub-division was received and it was rejected way backin
2007/2008 and you should have known the answers to your guestions

e) Above all, the planner said, forget about the sub-division for the next 25/30
years { Basically no Due Dillgence was done because of the vested
interest)

Exhibit 13, throws some light on that. Other events and meeting with Racky View
clearly highlighted the above picture, The Exhibit 41 depicts the bunch of lies
given by the Directors.

7. The “20-Acre Investors” who had spend about 14/17K on the sub-division
application in 2008( or 2007) , were never shared this report and information
because of the Malafide Intention. Jaspreet Lail , the Director of the company
who was liaisoning the sub-division application with the consultant never shared
the report, though all the shareholders had contributed the expense for the
above. In meeting with the Rocky View Planning Department in 2011, we came to

knew about that report. Again, Jaspreet Lail knew very clearly about “20-Acres
investors” relationship but chose to misstate in many Gurpreet Affidavit and in

Directors case against myself on March 26, 2021

8, The “20 Acre Investor” now smeiled Fraud and Deception and Concealment of
Material Information and asked Murad that was their any commission involved in
this transaction because no one in his true sense could invest in this land unless
there is a Vested Interest. On huge insistence, Murad disclosed that Paul Lail, has
made commission on this transaction. This huge “Conflict of Interest” was never
revealed to the “ 20-Acre Shareholder/Investors”. This purchase of the land in

fact the whole initiation of this project was a scam to dupe the “20-Acre
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investors” from their hard earned life savings and each Director played their part
in decelving the “ 20-Acres Shareholders” ( till 2013, none of the 20 acre investor

knew that there is no separate company for the 20 acres and “20 Acres” and

“Morgan Rise” has been merged)

9. That various Exhibits regarding Minutes of the Meeting, Request for
Contributing Funds, Attending the Repair of the Rental Property , Various

Communications with the Tenant, Purchasing Material for the Repair of the

Property, meeting with the Planning Department shows that we were the equity

Investor and to remove our caveat , false testimony was submitted by “117"
Directors in Court Hearing dated March 26, 2021. Just glancing through the

Exhibits shows various communications internally as well as externally about our
involvement in the project as the “Equity Investor”

Perjury

10. As mentioned in the earlier sections, the directors of 117 purposedly and

intentionally misrepresented in the Affidavit submitted by Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal
on behaif of the Corporation to their own advantage.

Murad Tejpar in his Affidavit sworn on July 24, 2020 in paragraph 26 page 5

(Exhibit 62-5) mentions that:

In addition to the foregoing shareholder loan amounts, | do ve rily believe that the
general ledgers and financlal records of the Corporation set out the following loan
amounts as owing to other members of the Lail-Dhaliwa) Group, several third-

party Investors and BHI:

o 00 oD

$7,042.58 to the Estate of Paul Lail 5r.;
$1.1,027.72 to Amarjit Kaur Lail;

$ 100,536.58 to Karim Kaba;

S 100,536.69 to Salim Lalani;

$ 201,091.65 to Noor Noorani; and
$241,428.57 to BHI

(50
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In Paragraph 27 Page 5 Murad Tejpar in his July 28, 2020 (Exhibit 62-5) further
adds

“ Despite having had an opportunity to review, and having approved the financia!
statements between 2005 and 2018, the Respondents began to dispute the
shareholder joan amount attributable to the Parties in the Corporation’s financial
statements in or around October 2018”

Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail : Dated July 28, 2021

11. Before | go further , just doing Forensic Audit of “Foreclosure Fraud”
perpetrated by the Directors, 2 criminal activity as well as a Serious Breach of
Fiduciary Duty , highlights the blatant lies mentioned in the Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal
Affidavit dated July 28, 2021 (Exhibit 70). One hour of proper “Forensic Audit”
investigating Directors responsible for “Foreclosure Eraud” will clearly reflect the
character as well as motive for the Foreclosure Fraud

in his Affidavit dated July 24, 2020 (Exhibit 62-6) Murad Tejpar on Paragraph 30
mentions about intentional default by Gurpreet Lail-Dhatiwal and Jaspreet Lail
that

“ Eurthermore, Jaspreet Lail failed to contribute his agreed upon share of the 20
Acres and Morgan Rise morigage payments for the months of January and March
2018 as well as February, March and May through September of 2019, resulting in
their default”

Murad Tejpar further adds on paragraph 31 page 6

« The Lail-Dhaliwal Group's failure to pay their share of the Corporation’s
mortgage obligations on time, as well as their refusal to communicate has made it
impossible for the Corporation to meet its obligation to Servus Credit Union,
Mahmood and | have lost confidence in the Respondents’ abilities as Directors
and no longer trust that they are acting in the best interests of the Corporation”

On Paragraph 39 Page 7 Mu rad Tejpar adds

« Based on the foregoing, | do verily beiieve that it is not possible for the Parties
to resolve their dispute. The dispute has damaged and will continue to damage

25
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the Corporation and its shareholders and is preventing the Corporation from
rectifying its mortgage defaults with Servus Credit Union”

Regarding default by the Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal and Jaspreet Lail , Murad Tejpar
adds in “Statement of Defence” on Paragraph 10 Page 3 (Exhibit 63-3)that
Gurpreet Lail -Dhaliwal breached the fiduciary duties owed to t0 117 as directors
and refusing to contribute their shares of 117's expense”

12, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal is saying in her affidavit July 28, 2021 ( Allegations of
Impropriety, page 4 point 12 Exhibit 70) “ At all times , my brother and | aligned
our interest with the best interest of 117, in that we sought to maximize the sales
price”

The guestions is, which Directors in the Corporate World intentionally kick the
foreclosure under the “Best Interest of the Company” ??7 Which Directors
intentionally default and put the assets of the other stakeholders in foreclosure??

13. Number of times in the “20-Acres Shareholders Meeting” there was
discussion about divesting of equity stake by different directors at the different
price, had this option would have been exercised, which could have not harmed
the other shareholders and other minority shareholders would not have lost their
life savings. Because of the “Default of Directors” , the Mortgage went from 5.5%
to 7%. This all was done on the best interest of the company!!l. One thing worth

mentioning is the “20-Acres” was getting 4,000 monthly rent also but despite that
revenue , “Foreclosure” was initiated so that “50% Shareholders of 20 acres”

cannot buy the land as specifically | was mentioning equivocally the ali the
“Wrongdoings” without mincing the word.

14, Another worth mentioning thing is the Directors intentionally and purposedly
did not remove the “Right of First Refusal’ though the tenant Kimbal Lacey ( the
renter and eventual buyer of the 20-Acres } had explicitly agreed in writing in
email to remove the “First Right of Refusal”. The Exhibit 7 mentions the Email.

There was some “Conflict of Interest” in not removing “ Right of First Refusal”,
SR
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which was negotiated by me and other 20 Acre investors by doing lot of hard
work.

Once “Farensic Audit” is under taken, within one hour, just looking at the
personal bank statements and credlt cards could clearly highlight the issue of “
Willingness to Pay” rather than “ Ability to Pay”. A 20-Acres Investors Relevant
Forensic Audit focusing on the “Purchase Fraud” and “ Foreclosure Fraud” and a
detailed trial can highlight the complete truth.

15. As | had mentioned number of times for the Detailed Forensic Audit in my
Emalls to the shareholders to uncover the “Purchase Fraud”, “Accounting Fraud”
, “Tax Fraud” and “Serious Breach of Fiduciary Duties”, the Directors thought that
“Referee” is an easy way to escape from all the fraudulent activities and all the
“Wrong Doings” to close the chapter. | am mentioning this paint again, the
attempt s to ” Burry the Episode” as the relevant “Forensic Audit” wili reveal all
the facts.

16. Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal in her Affidavit “The Issues” Paragraph 9 page 3
(Exhibit 70-3)mentions

“The parties require an efficient an cost-effective way to determine the validity of
each party’s claims against the Sale proceeds and the Receivable, the quantum of
such claims and how to distribute the Sale Proceeds among the various parties in

light of those Issues. In the absence of such a process, the only way to resolve
these issues would be an inefficient and costly trail”

My response is finding the balance for “20-Acre Investors” is a small job and “20-
Acre Investors” had always verified their payments through Trial Balance
approved by the Directors. Directors initialed financiai statements and payments
verified in person from the accountants and through various emails, in addition
Murad's statement in Affidavit about his responsibility to ensure that payment
was received makes this task very small. The issue is “Tejpars” and “Lails” who

=
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used 117 and other associate compa nies to evade the taxes, mingled the
accounts, used 117 for 100’s of different transactions.

17. In her Affidavit under “Allegations of impropriety” Pa ragraph 18 page 3
mentions

« While the Third Party Investors are alleged creditors of 117" . This is completely
false statement as the nature of relationship just from the beginning when Murad
Tejpar/Mahmood Tejpar and Paul Lail { deceased), invited funds for 20-Acres, the
relationship was of the shareholders. Exhibit 2 highlights clearly the nature and
purpose of the payment. In the six years, Paul Lail (deceased) , the father of
Jaspreet Lait and Gurpreet Lail Dhatiwal, was acting on behalf of his son and
daughter. Murad Tejpar also never corrected the “ 20-Acre Investors”. Salim
Lalani, Noorani Investments, and Karim Kaba discovered about Paul Lail {
deceased) that he is not the directors after his death In july, 2013. The va rious
Exhibits highlights the meetings chaired by Paul Lall (deceased). Some of the
shareholders Project Meeting was attended by Jaspreet Lail also. Moreover, Paul
Lail (deceased) was also regularly in touch with the Accountant Aruna and
instructed Aruna how to lay out the shareholders’ account. How the Paul Lail
(deceased) was actively involved and how he was instructing the accountant was
disclosed by Aruna, the accountant, when 1 had the first meeting with Aruna , and
| was really upset about the Co-Mingling of accounts. This was the first time, |
came to know that 20 acres is nota separate company and there are many other
projects merged in one single company, That meeting ended in a very bad taste as
for me it was clearly fraud that accounts were co-mingled, 20-Acres tax ioses
were adjusted against the other “Retained Earnings” and 100, 000 thousand of
Commission” was booked against the Mahmood and Paul Lail ( deceased).

Jessie Lail was actively involved in the “ 20 Acre Project Meetings” . he was also
involved in the so called “ Sub- Division” application and completely knew that we
were the “Shareholders/Equity Holders” of the 20-Acres. Lawyers client ledger
acknowledging clearly the 2- Acre investors, this is a proof any reasonably
educated could understand. If we look at Trial balance from 2008 to 2017, , the

trial balance reflects the 20-Acres shareholder. All these years Directors knew
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about our existences, and this is a blatant lie that they don’t know about the
relationship

18. In “Allegation of Impropriety” page 6 Paragraph 23, Gurpreet hersalf admits
about “ Wrong Dolngs “ about the directors. So again this proves the point that
there are so many wrong doings, frauds, fiduciary duty breach that it is better for
“Both of the Directors” to avoid those offences and take this Referee Path so that

criminal and other fraud /fiduciary duty breach could be avoided

13. This section “Allegation of Impropriety” page 4 Paragraph 23 clearly highlights
that the whole Issue because of default and their numerous litigation is their
infighting and other fiduciary duty offences.

Itis very laughable that she is high lighting that “High Price” for the sale of land
was achieved and not mentioning the Serious Breach of Fiduciary Duty because of
default and orchestrating intentional “ Foreclosure Fraud” by the Directors

20. The Directors “ Seif Incriminating Evidences” in Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal
Affidavit is further highlight in the “ The Available Financial information and the
Tejpars Claims” page 7 Pa ragraph 24( Exhibit 70-7). She has mentioned the
followings:

l.- 117 has not maintained proper books and records
Il 117 has occasionally had financial statements prepared on a notice to
reader
a. She is forgetting the facts that “Directors “initialed” the statements

and provided these statements to the Canada Revenue Agency. Paul
Lail (deceased) was regularly in touch with Aruna, the accountant, as
per her to look at the accounts. From 2007 to 2017 , more than 10
years, she injtialled the statements, the responsibility lies with her.
Under the rules of Canada Revenue Agency, the Directors has to
verify that the accounts submitted to Canada Revenue Agency \
reflects the true picture af_é;'i
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b. Itis the responsibility of the Directors to ensure the Statements
reflects the true transactions position. It is a serious Fiduciary Duty
breach to present to the stakeholders/shareholders/project investors
“ Cooked Accounts”

Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal further says in Paragraph 26 su b-section c page 8, about
the discrepancies In the shareholders account. This is again strang0 as for 6 years,
from 2007 to 2013, Paul Lail { deceased) was reviewing each and every thing and
the accounts were signed by the directors, The “Trial Balance” was prepa red, and
the information was given to the 20-acre Shareholders, if these statements are
forged and cooked, this is a criminal offence

In Paragraph 36 page 10 Gurpreet Lail- Dhaliwal Affidavit talks about the “Co-
Mingling “ of accounts by the accountant. The details of Co-Mingling is covered in
the next section

21. In 2014 after the death of Paul Lail {deceased) who was presented as the
Director with 25% share by the Mahmood/Murad Tejpar, | requested for the
meeting with Aruna to verlfy my contribution from the “Trial Ba lance”.

When | met for the first time with the accountant Aruna, | discovered for the first
time that in 117 company , apart from 20-Acres there were other projects. | had
clearly mentioned that this is a fraud that we were never told about combined

projects and is @ Material Breach of Fiduciary Duty to "Co-Mingle”. | also
highlighted about the Tax Fraud. Aruna, the accountant said that everything is as

per the Paul Lail/Murad/Mahmood Tejpars. | highlighted about gross mis-

management of the accounts by Aruna, specifically the co-mingling of accounts of
different projects, but no action was taken by the Directors to rectify the situation

which was highlighted back in 2014 ( Exhibit 17 ). Looking at the fraudulent tax

losses of one project against the other “ 100,000 income from Mahmood/Paul

Lail” | strongly told the directors to change the accountant and to form a new

company for “20 Acres” as investment was secured on a separate company basis .

Despite many Emails.(Exhiblt 54, Exhibit 55, Exhibit 56) the new company was _
never formed and accountant was not changed. lé )
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Time and again | requested for the change of accountant as traditionally when
ever there is investments on GOQOD FAITH basis, and there is a Breach of Trust by
the Directors, the first thing is the change of the Accountant, The Exhibit 54,
Exhibit 55 high lights the repeated request for the change of accountant, but the
Directors never changed the accountant.

The Directors alt these years were initialling the FINAL STATEMENTS with full
knowledge and their own input, Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal is just trying to put blame
on the accountant. Never the less, “20-Acre Investors” should not be blamed for

this mess up created by the Directors to cover up many fraudulent transaction
and the tax fraud.

22. Gurpreet Lail Dhaliwal keeps on high lighting how much is owed to Tejpars
and how much is owed to Paul lail {deceased) and her mother. All of those stuff “
20-Acres 50% Investors “ has nothing to do with. The only thing which 20-Acre

investors are concerned is with the amount given as their contribution for the 20-
Acre Project as a Shareholder/Project Investor.

23. In Paragraph 41, page 12, Gurpreet highlights

“ Serious uncertainty and doubt as to what amounts the Third Party Investors may
have advanced, and under what premises and to whom those funds were
advanced”

Since 2007 tiil 2017/2018, Directors themselves were involved in each and every
activity with the Accountant, accept that in the year 2007 to 2013, Paul Lail
{Deceased) , who was presented to the “20 Acre Investors” as the 25% Project
Partner and the Director, was interacting with the Accountant on a regular basis.
The Financial Statements were signed by the all the Directors, Gurpreet/Jessie Lail
and Murad Tejpar/Mahmood Tejpar. Trial Balance from 2008 to 2018, which
clearly reflects the contribution of Noorani's {25%), Karim Kaba {12.5%) and my

self 12.5% .
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As the Murad Tejapr/Mahmood Tejpar were acting in utter dishonesty and hardly
acknowledging the contribution via email, the only option was 1o ensure that
“Trial Balance” reflects the complete picture.

24. Another important factor to note is “ Lawyers Trust Ledger” the most
suthentic statement as per the “Law of the Land” clearly shows 3lmost about 45%
of the contribution ( total investment by 20-Acre investors about 400K) by the 20
Acre Investors were for the purchase of the 13 nd. This is &n undeniable proof. The
almost 45% of the total contribution by the 20 acres is confirmed by the “Trust
Ledger” ( Exhibit 71). The Trust Ledger clearly shows that this contribution was for
the purchase of 20~ Acre land,

Murad /Mahmood Tejpars Conduct /Affidavits

25. For last 3/4 years, every time, | was reminding Mahmood Tejpar/ Murad Tejpar
to give me the Bank Statements so that | could verify the CAP ITAL
CONTRIBUTION from each shareholder (project investor) Tejpar 25%, Lail 25%,
Noarani 25%, Karim Kaba 12.5% and my self 12.5%. As the investment was made
in the GOOD FAITH, this should have been no problem. But in one pretext or
another, they were never giving the BANK STATEMENT to verify our contribution
from the Bank itself. The DISHONEST TACTICS used by the Tejpars were.

A. Hardly acknowledging the Fund Call Contribution transferred through the
emails

B. Never acknowledging minutes of the meeting, to keep tract the records

C. Never providing «30-Acres Financial Statement” with expenses and profit
Jloss details

It was a constant mental torture to get any thing from the Mahmood

Tejpar/Murad Tejpar. Rather than giving the required statements, they were

always giving the irrelevant documents. Many times they said that “BANK

STATEMENTS” are not availabie. | told them that ok | will pay for the cost to get

those bank statements but in one pretext and another they never arranged those @
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bank statements, which | have been telling for almost three to four years as | was
suspecting various frauds in the transaction.

26. | also discovered in late 2018 that all these years the Material Information
regarding “PRO-PORTIONATE EQUITY CONTRIBUTION” from the project investors
was false. Murad Tejpar/ Mahmood Tejapr revealed that “LAIL FAMILY” has not
contributed the proportionate 25%, and in fact that money has been contributed
by the Tejpar. Without going into the details of what Tejpar has contributed and
what Lails have contributed, this was the MATERIAL INFORMATION for the “20
Acre Investors” which was misrepresented to the “20-Acre Investors”. This was a
shock as it was the key information which was not shared with the “20 Acre
[nvestors” like conflict of interest in the purchase of land, no proper due diligence
as the commissions were made, intentionally not disclosing the unsuitability of
land still going ahead with the purchase of land, not disclosing that Lalls have not
made the proportionate contribution, no separate company for the 20 acre
project as were Initially told. This investment would not have been made if al!
material Informations wereknown/disclosed in the beginning.

27. One materlal information was disclosed to us in 2018 by Murad when there
was a dispute between the Lails and Tejpars about the “SWEAT EQUITY” , that the
mortgage for the purchase of “20-Acres “ could have been easily arranged by the
shareholders of 20-Acres as 35% down payment was made and two years of

advance interest was given. There was no necessity that only Tejpar and Lail
would have been on the Mortgage. This was the deception by the Tejpars and

Lails to hide all the material facts. So one hand deceptively they did not put the
name of 20-Acre investors and on the other hand they did not want to keep

things transparent so that Purchase Related Fraud , recording expenses in other
companies related to 20-Acres, Co-Mingling of account could be easily achieved

28. All these years , the Lails and Tejpar, told the”20-Acre investors” that they

carried the property by providing personal guarantees. Exhibit 36, response to @
mall from March 29, 2020 from Gurpreet highlights about Personal Guarantee >
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from Tejpars and Lails . While looking at the “Statement of Defence “ dated
September 22, 2020 from Tejpars against “Servus Credit Union” (Exhibit 63-2) on
paragraph 2, section 3 says that

“In further answer to the whole of Statement of Claims, there Defendants deny
they provided a Guarantee( as defined in statement of claims) for 117's
indebtedness...... “

This above Affldavit on September 22, 2020 clearly identifies that Lails and
Tejpars were completely dishonest in dealing with the 20-Acre investors.
Wherever they found convenient they lled under the oath or lied to the investors
and banks. Servus Union, which had initiated the foreclosure proceedings because
of wilful default , further highlights the financial character of the Directors.

29, It was told to the Tejpars and Lails in the 2018/2019, that mortgage is the
separate thing and putting shareholders on the title is a different thing. They
always lied that since personal guarantee has been provided, we wlil not allow
the 20 acre sharehoiders name on the title

Tax Fraud/Evasion

30. Tax fraud was perpetrated by the Directors by intentionally Co-Mingling the
accounts and using the “20-Acre Loses” against the one suspiclous transactian of
100,000 commission by Mahmood Tejpar and Paul Lail. | raised the question that
this in all reason reflects the Purchase Fraud as where this commission is coming.
They never answered the satisfactory answer and never provided the documents.
Associated company BHI created and bank accounts were not kept separate
desplte the fact that they were different projects and had different equity
holders. Assets were overstated by inflating the liabilities

31. The investment by the 117, in Saskatchewan by advancing loan to the family
members, requires thorough investigation from the tax perspective., Was this
properly advanced as per the Company Law or this again is the tactic to evade the

taxes by using the family members
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Favors to Tenant/ROFR/Buyer of Foreclosed Property

32. There were many favors given to the “Buyer”, who ultimately bought the
foreclosed property and who was the Tenant at the “20-Acres” for the last 15
years. This clearly highlights the Breach of Fiduciary Duty by the Directors with
the “20 Acres Investors” . For example:

a) Despite the fact that the Kimball Lacey, the tenant, was mostly using the
land for Commercial Purpose but the tenancy agreement was Residential. |
highlighted this issue many years ago and many times | reminded that with
Residential Tenancy Agreement, we have to spend time and money on
maintaining the property, which could be avoided by using the Commercia!
Agreement . The directors never changed the agreement from Residential
toc Commercial

b) Ialong with Murad and Noor, met several times with the then tenant
Kimbal Lacey, to force him to agree to increase the rent but it was never
increased

c) “Right of First Refusal” was never removed though the tenant in writing
had agreed to remove it. This was even not removed when property was
listed

d) When the 20 acre land was purchased for sub-division and some
renovation was done, the quotation was 40 K but ultimately 80 K was paid.
The Directors lost the 40K renovation contract with Kimball Lacey ( Renter
of 20-Acres Property and Eventual Buyer)

Trial is Needed for Justice

1. Referee is only beneficial if there are “ Accounting Issues” or some
accounting related objections. In our case Your Honour, it is not simple
Accounting Related issues but Tax Fraud related issues as well as other
Criminal Offences. There is a huge list of “Serious Fiduciary Duty Brea ch”.
The Financial Statement related frauds were intentionaily done to evade
taxes and deceive investors. There will be no proper accountability for al
offences through Referee
2. The investment in “20-Acres” was done under the “GOOD FAITH” and the
understanding was that there wiil be a separate company for this project 1@‘]
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and we will be the actual “Shareholders” on the title too. But through
wilful deception and cheating, they never fulfilled their promise. We are
the Victims of Real Estate Scam and we could get justice through trial only

3. The various Frauds have surfaced because of the Director’s Infighting.
Director’s Affidavit helps in detecting various Frauds committed by them.
still there will be other numerous things hided which could be only
discovered through proper “Farensic Audit” at the Director’s Expense

4. The Trial is also important as it is just not the Monetary Losses for me but
the Harassment and the Mental Torture

5. There is an element of Damages also which could only be handled if there
is a proper trial.

6. The Trial is also important as the various serious frauds and fiduciary duty
breach was perpetrated by a Trio of Lawyer, Financial Expert and Real
Estate Agent. The crimes are of criminal nature also and justice could only
be served is a proper trial is done

7. Trial is also important for the society to send message that Canada is not a
country where Frauds and other offences are tolerated

SWORN /AFFIRMED BEFORE ME AT (CITY)

___%/ , Alberta on

the __ Ao ber 77X 2021
Signature: C-%--., ‘/ Z
) 7
— A (Signature)
A Commission ‘jm’aath inand for the Province of Salim Lalani

Alberta, My commission expires in (e 27, dod s,

Christopher Kozoriz @
A Commssigner for Caths 7

inand for Alberta s
®ty Commiszion Expires June 21,2077
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Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc.,
Bow Valey Square 4
Suite 1110, 250 - &th Avenue SW
Calgary, Albarta T2P 3H7

Phong; +1 4038 538 7556~
Fax: +1 403 538 7561

Zpop

NOTICE TO CLAIMANTS
(Claims Process Initial Findings)

On November 19, 2021, the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta {the "Court") granted an order in Action
No. 2001-09142 (the "Referee Order") made effective at 12:00 pm November 26, 2021, The Referee
Order appointed Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. as referee (the "Referee") in respect of 1178929
Alberta Ltd. (the "Debtor"), pursuant to section 218(c) of the Business Corporations Act, RSA 2000 B-
9 and Rules 6.44 to 6.46 of the Alberfa Rules of Court, Alta Reg 124/2010.

Pursuant to section 3(i) of the Referee Order, the Referee, in consultation with the known Claimants,
designed and ran a claims process (the "Claims Process") for the purpose of detarmining the validity
of Claims against the Debtor. With respect to all Claims, in an effort to reduce costs, the Referee has
yet to provide to the Claimants formal notice in writing as to whether their Claim is accepted, revised
or disallow, in whole or in part, and indicating the reasons pursuant to a Notice of Revision or

Disallowance.

Interpretation

Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in
the Claims Process or Referee Order.

Disclaimer

In preparing this Notice to Claimants (Claims Process Initial Findings) (the "Initial Findings Notice"),
the Referee has relied upon the financial and other information contained in the Debtor's books and
records, which were produced and maintained principally by the Directors of ihe Dabtor.

While the Referee has reviewed certain financial Information in respect of the Debfor for
reasonableness, the Referee has not performed an audit, review or otherwise attempted to verify the
accuracy or completeness of the Debtor's financial information that would whoily or partially comply
with Canadian Auditing Standards ("CASs") pursuant to the Chartered Professional Accountants
Canada Handbook. Accordingly, the Referee expresses no opinion or other form of assurance
contemplated under CASs in respect of the financial information. Future oriented financial information

relied upcn in this notice is based on the Referee's assumptions regarding future events and actual

et
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results achieved will vary from this information and the variations may be material.
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Receipts & Disbursements

The receipts of the estate include the remaining proceeds of sale of 20 Acres and Morgan's Rise, each
as defined in the chart below, as well as cash in the Debtor's ConnectFirst bank account.

1176929 Alberta Ltd. Table1
Statement of Receipts & Disbursements
unautited, CAD
Consensual Resolution” No Consensual Resolution.
LYRTL November 19, 2021 to [ March 1, 2022 to March 1, 2022 to '

$CaD period from Discharge Discharge
Receipts

Remaining Proceeds fom sale of

34165 Township Road 240A (“20 Acres”) 268,008.92 - 266,008.92 . 268,098.92
204 Morgan's Way ("Morgan's Rise") 239,925.50 - 239.825.90 - 239,926.90

Cash, ConnecFirst B,189.49 - 8,183 49 - 8,189.49
Total Receipis §16,214.31 - 516,214.31 - 516,214.31
Disbursements Estimates Estimates

Referee - Fees and ex penses 54,517.04 10,000.00 64,517.04 40,000.00 84,517.04

Referee - Counsel's fees and expenses 14,026.60 5,000.00 19,026.60 20,000.00 3,026.60

Other Disbursaments 55.00 - 5580 - 55.00
Total Disbursamenis §3,598.68 15,000.00 83,596.64 60,000.00 128,598,64
Opening Cash - 447 615.67 . 447 615,67 .
Net Cash Flow 447 615.67 {15,000.00) 43281567 {60,000.00) 387.615€7
Ciosing Cash 447,615.6T 432,615.67 432 615,67 ___387,615.5_7_ _ 387,615.67

e ————ALA

The disbursements of the estate include the fees and expenses of the Referee and their independent
legal counsel incurred to date, as well as an estimate of the fees for the Referee to complete its
appointment. As discussed further below, the Referee is providing this Initial Findings Notice in an
aftempt to disclose and initiate discussion among the Claimants and the Referee to try and achieve
consensus among the Claimants as to the praposed distribution of the estate of the Debtor. The
Referee is hopefut that in doing so it will reduce the need for the Referee and its counsel to incur
further fees and expenses for the Debtor's estate.

If there is no consensus on the Proposed Distribution (defined below), the Referee will attempt to
consensually resolve disputes with respect to any Claim. The Referee will ultimately provide to the
Court a report of any consensus reached with respect to any Claims and its views, findings and
racommendaticns with respect to any unresolved Claims.

The future fees and expenses of the Referee and their independent legal counsel included in this
notice are estimates only, based on the Referee's assumptions regarding future events. Actual fees 7
and expenses may vary from these estimates and the variations may be material. ( '2,“')1:}
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Summary of Claims Process

The Referee has recelved Claims from nine creditors of the Debtor, The Referee has reviewed each
of the Claims and the support that was provided. The Referee has made enguiries and requests for
further documentation and support for all or a portion of the Ciaims of some Claimants, which, if so
provided, nas been reviewed and considered by the Referee.

The financial information reviewed covers the time period from May 2005 through November 2021.
Given the age and state of the financiai information provided, the Referee, assessed all financial
information in respect of the Claims ta the best of its availability, balancing the economic feasibility
and the reasonability of the Claims submitted for the Referee's review.

As discussed above, in an effort to reduce costs, the Referee has yet to provide any Claimants with a
Notice of Revision or Disallowance, as applicable. Please be advised, based on the records and
financial information reviewed and provided to date, the Referee proposes to revise the Claims as set
out in Table 2 below, resulting in the proposed percentages (the "Proposed Percentage’) of
distributions to be allocated pro rata from the funds remaining in the Debtor's estate:

1178929 Alberta Ltd. Table 2
Summary of Claimants & Claims
wnawudited, CAD

" Proposed Pro Rata"
Claimants Revision Percentage
Mahmood & Murad Tejpar 831,559.22  47.41863%
Gurpreet Lail 171,438.20  9.77626%
Jasprit {Jessie) Laf 65,270.88  372207%
Amarjit {Amy) Lall 26,857.72 1.70264%
Estate of Hamal (Paul) Lall 1296258  0.71638%
Ballagio Homes Inc. 241,428 67  13.76746%
Noorani Invesiments Inc. 201,001.85  71.46726%
Karim Kaba 98.736.57  5.60747%
Sakm Lalani 100,67243  574084%

1,753,618.02  100.00000% ]
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Proposed Distributions

The Referee estimates that there will pe $432,615.67 in available funds in the Debtor's estate
assuming the Claimants agree to the Proposed Percentages. In addition, the Referee understands
that there is an outstanding receivable from 10110308 Saskatchewan Lid. ("1018K"). which the
Referee has quantified as having a value of $163,522.74 for the astate. Based on the Claims received
and the financial information made available to the Referee, the Proposed Percentages would result

in the pro rata distributions as set out in Table 3:

117692 Alberta Lid. Table 3
Proposed Pro Rata Consideration
unaudited, CAD
Claimanis Percentage Available Cash Consideration
Matmood & Murad Tejpar 47 41963% 20514476 § 7754180 % 282,686.60
Gurpres! Lail 9 77626% 42,293.62 15,986.40 58,280.02
Jasprit (Jessie) Lail 3.7220T% 16,102.25 6,086.43 22,188,688
Amarjii (Amy } Lall 1.70264% 7,365.87 278419 10,150.06
Estzle of Harpal (Paul) Lai 0.71638% 3.099.18 117144 4,270.62
Rellagio Fomes Inc. 13.76746% 58,560.17 2251292 82,073.09
Noorani Invesimenls inc, 11.46726% 43,609,14 18,751.57 £8,360.71
Karim Kaba 5.68747% 24,604.90 9,300.31 43,905.21
Salim Lalark 5.74084% 24,835.78 9,387.58 22336
100.00000%  § 43269567 § 163,522.74  § 596,138.41

The Referee understands that the 101SK receivable is iliquid and would propose that the Claimants
with an affillation to 101SK receive a promissory note from 101SK as consideration for the receivable.

The Referee understands that afl of the Claimants, with the exception of Mr. Karim Kaba and Mr. Salim
Lalani, are affiliated with 1018K. To provide some finality to the distribution of the Debtor's assels, the
Referee would propose that those parties directly affiliated to 401SK assume Mr. Karim Kaba and Mr.
sSalim Lalani's proportionate percentage of the 101SK receivable, and correspondingly reduce the
cash portion of their distribution as proposed in Table 4 below (the "Proposed Allocation of 101SK
Receivable").

pPRGE:
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1178929 Alberta Lid. Table 4
Proposed 1015 Recelvable Allocation
unaicfted, CAD
Initial Non-Related Party Non-Related Party ' Revised
: : Percentage ! :
Mahmood & Murad Tejpar  § 75180 § - 25.0% ) 4671.97 % 82,213.87
Amatfit (Amy ) Lail 2,784.19 - 25.0% 4,671.97 7.456.16
Nocrani favesiments Ine. 18,751.57 - 5008 9,343.95 28,095.52
Karim Kaba 9,300,31 {9,300.31) B -
Salim Lalani 9,387.58 (9,387.58) . g
| $ 11776555 § (18,687.89)  160.0% $ 1868789 % 117,765.55

In the event there is agreement amongst the Claimants to the Proposed Percentages and Proposed
Allocation of the 101SK Receivable, the Referee would recommend the foliowing cash distribution to
the Claimants ("Proposed Distribution”) as follows:

1178529 Alberia Ltd, Table 5
Proposed Distribution
unaudited, CAD

" “initial Cash™ = "Proposed * Proposed Cash Initial 1015K Proposed ' Proposed 1015K
Claimants Consideration Reallocation Distibution Receivable Reallocation Promissory Note
Manmood & Murad Tejpar ~ § 205,144.76 § (467197 § 20047279 § 754190 § 467197 $ 8221387 § 2082,686.66
Glrpreet i 42,293.62 - 42,293.62 15,886.40 . 15,986.40 $4,280.02
Jaspril {Jessie) Lai 16,102.25 - 16,102.25 6,086.43 - 6,086.43 22,188,68
Amanit (Amy) Lail 7,365.87 (4,671.97) 2,693.90 278419 4,671.97 7.456.16 10,150.06
Esble of Hampal (Pau) Lail 3.099.18 - 3,009.18 1.171.44 - 1,171.44 4,270.62
Belagio Homes Inc. 59,560.17 - 59,560 17 2251292 - 22,512.92 82,073,00
Noorani Investments Inc. 49,609.14 {5,343.95) 40,265.20 18,751,57 9,343.85 28,095.52 £8,360,71
Karim Kaha 24,604.90 9,300.34 33,905.21 9,300.31 {5,300.31) E 33,905.21
Safim Lalani 24,835.78 9,387.58 22336 9,367 58 {9,387.58) . 34,223.36

$ 43261567 § - 43261567  § 16352274 § - 5 163,522.74 3§ 596,138.41

The Referee is willing to discuss the Claims and the Referee’s findings for the Proposed Distribution
with the Claimants once they have had a chance to consider the same.

Claims Process Resolution

In the event no consensus is reached between the Referee and the Claimants on the Proposed
Distribution, the Referee will issue Notices of Revision or Disallowance, as applicabie, in accordance
with the Claims Process.

2 Y
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The Referee and the Claimants may follow the Adjudication of Claims process set out in the Claims
Process as may be required. The Adjudication of Claims process is anticipated to result in additional
fees and expenses of the Referee and its counsel in excess of the estimates set out in Table 1, which
will reduce the funds available in the Debtar's estate for distribution.

Allegaticns Against Directors

The Referee is aware of allegations made against the Directors of the Debtor as it relates to, among
other things, their fiduciary duties.

The Referee has reviewed the Claims and determined there were indeed management fees,
consulting fees and commissions paid to the Directors and other related parties of the Debtor.
However, based on the records provided, the Referee was unable to determine that any of these

management fees, consulting fees or commissions were outside the normal course of business.

The Referee is aware that Noorani Investments Inc., Mr. Karim Kaba and Mr. Salim Lalani (the "Third
Party Investors®} allege that they were advised that they were the only stakeholders in the 20 Acres
property. While the Referee does not have any direct knowledge of the representations made to the
Third Party Investors when the 20 Acres property was purchased, the funds were pravided to the
Debtor, not to a separate special purpose entity for the 20 Acre property. No records were provided to
the Referee to support the Third Party Investors Claims to having an interest in the 20 Acre property.

The Referee is aware that many affidavits have been filed with respect to the Debtor (within these
proceedings and other Court proceedings) and that there is conflicting evidence from the Third Party
Investors and the Directors. The Referee is not in a position to assess any actions or claims the Third
Party Investors may have against the Directors, nor does the Referee have the authority under the
Refersge Order to do so, as such actions do not pertain to Claims against the Property.

Dated at Calgary, Alberta this 16™ day of March, 2022.

ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC., inits
capacity as Court-appointed Referee of the
Debtor and not in its personal or carporate
capacity

Per:

Cassie Riglin, CPA, CA, CIRP, UIT s -

Senior Vice President \i’}; )

31563177.4 ' I
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COURT FILE NUMBER
COURT

JUDICIAL CENTRE
APPLICANT
RESPONDENT
DOCUMENT

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND
CONTACT INFORMATION OF
PARTY FILING THIS
DOCUMENT

Form 7
[RULE 3.8]
2101-01984

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA

CALGARY
1178929 ALBERTA LTD.
NOORANI INVESTMENTS INC.

ORIGINATING APPLICATION
BENNETT JONES LLP

4500 Bankers Hall East

855 — 2 Street SW

Calgary, AB T2P 4K7

Attention: Justin R, Lambert / Amarjot (Jo) Brar
Telsphone No.: (403) 298-3046 / 403-298-8167
Fax No.; (403) 265-7219

Client File No.: 90471.1

NOTICE TO THE RESPONDENT

This application is made against you. ‘You are a respondent.
You have the right fo state your side of this matter before the Court.

To do so, you must be in Court when the application is heard as shown below:

Date:
Time;
‘Where:
Before:

Go to the end of this document to see what you

WALEGAL\DZ047 1\(0D01126742523v1

Miavoheiora0ad March 26, 2021
10:00 a.m.
Calgary Courts Centre, Virtual Courtroom

The Presiding Master in Chambers

can do and when you must do it.

1
- od ko in the Afiidavito
- rata 3 Offff‘\ .

THOMAS EGLENN"
aarrkstqql:;jggi_;u\lc\tgr
commissioner fof Oaths

in and for .th;e_.Province-of-- 1
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Basis for this claim:

i. The Applicant, 1178929 Alberta Ltd, ("117"), is a corporation incorporated pursuant to
the laws of the Province of Alberta. 117 is the registered owner of a 20-acre parcel of
land legally described as:

MERIDIAN 5 RANGE 3 TOWNSHIP 24
SECTION 5

THE WEST HALF OF LEGAL SUBDIVISION 6

CONTAINING 8.09 HECTARRES (20 ACRES) MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREQUT THE ROADWAY ON PLAN 6372]K,
CONTAINING

0.52 OF AN ACRE MORE OR LESS

EXCEPTING THEREOUT ALL MINES AND MINERALS

(the "Lands").

2. The respondent, Noorani Investments Inc. ("Noorani"), is a corporation incorporated

pursnant to the laws of the Province of Alberta.

3. On January 21, 2021, Noorani registered a caveat against title to the Lands with the
registration number 211 028 503 (the "Caveat'").

4, The interest claimed under the Caveat relates to an salleged equitable mortgage btheen

Noorani as Mortgagee and 117 as Mortgagor (the "Alleged Equitable Mortgage").

5. Nootani has no interest in the Lands. 117 s not a party to and did not grant the Alleged
Equitable Mortgage.

6. Further, and in the alternative, the Alleged Equitable Mortgage does not comply with the
Statute of Frauds and cannot support an interest in the Lands that would support the

Caveat,
7. 117 is not aware of any reason that the Caveat should be registered on title to the Lands.

8. 117 calls on Noorani to show cause why the Caveat should not be discharged.

WSLEGAL\D90471100001\26742523v1
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Remedy sought:

9, 117 seeks an Order:
(a)  Directing the Registrar of Alberta Land Titles to discharge the Caveat; and
()  Awarding costs of this application.

Affidavit or other evidence to be used in support of this application:

10.  The Affidavit of Gurpreet Lail sworn February 17, 2021, filed.

11, The submissions of counsel and such further material as may be provided to the Court in

support of the application,

Applicable Acts and regulations:
12, Land Titles Act, RSA 2000, ¢ L-4, ss 141(1) and 144.

WARNING |

You are named as a respondent becaise you have made or are expected to make an
adverse claim in respect of this originating application, If you do not come to Court elther |
in petson or by your lawyer, the Court may make an order declaring you and all persons ‘
claiming under you to be barred from taking any forther proceedings against the
applicant(s) and against all persons ¢laiming under the applicant(s). You will be bound by
any order the Court makes, or another order might be given or other proceedings taken
which the applicant(s) is/are entitled to make without any further notice to you. If you
went to take part in the application, you or your lawyer must attend in Court on the date
and at the time shown at the beginning of this form. If you intend to rely on an affidavit or
other evidence when the originating application is heard or congidered, you must reply by
glving reasonable notice of that material to the applicant(s).

WSLEGAL\G9047 1\0000 126742 523 v i _(\

=T




THIS EXHIBIT "l nﬁrsnnfn—fﬁ‘hﬁﬂ

e AFFIDA\.’IT OF

;2:' - '

e 3"-/ g e ﬂ,/_qz, Al
SWORN BEFOREMETHIS.. 24 oy
05.....(.2;.4//.. ..................... D, 2024
P lllllllllllll

COMMISSI om OF DAPHS-HT AND FOR
‘e~ THEPROVNCE OF ALBERTA

Christopher Kozoriz

A Commussicrer for Oaths
EXH l BlT 68 in and for Aiberta ‘y
My Commiseion Expires June 21, 20
Affidavit of Noorani Inc. Sworn on March 17, 2021

Court File Number: 2101-01984

D ¢a




E Y 8T EX

_ U Eorm 4B '
U (Rle 13.19)
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ALBERTA
JUBIGIAL GENTRE GALGARY
APPLIGANT 1178929 ALBERTA LTD.
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ADDRESS. FOR SERVICE' GLENN & CARD LAWLLP éass A
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DOGUMENT Calgary, Alberta T1Y 7HS

hone! 403,291:2632 [Fax: 408,281:2634
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AFFIDAVIT OF NOORUDDIN NOORANI
Sworn an, March 47, 2021

1, NOORUDDIN NOORANI, of the City of Calgary, In the Province of Alberta, MAKE
OATH AND BAY THAT:

1. | am the shareholder and director of the Raspondent Gorporation, NQORKNI
INVESTMENTS ING,, herein and as such have a personal knowledge of mattérs herein
depipsed except where stated otherwise.

2. | have recsived and reviewed the Originating Application ahd Affidavit-of 1178928 Alberia
Ltd. (Herelnafter called 11788297} and the Affidavit of Gurprest Lall, sworn February 17,
2021,

3. | hote from the Affidavit of Guipreet Lall that she declares that only Jaspreet Lall, Murad

Tejpar, Mahmud Tejpar and Gurprest Lail.are the -sole shareholdeis of the corporatian,
1178920, All four all the sole directors.

4. | note that the shareholders'have no Unanimous -Shareholder Agreement.

5 |note that in paragraphs 3, 4, 5 4nd 6 of her Affidavii, she states and confirms the patenily
obvlous that requires no response:

6. Inresponse to paragraph 7, when | orlginally approachéd counsel, my counsel did not see
gll of my. documenis, Because | indlcated thal my business partner and | are not

shiareholders of 1478928, that 1178929 had botfowad thohey. from us-which. would have

resuited in@n equitable moftgage.
|




10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

18,

16.

17.

18.

EKM‘! gn W

However, after providing my counsel with documents, | am Informed that my counse!
considers that | am an equitable owner of the property through my corporation, Noorani
Investments Inc.

| attach hereto as Exhiblt “A” to my Affidavit, a copy of an Offer to Purchase between
Nellle Beck as the Seller and 1178928 Alberta Lid. as the Buyer. The price is $1,400,000.

The Buyer is actually 1178928 or Nominee. When the shareholders of 1178829 convinced
my brother and | to enter inte this business arrangement, | was not certain whether my
name or Noorani Investrnents Inc. would actually appear on the Certificate of Title. It is not
something we discussed but we had assurances from the directors that our interests In the
investment would be preserved.

The arrangement between us was that Noorani investments Inc. would confribute 25% of
the cash to the purchase, We agreed that 1178929 wouild obtain a mortgage. The balance
was the amount of the purchase- price that was to be divided into four equal portions, one
of which was {o be paid by Noorani Investments Inc.

The Offer to Purchase for the land was signed on May 17, 2007 and accepted on May 26,
2007,

The intention was to purchase the preperty, and subdivide the 20 acre parcel described in
the Applicant's Affidavit at paragraph 3, and which [s called the “l.ands". See Exhibit “B"
attached hereto. The Application for Subdivision was rejecied.

Those Lands were to be held, then sold with the proceeds divided amongst the stake
holders with the Respondent’s portion at 25%

A family member of one of the four directors in 1178929 was in the real estate business
and suggested this would be an excellent investment. What they did not visw or consider
properly was that the Lands are subject to a defarred reserve Caveat and Springbank
Alrport zoning regulations.

The restrictions on the use of the land, especially the deferred reserve covenant, should

have been foreseen as a tremendous impediment to the swift Increase i the value of the
property, considaring that the use of the land was not under the control of the owners of

the lands, rather it was under the contral of either the City of Calgary or the Municipal
District of Rocky View or the Provincial agency which deais with the deferred reserve.
Alternately, It Is under the control of the Springbank Airport zoning regulations.

In any event, and based on that information, the Respondent, Noorani Investments Inc.,
agreed fo participate. | aftach hereto as Exhibit “C" to my Affidavit, a copy of the
purchase material including a Statément of Adjustment, Statement of Funds Recelved and
Disbursed, and Staternent from Faber Bickman Leon in regards to mortgage financing.

The Statement of Receipts and Disbureements shows that the participants, including
Nooran! Investments Inc., paid $4686,880 to the lawyer In erder fo complete the purchase.

Attached hereto as Exhibit “D” to my Affidavit, Is a copy of Noorani Investments Inc.
spreadsheet showing the amounts of money that were contributed by Nooran|

Investments Inc, _
2D
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Between May and October 2007, Noorani Investments Inc. paid $126,500 by cheque
numbers 15, 20 and 45, fo close the purchase. This amount exceeds 25%, but we
undersfood that it was all going to be equalized at some later date.

The spreadsheet also shows. that subsequently, in November and December _2007.
Noorani Investiments inc, paid an additional $31;825 for -appralsal, subdivislon, perimeter
establishment, etc. and interest on the. mortgége.

I should explain that | physically drove and dropped off the cheque for $89,000 to Fric &
Lowenstein's office (the lawyer). This was not money payable to 1178929. [t was money
pald directly to Fric & Lowenstein In trust. See Exhibits below.

The spreadsheet shows thereafter from May 21, 2008 to February 28, 2020, an additional
payment of $43,300.55. These may have been monies paid to 1178229, but they were
part of the business scherme by which the Investment was to be supported equally and
was-going to be divided equally. | consider that to be ownership.

| aftach hereto as Exhibit “E” to my Affidavit, copies of the cheques paid by Nooran|
investments Inc. covering the period with respact to the purchase, including a copy of
additional documents reflecting payments.

| next attach hereto as Exhibit “F* to my Affidavit, coples of the business account
statements and cancelled cheques covering all of the additionai monies paid as set forth
in the spreadsheat for $43,300.55.

| further attach hereto as Exhibit “G" to my Affidavit, copies of the accountant's.
statements and spreadsheet on the purchase showing Noorani Invesiment Inc.'s
contribution of $169,725, including the payment from my brother and | of $11,600 and
Noorani [nvestments Inc. "20 acres” of $158,125.

The secand spreadsheet from the accountant shows the caleulation of the $158,125.

[ attach hereto as Exhiblt “H” to my Affidavit, a copy of a draft Arbitration Agreement
between Murad Te]par, Manhmud Tejpar, Gurpreet Lail and Jaspreet Lall, Apparently, this
Agreement was an attempt to resolve disputes between the four directors, but actually
makes speclfic referénce to our loans and states ih part “What loans arg owedd by
1178928 to Karim Kaba, Salim Lalani or Noor Noorani, if any, and on what terms (the
*Third Party Loans”)?" | do not belleve this Agresment was resolved or bore any frult.

| finally attach hereto as Exhibit “I” to my Affidavit, copies of emails commencing May
2015 to.March 28, 2020, dealing with this property.

I now understand that this property Is to be sold. | dd not know about the full purchase
price, but | look forward o belng repaid either as a creditor or as a one-quarter {1/4)
owner. Unfortunately, we did not seek independent legal atlvice when this agreement was
entered into. But, notwithstanding, there is sufficient evidsnce to show that Noorani
Investments Inc. has made a significant-contribution to the purchase of this properly.

When | sought fo secure our loan, | was teld that | had no rights and no ability to collect
anything as | was not an owner. It is that that caused me attend to my present lawyer who
fled & Caveat claiming an equitable morigage against this property. If | am not a
mortgagee, then | am owner, through my corporation, Neorani Investments Inc.

3
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| make this Affidavit in response to the Originating Application by 1178828 Alberta Ltd.
and in support of my Cross-Application for an Order enforcing the terms of the claim of
Nooranl Investments Inc. There is certalnly plenty of evidence to show that Noorani 1
Investments Inc. advanced money although the characterization is not always clear, the '

gonitibution is absolutely clear.

SWORN BEFORE
this 17th day of M

af fTalgary, Alberta,

)

| TR |
) ]
)
)
)

\\A

Commissioner for O&tk€ In and for NOORUDDIN NOORANI

The Province ofAlbeita

THOMAS F GLENN
‘Barrister and Sollcitor
Commissionar for Daths
in and far the Provines of Alberta
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COURT FILE NUMBER 2001-09142 —Q‘(‘Zl_e—-r;{—’;gt;r;l;)-—
COURT COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA
JUDICIAL CENTRE CALGARY
APPLICANTS MURAD TEJPAR and MAHMOOD TEJPAR N
RESPONDENTS GURPREET LAN.-DHALIWAL and

JASPREET LAIL

DOCUMENT AFFIDAVIT OF NOORUDDIN NOORANI

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND GLENN & CARD LAWLLP

CONTACT INFORMATION OF  Attention: Thomas F Glenn

PARTY FILING THIS Emait: tfglenn@gclawyers.ca

DOCUMENT 100, 2886 Sunridge Way NE
Calgary, Alberta T1Y 7H9
Phone: 403.291.2532 / Fax: 403.281.2534
Flle No.: 16 0073 115

AFFIDAVIT OF NOORUDDIN NOORANI
Sworn on November 12, 2021

I, NOORUDDIN NQORANI, of the City of Calgary, in the Province of Alberta, MAKE
OATH AND SAY THAT:

1. I'am a shareholder and a director of NOORANI INVESTMENTS INC., harein and as such
have a personal knowledge of matters hereln deposed except where stated otherwise.

2. | have received and reviewed the draft Application {Appointment of a Referee) in this
proceeding and | have reviewed the Affidavit of Gurpreet Laii-Dhaliwal, sworn July 28,
2021 in support.

3. I state that on my own behalf, and on behalf of Noorani Investments Inc, we are opposed
to the Order sought for the Appointment of a Refaree,

4. Our concern, which will be addressed in greater detail below and herein, is that a Receiver
would simply be inclined to prioritize the listing of creditors of the corporaticn and then
divide any monies standing in the name of 1178929 Alberta Ltd. (herein called “117"}, and
divide the monies in that priority which would be incorrect,

5. There is a separate proceeding which has not been referenced in Gurpreet Lail-Dhaliwal's
Affidavit. Early in 2021, 117 brought an Application against Noocrani investments Inc., in
court file number 2101-01984.

6. The Application was to strike out a Caveat by Noorani in which Noorani was claiming a
proprietary interest by way of equitable mortgage against the lands described as the Wast

Half of Section 5, Township 24, Range 3, West of the 5" Meridian, and municipally .
described as 34165 Township Road 240A.

1 X\
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7. lattach hereto as Exhibit “A”, a copy of the Originating Application in that proceeding.

8, I attach my Affidavit sworn March 17, 2021 with Exhibits attached hereto as Exhibit “B”
to this my Affidavit.

8. In my Affidavit of March 17, 2021, | explain that | was induced to invest in that particular
piece of land, the price of the land being $1,400,000. When the iand was to be sold, the
proceeds were to be divided among the stakeholders with my portion and that of Noorani
Investments Inc. at 25%.

0. It was never my intention to become a shareholder, a director or an investor in the
company 117. | was not previously involved in thal company and had no interest being
involved in that company, 117.

11. It was represented to me and to my brother, that 117 was simply a limited use corporation
that would act as a holding company for this land. | had received no information that this
was some form of investment company, nor was | aware that the shareholders and
directors of 117 seemed to be conducting their business, paying themseives wages and
salaries, their expenses, etc. all through the 117 company.

12.  The land was purchased in November 2007, The conveyancing was conducted by Fric &
Lowenstein, Barristers and Solicitors, in NE Calgary. | did not sign the offer, nor did any of
the shareholders or directors of 117.

13. | had recelved information relating to the potential development of the land which |
attached to my Affidavit.

14. 1 attached copies of my cancelled chegques and money orders showing amounts that
Noorani Investments Inc. contributed to this purchase. They are attached as Exhibit "E” to
my March 17, 2021 Affidavit and include:

a) $12,500 payable to 1178929 Alberta Ltd.;

Listed on the face of the cheque "First deposit for 20 acres”
b) $25,000 payable to 1178929 Alberta Ltd.:

Listed on the face of the cheque "
¢) $89,000 payable to Fric & Lowenstein, Barristers & Solicitors;

Original cheque listed “Closing for Hwy 8" which cheque was replaced by bank
draft

d) $4,125 payable to 1178929 Alberta Ltd.;

Listed on the face of the cheque "Hwy 8 west 1/2 LS 6 — 524 — 3WSM” This
cheque was to pay for my share of the appraisal invoice, the subdivision
application fees, and survey fees.

e) $27,500 payable to 1178929 Alberta Lid.,

This amount was listed as "INT [interest] on 20 acre land”
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Also attached to my Affidavit were demands for payment or our contribution for taxes,
insurance, rent, utilities, etc. on that specific piece of land.

Although my cheques were payable 1o 117, the intention was fo cover ths:‘ expenses
associated with the plece of land as it was clearly identified in the material received.

In partial justification for the demand for payment, | received a copy of the combli'ned
Assessment and Tax Notice from the MD of Rocky View covering the “20 acres’ as
manifest on the face of the document,

This arrangement carried on for years and in each case, the reference was to the 20 acres
being the West half of LSD 6, 1/2.

These notices and demands for payment occurred approximately every year from the date
of the purchase of the land to the date when the land was to be sold. All of this is set out
in Exhibit “F” to my March 17, 2021 Affidavit,

Other than demands for payment, there was not a lot of disclosure from 117 about the
lands. | did receive correspondernce from Rahal Warren & Chugh, Chartered Accountants,
in 2018, in answer to my questions, and received an accounting documeant under Exhibit
“G” to my March 17, 2021 Affidavit, where it indicates “Noorani — 20 Acres (1 58,125.00)".
It appears to be segregated compietely from other items in the Trial Balance.

In about 2015, we made inquires about the future of the lands. We mat with directors of
117. In August 2015, the essential element was refinancing of the fands.

| further received and as attached as Exhibit *I” to my March 17, 2021 Affidavit, an Agenda
for a “partners’ meeting” which was directed to me. | altended the meeting. | began to
worry that there were problems with this land.

| was again invited to a meeting in December 2018 where | received the Financial Report
which specifically identified four interest holders including Salim Lalani at 12.5%, Karim
Kaba at 12.5%, Noorani at 25%, and an unidentified interest holder at 25%, and no
reference to a further investment portion for 25%.

It is obvious that | was not the only person who was not fully informed or saw that the
project was changing. On December 9, 2018, Karim Kaba wrote "ff's only fair to hold back
the money since we are still waiting for proper financials. It is difficult to keep on dumping
money when we don’t understand how the investment is working. Please Iot ma know
your thoughts. Salim and Noordin, please provide your feed back".

On February 13, 2019, Gurpreet wrote asking for information from all of the interest
holders in the land “A. Records of deposit amounts into 1178829 for the purchase of the
properly in order to reconcile shareholder accounts. Breakdown by date and/or month and
deposit amount. In meeting with the accountant i found that there were discrepancies in
shareholder amounts and want fo ensure we have the correct amounts recorded.”

Gurpreet asks for the information in separate emails, suggesting that this as *respecting
everyone’s privacy” but having the net affect that none of the interest holders had any idea
what the other interest holders were doing.

It became obvious in correspondence provided and dated June 18, 2019 that the $88,000
that | paid to Fric & Lowenstein, referenced previously, had not been properly accounte_d
for. The fransaction closed in December 2017 and the error was only being discovered in
2019.

3
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Also attached in Exhibit “I" is an email from Gurpreet dated July 16, 2019 which among
other things says "The statements that have been provided are not bank statements as
the financials are a mess. If you look at the all of the previous GL's and accounts, you will
sae the discrepancies.”

In the same July 16, 2019 emalil, Gurprest suggests that “Also in speaking lo Howards
office, they do not have a record of the $89,000." | believe the reference to “Howard” is
Howard Lowenstein who actually conducted the purchase transaction in 2007. This letter
of Gurpreet is referring to matters that occurred 12 years previously.

The $8%9,000 cheque in guestion was actually replaced with a bank draff, which is also
attached to my March 17, 2021 Affidavit.

Subsequently, and on October 31, 2019, Gurprest Lail-Dhaliwal wrote to the various
parties and amongst other things, said “the amounts that are outstanding for the
shareholders is incorrect’. As far as | can tell, that is the only accurate statement in the
entire email.

Unfortunately, about that time, it began to appear that Gurpreet or the accountant were
actually comingling all of the interests of the various parties to the 117 corporation
including directors, shareholders, investors, creditors, etc.

When it finally became painfully obvious that this land needed to be sold as the value of
the lands was diminishing, the natural person who should buy the land is the tenant who
has been in possession now for approximately 10 years. In fact, he had made
improvements to the property and had received some kind of a concession from the
management at 117, that any improvements that he made would be applied against a
perspective purchase price.

| make this Affidavit in response and oppasition to the Application (Appointment of a
Referes) by the Applicants, Murad Tejpar and Mahmood Tejpar.

SWORN BEFORE ME at Calgghy, Alberis,
this VY= day of Novembgf, 2021,

7

/'—'——*‘-_/j f=,—-,———’3€‘f\_,:)
J————
NOORUDDIN NOORANI

X

Commissioner for O ' and for
The Province of Albgit /

~,
-
T N Nt M s S St

THOMAS F GLENN
Barrister and Solicito?
Commissioner for Oaths
in and for tha Prevince of Alberta
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Cheque by Cheque Details of Noorani Investments
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Email from Murad /Gurpreet & Mahmood Personal’
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Gmail Salim Latani <salimiala@gmail.com>

Fwd:

murad tejpar <tejparm@gtmail.com> ‘ . Sun,_ Nov 10, 2019 at §:50 PM
To: Jessle Lall <jessie@indevelopments.com>, Gurpreet Lall <gurpreetiail@gmail.com>, _Sallm latani <sa}limlala@gn}all.com>.
Karim Kaba <karimkaba@gmail.com=>, Noor Noorani <sulnoor@hotmail.com>, Paul Dhaliwal <paul.dhaliwal1@gmail.com>,
Mahmood Tejpar <mahmood.tejpar@gmail.com=>, Nooruddin Noorani <ash_noor@hotmail.com>

Hello All,

Attached are bark statements for the three fiscal years starting May 2017 to Oct 2019,

All amounts are from actual bank statement these statements were verified by Noor,

We have excluded Gurpreet & Mahmood a personal expenses paid for the company namely Jun 2019 Gurpreet $975.34,
February 2018 $1374.75 (Lumber Jack) it is both for Morgan Rise.

Gurpreet we have thoroughly reviewed your numbers and noticed expenses were not included and bank charges were
estimated. See revised spreadshest attached.

Enclosed spread sheet provides actual expenses, shareholder deposits, bank chgrges. mortgage actual cost vs paid
resulting in default. Moving forward our mortgage for 20 Acres as of November will be $7211.00.

As per our conversation you had a meeting with Servus on 28th October 2018, please update on that.

We need to resclve this as soon as possible because the morigage paymants are extremely high due to negligence.

20 Acre issue has baen resolved. The pressure tank was replaced and waiting for the invoice from the plumber which will
need te be paid Immediately,

Please review before our next morigage which is due any day.
Regards,

Murad Tejpar
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